”) Town of Newmarket COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

AGENDA

Newmarket Monday, November 25, 2013 at 1:30 PM

Council Chambers

Agenda compiled on 25/11/2013 at 11:39
AM

Additions & Corrections to the Agenda

Additional items to this Agenda are shown as (Added).
Declarations of Pecuniary Interest

Presentations & Recognitions

1. Mr. Daniele Zanotti, CEO, United Way of York Region to address the Committee p. 12
regarding the 2013 campaign, highlights of United Way activities and celebration
of a strong partnership with the Town of Newmarket.

2. Mr. Paul Ferguson, President - Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. to address the p. 14
Committee regarding the 2012 Annual General Meeting.

Deputations

3. (ADDED) Mr. Dave Sovran of the Glenway Preservation Association to address
the Committee regarding Marianneville Developments Ltd. (Glenway) (Related to
Item 22)

Consent Iltems

4. Correspondence from Radha Bhardwaj, Executive Director, AIDS Committee of p. 50
York Region requesting proclamation of December 1, 2013 as "World AIDS Day"
in the Town of Newmarket.

a) THAT the correspondence dated October 23, 2013 from Radha Bhardwaj,
Executive Director, AIDS Committee of York Region be received and the
following recommendations be adopted:

i) THAT the Town of Newmarket proclaim December 1, 2013 as "World AIDS
Day";

i) AND THAT the proclamation be advertised in the Town Page advertisement
and on the Town's website www.newmarket.ca
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Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee Minutes of October 1, 2013. p. 52
The Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee recommends:

a) THAT the Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee Minutes of October 1,
2013 be received.

Newmarket Economic Development Advisory Committee Minutes of October 17, p. 58
2013.

The Newmarket Economic Development Advisory Committee recommends:

a) THAT the Newmarket Economic Development Advisory Committee Minutes
of October 17, 2013 be received.

Item 1 of the Newmarket Economic Development Advisory Committee Minutes of
October 17, 2013 regarding Intelligent Community; Broadband Strategy.

The Operational Leadership Team recommends:

a) THAT the following recommendations be referred to staff for further review
and to report back, as appropriate.

The Newmarket Economic Development Advisory Committee recommends to
Council:

a) THAT the Town of Newmarket consider a number of options to at least begin
the process to build a high speed connection service within Newmarket along
with business plans and implementation cases;

b) AND THAT with the assistance of the Shared Digital Infrastructure
organization that the Regional Municipality of York be requested to supply
information on what the Town of Newmarket can expect in terms of support in
moving forward with high speed connectivity services.

Newmarket Public Library Board Minutes of September 18, 2013. p. 62
The Newmarket Public Library Board recommends:

a) THAT the Newmarket Public Library Board Minutes of September 18, 2013 be
received.

Town of Newmarket | Committee of the Whole Agenda — Monday, November 25, 2013




10.

11.

a) Central York Fire Services - Joint Council Committee Minutes of October 1,
2013 and September 3, 2013 (including Closed Session Minutes).

The Central York Fire Services - Joint Council Committee recommends:

i) THAT Central York Fire Services - Joint Council Committee Minutes of October
1, 2013 and September 3, 2013 be received;

i) AND THAT Central York Fire Services Joint Council Committee (Closed
Session) Minutes of September 3, 2013 be received.

Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Engineering Services 2013-50
dated October 17, 2013 regarding Foxtail Ridge - Parking Review. (Deferred
from Committee of the Whole meeting of November 4, 2013)

The Commissioner of Development and Infrastructure Services and the Director
of Engineering Services recommend:

a) THAT Development and Infrastructure Services Report - ES 2013-50 dated
October 17, 2013 regarding Foxtail Ridge - Parking Review be received and the
following recommendation be adopted:

i) THAT the parking restrictions remain as existing.

Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Engineering Services 2013-51
dated November 1, 2013 regarding Request for Final Acceptance and
Assumption - Oxford Homes Residential Subdivision, Phase 1A.

The Commissioner of Development and Infrastructure Services and the Director
of Engineering Services recommend:

a) THAT Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Engineering Services
2013-51 dated November 1, 2013 regarding Request for Final Acceptance and
Assumption - Oxford Homes Residential Subdivision, Phase 1A be received and
the following recommendations be adopted:

i) THAT the request for final acceptance and assumption of the Oxford Homes
Residential Subdivision - Phase 1A as shown on the attached map be finally
accepted and assumed by the Town;

i) AND THAT the securities be released as recommended by our Checking
Consultant;
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12.

13.

i) AND THAT Ms. Angela Meyer of Oxford Homes (711371 Ontario Corp.) and
Mr. Angelo A. Maurizio, P. Eng., of Schaeffer & Associates Ltd. be notified of
these recommendations.

Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Engineering Services 2013-52
dated November 13, 2013 regarding Queen Street/Parkview Crescent (East Leg)
- All Way Stop Review.

The Commissioner of Development and Infrastructure Services and the Director
of Engineering Services recommend:

a) THAT Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Engineering Services
2013-52 dated November 13, 2013 regarding Queen Street/Parkview Crescent
(East Leg) - All Way Stop Review be received and the following recommendation
be adopted:

i) THAT the existing stop control at the Queen Street and Parkview Crescent
(east leg) remain as existing due to not meeting the warrants outlined in the
Transportation Management Policy as approved by Town Council, and also due
to safety concerns noted in Community Services Report - ES 2013-52, based on
the Ministry of Transportation requirements.

Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Engineering Services 2013-53
dated October 25, 2013 regarding GO Railway Pedestrian Crossing Anti-
Whistling, Mile 34.89.

The Commissioner of Development and Infrastructure Services and the Director
of Engineering Services recommend:

a) THAT Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Engineering Services
2013-53 dated October 25, 2013 regarding GO Railway Pedestrian Crossing
Anti-Whistling, Mile 34.89be received and the following recommendation be
adopted:

i) THAT the Town not proceed with a whistle ban proposal at the GO pedestrian
crossing (mile 34.89) located at Deviation Road.

Town of Newmarket | Committee of the Whole Agenda — Monday, November 25, 2013

p. 86

p. 92




Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Engineering Services 2013-54 p. 96
dated October 28, 2013 regarding the Traffic By-law (By-law 2011-24) -
Housekeeping Amendments.

The Commissioner of Development and Infrastructure Services and the Director
of Engineering Services recommend:

a)THAT Development and Infrastructure Services Report — ES2013-54 dated
October 28, 2013 regarding Traffic By-law (By-law 2011-24) be received and the
following recommendations be adopted:

i) THAT the definition of Personal Mobility Device be deleted, and the new
definition be added;

Personal mobility device is a compact motorized transportation device used to
allow greater freedom of movement. Personal mobility devices include forms like
motorized wheel chairs, motorized mobility scooters, and Segways.

i) AND THAT the errors noted in Appendix A of this report be amended with the
recommended wording;

i) AND THAT Gorham Street at Harry Walker Parkway, 1 way eastbound on
Gorham Street in Schedule Ill (Stops Signs) be deleted, and that Harry Walker
Parkway at Gorham Street be added to Schedule VIl (Signaled Intersections);

iv) AND THAT Schedule IX be amended by removing ‘Lockwood Circle — North
East’ and removing ‘Stonehaven Avenue & Kingsmere Avenue — South East’,
and adding ‘Stonehaven Avenue & Kingsmere Avenue/Lockwood Circle — North
East’;

v) AND THAT the additional stop sign location in Appendix B be added to
Schedule Il (Stop Signs);

vi) AND THAT the necessary Bylaws be prepared and submitted to Council for
their approval.
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15.

16.

Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Engineering Services 2013-55
dated October 29, 2013 regarding School Crossing Locations Request - Maple
Leaf Public School.

The Commissioner of Development and Infrastructure Services and the Director
of Engineering Services recommend:

a) THAT Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Engineering Services
2013-55 dated October 29, 2013 regarding School Crossing Locations Request -
Maple Leaf Public School be received and the following recommendation be
adopted:

i) THAT the Maple Leaf Public School administration be forwarded a copy of this
report and Council extract and be encouraged to pursue school bus options with
the parents on the east side of Main Street North.

Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Engineering Services 2013-56
dated November 7, 2013 regarding a Request for Final Acceptance and
Assumption of Aboveground Works - Landmark Estates Residential Subdivision,
Phase 1 - Clearmeadow Boulevard between Yonge Street and Jordanray
Boulevard/Rannie Road.

The Commissioner of Development and Infrastructure Services and the Director
of Engineering Services recommend:

a) THAT Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Engineering Services
2013-56 dated November 7, 2013 regarding a Request for Final Acceptance and
Assumption of Aboveground Works - Landmark Estates Residential Subdivision,
Phase 1, Clearmeadow Boulevard between Yonge Street and Jordanray
Boulevard/Rannie Road be received and the following recommendations be
adopted:

i) THAT the request for final acceptance and assumption of aboveground works
on Clearmeadow Boulevard between Yonge Street and Jordanray
Boulevard/Rannie Road within the Landmark Estates Residential Subdivision -
Phase 1 as shown on the attached map be finally accepted and assumed by the
Town;

i) AND THAT Mr. Tony Orsi of Landmark Estates (1209104 Ontario Ltd.) and Mr.
Andrew Ip, P.Eng., of Masongsong Associates Engineering Ltd. be notified of
these recommendations.
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17.

18.

Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Planning and Building
Services 2013-55 dated November 14, 2013 regarding Application for Zoning
By-law Amendment - Main Street Clock Inc.

The Commissioner of Development and Infrastructure Services and the Director
of Planning and Building Services recommend:

a) THAT Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Planning and
Building Services 2013-55 dated November 14, 2013 regarding Application for
Zoning By-law Amendment - Main Street Clock Inc. be received and the
following recommendations be adopted:

i) THAT the Application for Zoning By-law Amendment, as submitted by Main
Street Clock Inc., for lands being located at the southwest corner of Main Street
South and Park Avenue, municipally known as 178, 180, 184, 188, 190 and 194
Main Street be referred to a public meeting;

i) AND THAT following the public meeting, issues identified in this report,
together with comments from the public, Committee, and those received through
the agency and departmental circulation of the application be addressed by staff
in a comprehensive report to the Committee of the Whole, if required;

i) AND THAT Mr. Chris Bobyk, The Forrest Group, 590 Alden Road, Suite 211,
Markham, ON LR 8N2 be notified of this action.

Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Planning and Building
Services 2013-58 dated November 14, 2013 regarding Heritage Designation - 27
Main Street North.

The Commissioner of Development and Infrastructure Services and the Director
of Planning and Building Services recommend:

a) THAT Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Planning and
Building Services 2013-58 dated November 14, 2013 regarding Heritage
Designation - 27 Main Street North be received and the following
recommendations be adopted:

i) THAT Council not proceed with the Heritage designation of the Murray House
at 27 Main Street North;

i) AND THAT Council withdraw the notice of intention to designate the property
known as the Murray House at 27 Main Street North;
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19.

20.

i) AND THAT Bonseph (Tannery) Ltd., and 2213305 Ontario Inc., c/o Sterling
Silver Development Corporation, Attention: Ken Kirsch, 53 The Links Road,
Toronto, ON M2P 1T7 be advised of this decision;

iv) AND THAT Mr. Brian Feherty and Associates Ltd., 411 Queen Street,
Newmarket, ON L3Y 2G9 be advised of this decision.

Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Planning and Building
Services 2013-59 dated November 14, 2013 regarding Application for Official
Plan Amendment, Zoning By-law Amendment, Draft Plan of Condominium and
Draft Plan of Subdivision - 292145 Ontario Limited.

The Commissioner of Development and Infrastructure Services and the Director
of Planning and Building Services recommend:

a) THAT Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Planning and
Building Services 2013-59 dated November 14, 2013 regarding Application for
Official Plan Amendment, Zoning By-law Amendment, Draft Plan of
Condominium and Draft Plan of Subdivision - 292145 Ontario Limited be
received and the following recommendations be adopted:

i) THAT the Application for Official Plan Amendment, Zoning By-law Amendment,
Draft Plan of Condominium and Draft Plan of Subdivision, as submitted by
292145 Ontario Limited for lands being composed of Part of Lot 89, Concession
1, E.Y.S. be referred to a public meeting;

i) AND THAT following the public meeting, issues identified in this report,
together with comments of the public, Committee and those received through the
agency and departmental circulation of the application, be addressed by staff in
a comprehensive report to the Committee of the Whole, if required; iii) AND
THAT Mr. Gary Templeton, Templeton Planning Ltd., 71 Tyler Street, Aurora,
ON L4G 2N1 be notified of this action.

List of Outstanding Matters.
Recommendation:

a) THAT the list of Outstanding Matters be received.
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22.

(ADDED) Joint CAO/Corporate Services Report - Financial Services 2013-50
dated November 11, 2013 regarding the 2013 Audit.

The Chief Administrative Officer, the Commissioner of Corporate Services and
the Director of Financial Services/Treasurer recommend:

a) THAT Joint CAO/Corporate Services Report - Financial Services 2013-50
dated November 11, 2013 regarding the 2013 Audit be received and the
following recommendations be adopted:

i) THAT BDO Canada be appointed as the Town's auditors for 2013;
i) AND THAT the audit plan presented by BDO be received.

Note: The following report will be considered at 7:00 p.m. at the Newmarket
Theatre.

Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Planning and Building
Services 2013-47 dated October 15, 2013 regarding Application for Official Plan
Amendment, Zoning By-law Amendment and Draft Plan of Subdivision Approval
- Marianneville Developments Ltd.(Glenway).

Recommendations:

a) THAT Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Planning and
Building Services 2013-47 dated October 15, 2013 regarding Application for
Official Plan Amendment - DONP1210, Zoning By-law Amendment - D14NP1210
and Draft Plan of Subdivision - D12NP1210 be received and the following
recommendations be adopted:

i) THAT the applications for Official Plan Amendment - DONP1210, Zoning By-
law Amendment - D14NP1210 and Draft Plan of Subdivision - D12NP1210
submitted on April 20, 2012 be denied due to substantial unresolved technical
issues regarding the proposed form of development as set out within this report.

i) THAT the Without Prejudice Offer in the form as submitted on August 23,
2013 not be accepted.

i) AND THAT Council direct staff and legal counsel to continue to work with the
proponent, commenting agencies and the residents toward the resolution of
issues in advance of the Ontario Municipal Board hearing scheduled for
December 10, 2013 and an eight week Hearing commencing March 3, 2014 with
a view of resolving such issues. Any changes to the issues will be reported to
Council, parties and participants.
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Action Items

Correspondence & Petitions

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

Correspondence dated October 19, 2013 from Mr. Jeff Brown, Glenway
Community Group regarding the Glenway development application. (Related to
ltem 22)

(ADDED) Memorandum from Ms. Ruth Victor, Ruth Victor and Associates dated
November 15, 2013 regarding Application for Official Plan Amendment, Zoning
By-law Amendment and Draft Plan of Subdivision Approval Marianneville
Developments Limited (Glenway) - Responses. (Related to Item 22)

(ADDED) Memorandum from Director of Planning and Building Services dated
November 22, 2013 regarding Development and Infrastructure/Planning and
Building Services report 2013-55, Application for Zoning By-law Amendment
178, 180, 184, 188, 190 and 194 Main Street. (Related to Item 17)

(ADDED-2) Sub-Committee Report — Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee
regarding Clock Tower Development Re-zoning Request. (Related to ltem 17)

(ADDED-2) Correspondence dated November 24, 2013 from Mr. Gord Tozer
regarding Marianneville Developments Ltd. (Glenway). (Related to Item 22)

(ADDED-2) Correspondence dated November 25, 2013 from Mr. and Mrs. B.
Gard regarding Marianneville Developments Ltd. (Glenway). (Related to ltem 22)

(ADDED-2) Correspondence dated November 24, 2013 from Mr. Brian Greiner
regarding Marianneville Developments Ltd. (Glenway). (Related to Item 22)

Reports by Regional Representatives

Notices of Motion

Motions

30.

Councillor Emanuel:

a) THAT Development and Infrastructure Services/Planning and Building
Services Report 2013-47 dated October 15, 2013 regarding Application for
Official Plan Amendment - D9NP1210; Zoning By-law Amendment -
D14NP1210; and Draft Plan of Subdivision - D12NP1210 be received and the
following recommendations be adopted:
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i) THAT the applications for Official Plan Amendment - DONP1210, Zoning By-
law Amendment - D14NP1210 and Draft Plan of Subdivision - D12NP1210
submitted on April 20, 2012 be denied.

i) THAT the Without Prejudice Offer in the form as submitted on August 23,
2013 not be accepted.

i) AND THAT the Council direct staff to advise the Ontario Municipal Board that
the Town will be seeking consideration for a two-staged hearing process that
would first allow for discussion and ruling on the principle of development.

iv) AND THAT Council direct staff to engage outside legal/planning counsel who
have Ontario Municipal Board expertise and experience in defending the
principles of development. (Related to Item 22)

31. (ADDED) Regional Councillor Taylor:
a) THAT staff bring back a report to Committee of the Whole within 120 days
exploring a change to our procurement process to include recognition/points in
our tendering process recognizing the environmental benefit of the bidders’
proximity to Newmarket. The report should include any examples in Canada of

municipalities currently engaged in recognizing the benefit of local procurement
as well as an analysis of all relevant issues.

New Business

Closed Session

The Closed Session Agenda and Reports will be circulated under separate cover
(Goldenrod).

32. (ADDED) Newmarket - Tay Power Distribution Ltd. Report of the President dated
November 1, 2013 regarding Director Search. (Personal matters about an
identifiable individual, including municipal employees or local board employees)

33. (ADDED) Marianneville Developments Ltd. (Glenway) (Ward 7) (Litigation
matters before administrative tribunals)

Public Hearing Matters

Adjournment
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TOWN QOF NEWMARKET
Lagisiative Bervices Departrmant
395 Mulock Drive wyow. newmarket.oa

Newma rket P.O. Box 328 clerks@newmarket.ca
Mewmarket, ON L3Y 4X7 B05.895 51463

Request for Deputation

Request for deputation and/or any written submissions and background
information for consideration by either Council or Committee of the Whole
must be submitted to the Legislative Service's Department by the following
deadline:

For Council - by 12 noon on the Wednesday immediately prior to the
requested maeting.

For Committee of the Whole (for items not on the agenda) - by 12 noon on the
Wednesday twelve days prior to the requested meeting.

PLEASE PRINT

COUNCIL/COMMITTEE DATE: () or\cicw’ tovembey :
AGENDA ITEM NO, SUBJECT: C.’Q.M’Ja \ﬁxv"\ &0\3
NAME: D‘:‘m\&\@ 2&&@% -

ADDRESS: _ 5 0% @?ﬂ"\‘uf AN D" e Sw‘rﬁ e,

Strest AddmL\ am l\’%g; %55;./!

Bostal Cardn

Town/City )
PHONE: HOME: / BUSINESS. -

FAXNO.; | : -MAIL ADDRESS: i

NAME OF GROUP OR PERSON({S) BEING REPRESENTED (if applicable)

M"\'EJ( \/\l&‘f \/Ck-*\é» Q.aé’%\on

BRIEF STATEMENT OF ISSUE OR PURPOSE OF DEPUTATION

1o mﬁa(ﬁ%, Chun c\\ on \isﬂw ac;{’\\! ln{;%; C{ﬂéﬁ

celoheater Mo staon=r ck‘lmwe,( S.hm wipLh
M o oF sewock

Parsanal information on this form will be used for the purposes of sending corespondence refating lo matters befare Courncll, Your
name, addrass, comments, and any other personaf information, is collested and mainfsined for the purpose of crealing a record
that fa avallable to the general public in a hard copy farmat and on the infernst in an electronle formet pursuant tc Seotion 27 of the
Munigipat Freadom of information and Protection of Privacy Act, R.8.0. 1880, ¢.M.56, as amendad, Questions about this collection
should be diracted fo the Director of Legislativa Sarvices/Town Clark, Town of Newmarkef, 395 Mulock Drive, P.Q. Box 328, 8TN
Main, Newmarket, ON L3Y 4X7; Tefephone 908 B95-5183 Ext. 2211 Fax 905-8953-5100,
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Collins Barrow

Chartered Accountants Cofing Barrow Kawarlhas LLP
272 Gharlotts Sirest
Peterborough, Ontarin
KGJ 2v4
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT T, 708, 742.83418
To the Shareholder of TR raa. 9T
Newmarket Hydro Holdings inc. www.colinsbarrowkawarthas. com

Report on the Consolidlated Financial Statements

We have audited the sccompanying consolidated financial statements of Newmarket Hydro Holdings Ing.,
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2012, and the consolidated
staternents of retained earnings, Income and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Stafements

Managemant is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal
controls as management determines are necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from matetial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our aydit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to oblain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstaterent,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement,
including the assesament of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due fo fraud or error. in making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal controls
relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial staternents in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the ciroumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal controls. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by menagement, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consoiidated
financial staterments,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate {o provide a basis for
our audit opinion,

Qupinfon

In our opinion, the consciidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. as at December 31, 2012, and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the vear then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepied accounting
principles.

Colleng Barrow Kawarthas LLF

Chartered Accountants
Licensed Public Accouniants

Peterborough, Ontario
April 24, 2013
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NEWMARKET HYDRO HOLDINGS INC,

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
Ag at Qec&mber 3, 2012

2012 201
$ 3
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash 7,843,135 5,380,854
Short-term investments (nota 33 3,338,347 3,165,825
Accounis receivable B 947 648 B,126,108
Unbilled revenue B 525242 9,527,083
Irvventory 947,105 832,082
Prepaid expenses 305,761 367,857
income taxes receivable 915,112 746,050
31,013,400 28,196,937
Other agsets
Property, plant and equipment {note 4) 53,885 877 §1,628,603
Future incorme faxes {note 13) 3.560.000 3,870,000
57445 877 £5 688 503
88 4540 277 83765 440
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Gurrant liabilities
Accounts payable and acerued liabilities (note 5) 10,639,461 10,736,770
Due 1o shareholder 87,412 87,412
Current portion of deposits held 325,000 325,000
11,051,863 11,149,182
Long-term liabilities _
Long-term debt {note 6) 24,742 821 24742821
Deposits held 3,006,717 3,044 384
Employes future berefits (note 7) 1,058,572 874,341
Deferral acoounts (note 8) 4 739270 1,666,827
33,638,380 30,328,073
44 890,243 41,477,285
Non-controlling interest (note 10} 2 B06 574 2,815 304
Shareholder's equity
Share capital {(note 113 29,809,342 29,609,342
Retained samings 11,263,118 9803448
40,872 460 39,602, 791
88,459,277 83,795 440

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financlal statements

1
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Chartared Accounianis
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NEWMARKET HYDRO HOLDINGS INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RETAINED EARNINGS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

2012 2011

3 $

Retained earnings - beginning of year 9,863,449 B.810,5848
Net income for the year 2,821,669 2,680,401
Dividends {note 12) {1,452 000) (1,597 600)
Retained earnings - end of year 11,263 118 9,893 449

The accompanying netes are an integral part of these finanvial staterments

2
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NEWMARKET HYDRO HOLDINGS INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended December 31, 2012

2012 2011

Sales
Service ravenus (note 8)
Cost of power revenue

13,078,618 16,286,474
58,954,390 §7,184,583

Other operating income 1,126,208 926,702
Investment income 58,831 659,485
interest income 164,521 100,474

Cost of power purchased

73,384,668 74,566,718
58 654 380 57,184,583

Gross profit

14,430,278 17,382 135

Expenses
Amortization
Administration
8ystem operation and maintenance
Customer billing and collecting
Interest on long-term debt

2,661,719 4,582,377
2,641,334 2,817,670
2,239,264 2,133,367
1,928,847 1,810,613
1,331,880 1,344,084

10,800,054 12,669,001

Income before undernoted itgms and Income taxes

3.630,224 4,713,134

Other income (expenss)

Non-controlling interest (note 10) {81,180} {75,136}
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 179,701 {488,840}
98 521 {564,876}

Income before income taxes

Provigion for income taxes {note 13)
Current
CFuture

3728748 4,148,158

497,076 1.247.757
410,0C0 250,600

907,076 1.467,757

2,821 669 2,680,401

Net income for the year

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial statements

3
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NEWMARKET HYDRO HOLDINGS INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the vear ended December 31, 2042

2012 201
3 $
CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED FOR)
Operating activities
Net income for the year 2,821,869 2,680,401
items not affecting cash
Amortization 2,861,718 4,562,377
Future income taxes 410,000 250,000
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and egquipment (179,701) 489 8B40
Employes future benefits 185,231 55,299
Increase in non-contralling interest (note 10) 81,180 75,136
5,080,098 8,113,083
Change in non-cash working capital items {note 14) (299 268) (1,742,125}
5 680,830 6,370,628
investing ac‘:tivitiaé . e o
‘Purchase of property, plant and equipment (6,334,838 {6,192 880}
Procaeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,505,447 16,792
Defarral accounts 3,072,743 1,081,595
{1,666 64%) {4,084 263}
Financing activities
Proceeds of long-term dabt - 1,000,000
Diividends paid {1,452,000) (1,597,500)
| (1,452,000) __(597,500)
Increase in cash 2,562,181 1,689,135
Cash - beginning of year 5 380 954 3,691 819
Cash - end of year 7.843 135 5,380,954

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of these financial statements

4
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NEWMARKET HYDRO HOLDINGS INC,
NOTEE TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCGIAL STATEMENTS
For the vear ended December 31, 2012 w

1 NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. ("the Company®) was incorporated April 10, 2000 under the
Business Corporationg Act of the Provinge of Ontario. The Company commenced operations on
November 1, 2000, Newmarket Hydro Hoidings inc. is wholly-owned by the Town of Newmarket.

The principal activity of the Company is to distribute electricity to the residents and businesses in
the Town of Newmarket and the Township of Tay under a licence issuad by the Ontario Energy
Board (OEB). The Company is regulated by the OEB and adjustments to its distribution rates
require QEB approval.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
fa) Consolidation

These financial staterments have besn prepared in accordance with Canadian generally

accepted accounting principles ("GAAP"). The consolidated financial statements include the

acgounts of its subsidiary, Newmarket-Tay Power Distribution LTO, Tay Hydro Inc, has a 7%
© intersst in Newmarket-Tay Power Distribution Ltd.

' b} Etectricity fegéfatfcn

The Company is subject to rate regulation by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB). The OEE is
charged with the responsibility of approving rates for the transmission and distribution of
electricity. The following regulatory policy is practiced in a rate regulated environment:

" Peferral accounts -

Deferral accounts consist of deferred qualifying transition costs and various rate and retall
variance accounts. - Deferral accounts inciude amounts recoverable and repayable. The
amounts included In these accounts are deferred for accounting purposes because it is
probable that they will be recovered {repaid) in future rates.  Deferral accounts recognized at
December 31, 2012 are disclosed in note 8. The Company continually assesses the
liketihood of the recovery of recoverable assets. If recovery is no longer considered
probable, the amounts are charged to operations in the year the agsessment is made.

{¢) Cash
Cash in bank deposit accounts, at timas, exceeds federally insured limits. The Company has
not experienced any losses in such accounts and befleves it is not exposed to any significant
aredit risk on cash, '

{t}  Short-ferm Investments

Invesiments are recorded at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses as a result of fair value
adjustments at year end are included in investment income for the year.

't Collins Barrow

P Y

Charterad Acoouniants
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NEWMARKET HYDRO HOLDINGS INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended Decembar 31, 2012

2. SIGNIFIGANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES, continued
(&) Inveniory '

Invaentory Is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value with cost being determined
on a weighted average basis.

0 Propetty, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. The Company provides for amortization

uging the straightline method at rates designed to amaortize the cost of the property, plant
and equipment over thelr estimated usefil lives. The annual amortization rates are as

folfows:
Buildings 25 10 30 years
Transmission and distribution 40 to 50 years
Office and computer equipment Sto 10 years
Leagsshold improvements 7 years
Computer software : 3 to 5 years
Operational equipment 0t 15 years
Transportation equipment 510 10 years
Land rights 30 years

Contributions for capital construction consist of third party coniributions toward the cost of
constructing distribution assets.  The third party contribution is caloulated through an
sconomic evaluation as per the QER Distribution Service Code. Contributed ¢apital amounts
are recorded as received and amortized over the same period as the asset to which they
refate being 30 to 80 years.

{o) Related parfy transactions

Related party transactions are in the normal course of operations and have bean measured
at the exchange amount which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by
the refated parties. Details of related party transactions and balances are disclosed in note
9.

(h) Employee future benefits

The Company pays certain health, dental and life Insurance benefits on behalf of its retired
empioyees. The Company recognizes these post-retirement costs in the period in which the
employees earn the benefits, The cost of employee future benefits earnad by amployees is
actuarisily defermined using the projected benefit method prorated on length of service and
management's best estimate of salary escalation, retirement ages of employees, employee
turnover and expected health and dental care costs. The most recent actuarial valuation of
the obligation was performed for December 31, 2012, Detalls related to the post-employment
benefits are detailed in note 7.

U Collins Barrow
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NEWMARKET HYDROQ HOLDINGS INC.
NOTES 7O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended December 34, 2012

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

(i

0

{k}

a

Income taxes

Under the Electricity Act, 1988, the Campany is requirad to make payments in lisu of income
taxes (PILS) to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation (OEFQC). Futurs ingome taxes are
calculated using the liabifity method of tax accounting. in providing for corporate income
taxes, temporary differences between the tax basts of assets or liabilities and their canrying
amournts are reflected as future incormne taxes. Tha tax rates anticipated to be in effect when
these temporary differences reverse are used to caloulate Riture ihcome taxes. Additional
details related to the calculation and method of accounting for PILS is included in note 13,

Managemeant astimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally acceptad
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reparted amounts of assets and fiabilities and disclosyre of pontingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial staterments, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period.

Key areas where management has made complex or subjective judgments (often as a result
of matters that are inherertly uncertain) include, among others, the fair value of certain
assets, useful fives of capital assets, impairment of assels, inventory provisions,
amartization, revenues, allowance for doubthul accounts, environmental and asset refirement
obligations, post-retirement benefits and income taxes. Actual results could differ from these
and other estimates, the impact of which would be recorded in future pericds.

Revenue recogrfion

Service revenue is recorded on the basis of regular meter readings and estimated customer
usage since the last meter reading date to the end of the period. The related cost of power
revenue i recorded on the basis of the power bilied by the Independent Electricity System
Operator. Other operating revenue is recorded when services are provided.

Assel retiramant obligations

Canadian generally accepted accounting principles require the Company fo determing the
fair value of the future expenditures required to settle legal obligations to remove fixed assels
on retirement. 1If reasconably estimable, a fiability is recognized equal to the present value of
the estimated future removal expendituras.

Some of the Company's assets may have asset retirement obligations.  As the Company
axpacts to use the majority of its fixed assets for an indefinite period, no removal costs can
be determined and, consequently, a reasonable estimate of the fair value of any asset
refirement obligations has not been made at this fime.

Collins Barrow

Chartered Accountants
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NEWMARKET HYDRO HOLDINGS INC,
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the yvear ended December 31, 2012

2.

BIGNIFIGANT ACCQUNTING POLICIES, continued

(m) international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

On February 13, 2008 the Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) confirmed that IFRS will be
required to be adopted by publicly accountable enterprises and  certain  government
enterprises for annual reporting purposes for fiscal vears baginning on or after January 1,
2012. On September 10, 2011 the AcSB granted an optional one year deferral of IFRS
adoption for entities subject to rate requiation. Subsequent to this, through a series of
additional one vear extensions, the mandatory change over date for entities with rate
regulated activities has been extended to January 1, 2015, Al s December 2012
meeting, the International Accounting Standards Board (JASB) decided to develop an
interim IFRS on rate regulated activities that "grandfathers” existing recognition and
measurament policies. The Company has elected to continue the deferral of transition to
IFRS, panding resolution of these matters before the (IASB),

The Company is continuing to assess the financial reparting impacts of the adoption of IFRS
and, at this time, the impact on future financial position and results of operastions is
Aot~ reasonably determinable.” The company does anticipate a significant Increase in
disclosure resulting from the adoption of IFRS and is continuing fo assess the level of
disclosure required and any necessary systern changes to gather and process the
information. The impact of new IFRS standards and interpretations not yet effective has also
not been assessed,

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

2012 2011

3 $

Bond - ' 500,000 1,000,000
Mutual bond fund _ 2,839 347 2,165,825

3,330 347 3,185,825

The bond is at a rate of 3.95% (2011 - 3.7% and 3.95%) and is due January 21, 2013.

S

P* Colling Barrow

Chartered Aconuntants




NEWMARKET HYDRO HOLDINGS INC,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2012

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2012 201

Accumulated Net book Net book

Cost amortization valye value

$ % $ 3

Land 3,812,170 " 3,612,170 3,141,958
Buildings 281,708 79,057 202 648 208,823
Trangrolgsion and distribution 02,507,913 45 758,601 48,749,412 45,080,715
Office and computer equipment 735,143 340,603 394,540 440,345
Leasshold improvements 1,012,021 493,137 518,884 570,831
{Computer software 884,545 371,548 512,997 581,884
Cperational equipment 8u6, 762 420,818 275,934 288,998
Transportation equipment 2,969,873 1,760,632 1,209,041 880,150
-Land rights 510,698 100,447 410,251 428,801
103,210,520 40,324,643 53,885 877 51,628,503

During the current year, the Company changed the rates designed to amortize the cost of the
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives, This change decreased current

year amortization expense by $1,832,487.

5 AGCOLUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

2012 2011

$ $

Accounts payable - purchased power 3,745,487 4,202,884
{Hher accounts payable and acorued liakilities 3,695 718 3,685,653
Water and sewer billings payable 1,704,054 1,418,090
Cradits on customer accounts 901,976 1,125,084
Independent Electric System Operator 75,168 75,198
OPA program payable 517,038 329,864
10,638 451 10,736,770

L.ONG-TERM DEBT

2012 2011

$ 3

Note payable, 8.48% - Town of Newmarket 22,000,000 22,000,000
Note payable, 5.48% - Township of Tay 1,742,821 1,742,821
Committed term facility, 3.07%, due Dacember 31, 2014 1,000,000 1,000,000
24,?‘42‘35? 24,742,821

.
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NEWMARKET HYDRO HOLDINGS INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

&, LONG-TERM DEBT, continued

The notes are unsecured and ha'\fék ho sh@ciﬁc terms c:f répaymehts. 'S‘inca the haidersa of the
notes have indicated that it s not their intention to request payment of this amount during the next
fiscal year, this amount has been classified as a non-current liability in the agcompanying financial
slaternernts.

The committed term facility was drawn for the purpose of the purchase of smart meters. The
Company i required to make monthly interest payments only with 100% of the remaining balance
due December 31, 2014, At December 31, 2012 the Company was in compliance of all
chvenants.

7. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

The Company provides certain health, dental and life insurance benefits for retired employess
pursuant fo the Company's policy. The accrued benefit obligation and net periodic expense for
the year were determined by actuarial va!uatncm The most recent valuation was performed for
.{Jec:ambar 31, 2012

-~ The urgamomzetf past service cost ebﬁgation resuiting from the inclusion of the former Tay Hydro
Electrié Distribution Company inc. employees in the plan, is being amortized over the remaining
service life of those employees, being 11 years with 6 years remaining to be amortized,

Significant actuarial assumptions employed for the valuations are as follows: future general
inflation level of 2.5%, discount rate of 3.9%, salary and wage level increases at 3.3% per annum.
A 7.83% annual increase in the per capita cost for heaith benefits was used for 2012, This rate will
increase o 8% for 2013, and decréase to 7.47% for 2014; 6.93% for 2015, 6.4% for 2016; 5.87%
for 2017; 5.33 for 2018, 4.8% for 2019 and thereafter. A 5% annual rate of increase in the per
capita cost of covered dental costs was used for 2012, This rate will increase to 8.88% for 2013,
8.5 for 2014, 8.13% for 2015, 5.75% for 2016, 5.38% for 2017, 5.0% for 2018 and thereafter.
Information about the Ccrﬁpany‘s defined benefit plan is included in the table which follows.

2012 2011

3 $

Accrued Beneflt Obligation, beginning of period 874,341 819,042
Current service cost 147,661 83,687
Amortization of past service costs 13,204 13,204
Benefits paid : (33,422) o {41,592)

Actusrial loss _ _ 57,888 -

. L 1,068,672 (874,341
_Unamorlized past service costs " _ ?’G_‘421 83,625 7
1,129,883 QA7 066

10
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NEWMARKET HYDRO HOLDINGS INC,
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

8.

DEFERRAL ACCOUNTS

As described in note 2(b) the Company has recorded the following deferral accounts:

5012 5011

$ $
Deferral accounts approved for recovery 2,130,324 2,008,502
Recoverad to date (2,878,320) (1,822,067)
© Repgyment - payment in lieu deferral account (1,333 038) -
(1,881,032) 274,435
Power purchased for resale (819,158) (1,517,398)
Smart meters (380,407) {402.038)
Change in useful life of property, plant and equipment {1,762 868) -
Retail settiements and other 104,294 (23,531)

{(4,739.270)  {1,666,527)

Pursuant to The Ontario Energy Board Decision on EB 2011-0184 the Company is returning an
unintentional over collection of charges related to Payments in Lieu of Taxes. These charges
were collected from 2002 to 2006. The repayment of the amounts due will continue through the
2014 fiscal year.

In addition, as indicated in note 4, the Company has adjusted the estimate useful life related to the
amortization period for certain capltal assets, based upon the Ontario Energy’s Board regulatory
accounting direction as contained in the revised 2012 Accounting Procedures Handbook for
Electricity Distributors. As z result of OEB direction related to the setllement of these amounts,
the Company has recorded a payable in the deferral account of §1,762,969 and a reduction in
gervice revenus,

ADVANCES FROM RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

{a) During the year, the Company entered into transactions with its majority parent, Newmarket
Hydro Holdings Inc. (NHHI and with The Town of Newmarket which s the sole shargholder
of Newmarket Hydra Holdings Inc. Revenue charged during the year included energy, street
light capital and street light maintenance charged at commercial rates to the Town of
Newmarkat.

ingluded in accounts payable (note 5) are water and sewer amounts collected which are due
to the Town. These amounts are collected and remitted in accordance with & confract with
URB Otameter and remitted on their behalf.
included in long term debt {note B) are notes payable to related parties.

by Transactions

These transactions are measured at the exchange amourt, which is the amount of
consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

11
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NEWMARKET HYDRO HOLDINGS INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

9. ADVANCES FROM RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS continued

by Transactions, continued

2012 2011
3 3
Revenue

Energy sales 3,642, 868 3,247 808
Services - Street light capital _ © 4,087 12,181
Services - Street light maintenance 267 809 267,809
3814874 3,527 808

Expanses
tnterest 1,205,600 1,246,300
Rant property tax and other 382 244 300,371

1,587 844 1636671

{c) The following amount is due from the Town of Newmarket and included it the financial

statements:
2012 2011
$ ;]
Accounts recaivable : 318,308 345 378
19. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
The changes in non-controfling inferest consist of:
2012 201
3 3
Balance - beginning of the year 2,815,394 2,740,258
Propostional share of income 187,180 186,636
Proportional share of dividends paid {1 jG,i}{}i’J} {141 55.(}{}}
Balance - end of the year 2,896,574 2815304

12
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NEWMARKET HYDRO HOLDINGS INC,
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

11, SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized

Unlimited number of common shares

lssued
2012 2011
$ $
201 common shares 29,600,342 29,609,342

12. DIVIDENDS

During the year the Company declared and paid $1,452,000 of dividends, An additional $214,285
was declared and paid, however, was loaned to Newmarket-Tay Power Distribution LTD. and
eliminated upon congolidation. $116,000 of this amount was charged against the non-controfling

interest as described in note 10,

13. INCOME TAXES

a) The components of fulure income tax balances are as follows:

2012 2011
$ 3
Future income tax asset _
Tax basis of equipment in excess of carrying amount 2,867,000 3,414,000
- Reserves deductible when paid 313,000 247,600
Cumulative eligible capital available for tax purposes 280,000 309,000
3,560,000 3,970,000

13
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NEWMARKET HYDRO HOLDINGS INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

13. INCOME TAXES, continued

b) The provision for income taxes recorded in the financial statements differs from the amount
which would be obtained by applying the statutory income tax rate of 26.5% (2011 - 31%} to

the incame for the years as follows:

2012 2011
$ $
Income for the year before income faxes 3,725000 4,148,000
Anticipated income tax expense 888,185 1,285,880
Effect of items not deductible for tax purposes 3,975 8,478
Impact of tax rate changes and other (85,084) 173,402
Income tax expenssa eQ7.076 1,487 757
14: - STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
‘ — | 2012 2011
3 $
Incresse in short-derm investments (173,522) (130,978)
increass in accounts receivable (821,542) {1,320,4986)
Decrease in unbilled revenus 1,001,781 369,360
increase in inveniory (114,143) (131,708)
increase in prepaid expenses (27,804) (244,417)
Increase in income taxes receivable _ (118,062) (448,279
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable and accrued fabilities (97,318) 673,528
Increase {(decrease) in deposits held 52,333 (509,138)
(299 288} {1,742, 125)
Interast paid 1,362,638 1,344,884
Income taxes baid 1,213,600 1,714,038

14
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NEWMARKET HYDRO HOLDINGS INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

18.

1.

SHORT TERM CREDIT FACILITIES

The Company has $3,500,000 available in operating facilities from a major chartered bank. The
faciliies are 364 day revolving operating loan, bearing intersst at prime plus 0.5%, to be repaid
within one year from date of acquisition unless extended by the bank. A standby fee of 10 basis
points, payable quarterly in arrears applies to any unused portion of the facliity. As at the balance
sheat date, the Company has no balance guistanding on this faclity. The operating loan includes
restrictive clauses with respect to repaymant.

in addition, the Company has provided prudential support in the amount of $2,765,840 to the
independent Electricity System Operator.  The prudential support is secured by & letter of credit
with & major chartered bank for $2,765,940 and containg restrictive clauses with respect to debt
repayments,

A general security agreement covering all assets of the Company has been pledged as security
for the opaerating loans and term facility.
PENSION AGREEMENT

The Cbmpany makes contributions fo the Ontaric Municipal Employeas’ Retirement Fund
(OM.E.R.8.), which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of its employees. The plan Is a defined

© berefit plan which specifies the amount of retirement benefits to be received by the employees

based on the length of service and rates of pay.

The amf}urit cantributed to O.M.E.R.8. for the year ended was $388,294 (2011 - §331,006).

18
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NEWMARKET HYDRO HOLDINGS INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2042

17. CAPITAL DISCLOBURES

The Company's primary objective when managing capital is t¢ address the expectations as
provided in the Shargholder Agreement befween the Company's parent company, Newmarket
Hydra Holdings Inc, and s shareholder, the Town of Newmarket. The expectation is that the
Company will maintain a prudent financial structure in order to safeguard the Company's assets
and to provide adequale returns for its shareholders and benefits to the stakeholders.

The Ontario Energy Board sets rates based on a deemed capital structure of 80% debt and 40%
aquity.

Changes to the Company's capital structure are constrained by existing covenants contained in
the banking agreement. The Company must maintain a maxirmum debt o capitalization ratio of
0,60 to 1 and maintain a debt service coverage ratio of 1.2,

The Company's current capital structure is defined as follows:

3012 2011
| $ $
Long-term debt 24,742,821 23,742 821

24,742 821 23,742,821

202 2011

$ $
Share capital 20,609,342 29,808,342
Retained eamings 11,263,118 8,893,449

Non-controlling interest 2,896 574 2815394

43760034 42318185

16
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NEWMARKET HYDRO HOLDINGS INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

18, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial mnstruments consist of recorded amounts of gash, mutual funds, bhonds, accounts
receivable and unbilled revenue which will result iy future cash receipts, as well as accounts
payable and accrued liabilities, customer deposits, accounts payable and accruals, advances
payable and long term debt which will result in future cash outflows.

The Company does not belleve that it is exposed to significant foreign exchange risk.
The Company Is exposed fo the following risks in respect of certain financial instruments held:
(@) Fairvalue

The carrying value of the accounts receivable and accounts payable and accrued liabilities
aporoximate their fair value due o their short-term nature.

The shori-term investments are carried at fair value, with changes in value recognized in
income in the year.

The fair value of the advances from parent company detailed in note 9 are less than carrying
value, as the amounts have no terms of repayment, the fair value cannot be calculated with
any degree of cartainty.

The carr:.}ing valug of longderm debl approximates the falr value as the interest rates are
consigtent with the current rates offered to the Company for debt with similar terms.

(b} Interast rate risk

The Company manages its exposure to interest rate risk through a combination of fixed and
floating rate borrowings. The fixed rate debt (note B) is subject to interest rate price risk, as
the value will fluctuate as a result of changes in market rates. The fleating rate credit facifity
{note 15} is subject to interest rate cash flow risk, as the required cash flows to service the
debt will fluctuate as a result of changes in market rates,

(¢} Cradit risk

Credlt risk arises from the potential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations.
The Company is exposed to credit risk from customers. However, the Company has a
sighificant number of customers which minimizes the conceniration of credit risk.  An
allowance for collection of doubtful accounts in the amount of $214,887 (2011 -3211,474)
has been recor

{d) Market risk

The securities held as short term investments exposes the company to market risk due to
the potential for changes in market prices.
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NEWMARKET HYDRO HOLDINGS INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, continued
(2) Liguidity risk

The Company does have a liquidity risk in the accounts payable and accrued liabilities of
$10,639,451 (2011 - $10,736,770). Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company cannot repay
its obligations when they become due to its creditors. The Company reduces its exposure to
liquidity risk by ensuring that it documents when authorized payments become due;
‘maintaing an adequate line of credit to repay trade creditors and repays long term debt
interest and principal as they become due. In the opinion of management the liquidity risk
exposure to the Company is low and is not material,

18, COMMITMENTS
The company has an operating lease agreement with the Town of Newmarket, expiring December

31, 2017 for the rental of the building. Minimum lease payments over the next five year period
under this commitment are as follows;

$

2013 275,000
2014 275,000
2015 275,000
2016 - 275,000
2017 275,000
1,375,000

18
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NEWMARKET HYDRO HOLDINGS INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

20. CONTINGENCIES

{a) In the normal course of business, the Company enters into agresments that meet the
definition of a guarantes, The guarantees include indemnities under lease agreements, purchase
and sale agreements, confidentiality agreements, outsourcing, service and information
agreements., The nature of these indemnification agreements prevents the Company from
making a reasonable estimate of the maximum exposure due to the difficulties in assessing the
amount of fiability related to the likelihood and predictability of future events, Historically, the
Company has not made any significant payments under gimilar indemnification agreements and
therefore no amount has been accrued in the balance sheet with respect to these agreements.

{b) Indemnity has been provided to all directors and/or officers of the Company for various items
including, but not fimited to, all costs to settle suits or actions due to association with the
Company, subject to certain restrictions. The Company has purchased directors’ and officers’
iability Insurance to mitigate the cost of any potential suits or actions. The amount of any
potential future liability which exceeds the amourt of insurance coverage cannot reasonably be
determined.

{¢) The Company participates with other municipal utiiies in Ontario in an agreement to
. exchange reciprocal contracts of indemnity through the Municipal Electric Association Reciprocal
- Insurance Exchange. Under this agreement, the Company is contingently liable for additional
assessments 1o the extent that premiums collected are not sufficient to cover actual losses,
claims and costs experienced,

2% COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

The financial statemants have been raclagsified, where applicable, to conform to the presentation
ysed in the current year. The changes do not affect prior year sarnings.
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/ 59{() Steven Court, Newmarket, Ontario L3Y 622

Tek:  [905] 895-2309
NEWMAET 4 F:x: [205] 895-8931

Email: nmhydro@nmhydro.ca

Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc.

November 5, 2013

Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc.
Report of the President

TO: Town of Newmarket Committee of the Whole
SUBJECT: Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. 2012 Annual General Meeting

ORIGIN: President, Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

THAT the Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. Report of the President dated
November 5, 2013 regarding the financial statements of Newmarket Hydro
Holdings Inc. {the “Corporation”), the written resolutions of Newmarket -
Tay Power Distribution Ltd. (“NT Power”) and appointment of the sole
director and auditors be received and the following recommendations be
adopted:

WHEREAS the Corporation of the Town of Newmarket (the “Sole
Shareholder”) is the sole shareholder of the Corporation;

AND WHEREAS the Sole Shareholder by a Shareholder Declaration dated
November 1, 2000 appointed the Mayor as its legal representative for the
purpose of communicating any shareholder consent or approval required
by either the terms of the Shareholder Declaration or the Business
Corporations Act (Ontario) (the “OBCA”});

AND WHEREAS the Corporation owns a majority of the common shares of
NT Power;

AND WHEREAS pursuant to s.102(2) of the OBCA where a body corporate
is the shareholder of a corporation the corporation shall recognize any
individual properly authorized by the body corporate to represent it at
meetings of shareholders of the corporation;

AND WHEREAS pursuant to s.104 of the OBCA a written resolution dealing
with all the matters required to be dealt with at a shareholders meeting and
signed by the shareholders entitled to vote at that meeting satisfies all
requirements of the OBCA relating to that meeting of shareholders;



Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. November 5, 2013
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Newmarket Hydro Heldings Inc. 2012 Annual General Meeting

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Municipal Council of the
Corporation of the Town of Newmarket as follows:

1. THAT the Mayor, as the Sole Shareholder’s legal representative, is
directed to sign the following Corporation Shareholder resolutions:

a. THAT the Corporation’s financial statements for the financial year ended
December 31, 2012 together with the report of the Corporation’s auditors,
Collins Barrow, thereon dated April 24, 2013 be approved and adopted.

b. THAT Collins Barrow, Chartered Accountants, be appointed auditors of
the Corporation to hold office until the next annual meeting of shareholders at
such remuneration as may be fixed by the sole director and the sole director
is authorized to fix such remuneration.

c. THAT R.N. Shelton be appointed as the sole director of the Corporation to
hold office until the next annual meeting of shareholders or until his successor

is elected or appointed.

d. THAT R.N. Shelton, so long as he is the sole director of the Corporation,
shall represent the Corporation at meetings of shareholders of NT Power;

e. AND THAT all acts, contracts, bylaws, proceedings, appointments
elections and payments, enacted, made, done and taken by the sole director
and sole officer of the Corporation to December 31, 2012, as the same are
set out or referred to in the resolutions of the sole director, or in the financial
statements of the corporation, are approved, sanctioned and confirmed.

2. AND THAT the Mayor, as the Sole Shareholder’s legal representative,
direct R.N. Shelton, the sole director and legal representative of the
Corporation, to sign the following NT Power shareholder resolutions in lieu
of an annual meeting:

a. THAT the financial statements of NT Power for the financial year ended
December 31, 2012 together with the report of NT Power's auditors,
Collins Barrow, thereon dated April 24, 2013 be approved and adopted.

b. THAT Collins Barrow, Chartered Accountants, be appointed auditors of
NT Power to hold office until the next annual meeting of shareholders at such
remuneration as may be fixed by the directors and the directors are
authorized to fix such remuneration.
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Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. 20112 Annual General Meeting

¢. THAT T. Van Bynen, S. Warnock, P. Daniels, R. Betts, A. Ott, T. Taylor
and P. Ferguson are elected directors of NT Power to hold office until the next
annual meeting of shareholders or until their successors are elected or
appointed.

d. THAT C. Prattas is elected as a director of NT Power upon the resignation
of T. Taylor

e. AND THAT all acts, contracts, bylaws, proceedings, appointments
elections and payments, enacted, made, done and taken by the directors and
officers of NT Power to December 31, 2012, as the same are set out or
referred to in the resolutions of the board of directors, the minutes of the
meetings of the board of directors or in the financial statements of NT Power,
are approved, sanctioned and confirmed.

Financial Statements of the Corporation

The audited financial statements for the Corporation were presented at a council
workshop on September 23, 2013 and are attached to this report. Mr. [ain
Clinton, Chief Financial Officer of NT Power will be avaitabie at the meeting to
answer questions regarding them.

Appointment of Auditors

The Board of Directors of NT Power recommends the re-appointment of Collins
Barrow for the period January 1 to December 31, 2013 for both the corporation
and NT Power.

Election of Directors for the Corporation

Upon the merger of Newmarket Hydro Ltd. and Tay Hydro Etectric Distribution
Company Inc. on May 1, 2007, Mr. R.N. Shelton was appointed as the sole
director of the corporation. There has been no change requested by the
Shareholder to this appointment.

Election of Directors — NT Power

The existing directors of NT Power are:

T. Van Bynen, Mayor of the Town of Newmarket
S. Warnock, Mayor of the Township of Tay

R. Betts, Independent Director

Dr. U. Phillip Daniels, Independent Director
Tom Taylor, Independent Director
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Andy Ott, Independent Director
P.D. Ferguson, President of NT Power

Director T. Taylor has indicated he will be resigning from the board of directors of NT
Power (the “Board”) no later than the end of 2014 creating one director vacancy.

In accordance with the NT Power Shareholders Agreement, the Board struck a
Nominating Committee (the ‘Committee’), being the standing Governance and
Compensation Committee consisting of chair P. Daniels, and directors T. Van
Bynen and T. Taylor to; with input from a professional recruiting firm and utilizing
corporate governance best practices, provide the shareholders with a
recommended list of candidates from which to select nominees to be elected
directors with respect to all then vacant director positions or all director positions
which will be vacant as at the next annual general meeting of NT Power. Given
only one vacancy would exist, the Newmarket and Tay shareholders agreed to
forego the requirement to retain a professional recruiting firm.

The Committee recommended a two person slate of candidates to an Ad-Hoc
Joint Committee of the councils of Newmarket and Tay (the “Ad-Hoc Committee)
consisting of:

Newmarket Councillor C. Emanuel
Tay Councillor N. Baumgardner

- Newmarket Councillor D. Kerwin

- Tay Mayor S. Warnock

- Newmarket Mayor T. Van Bynen

Chair
Members

The Ad - Hoc Committee unanimously selected Ms. Cristine Prattas to be
nominated to replace T. Taylor. The report of the Ad-Hoc Committee is attached.

The appointments of The Mayor of Newmarket, the Mayor of Tay and the
President are de facto. The independent directors Betts, Daniels, Taylor and Ott
are eligible for re-appointment.

[Original sighed by]
P.D. Ferguson P.Eng.

President,
Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc.
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Newmarket, ON L3Y 4X7 L COMMISSIONER] N
IDEPARTMENT
Your Horrour, T JCLERKS [//“m

[ am writing on behalf of ﬁhe Board.of D
request to join usin comr{lgmoratlng December 1 as World- Al

request you fo:

CON(_,!:FH\

in ecl:ors of the AIDS Commltte Jof York Reg10n to
S-Pay: To this effect, we

s Issuea proclamation from the Town of Newmarket declaring December 1 as World

AIDS Day.

+ Share a photo of you wearing the enclosed red ribbon for our social media campaign
Red for Change: Wear It, Hold It, Show it for World AIDS Day. We will widely

share this photo on our Facebook page and Twitter feeds during World AIDS

Awareness Week (November 24-30) and on World AIDS Day. This will showcase
your solidarity with people living with this chronic illness in your constituency.

Held on December 1 each year, World AIDS Day provides an opportunity for people
worldwide to unite and show their support for people living with HIV/AIDS, to commemnorate
those who have passed away, and to eliminate stigma and discrimination by raising

awareness about HIV/AIDS,

Anyone can be affected by HIV/AIDS regardless of religion, age, class, race, culture or sexual
orientation. It is estimated that more than 27,000 people in Ontario are living with HIV. In
York Region, there are approximately 420 people who are aware of their status living with
HIV. However, many people remain unaware of their HIV status (almost 26 percent

nationwide) because they have never been tested.

The AIDS Committee of York Region is the only local non-profit organization that provides life
changing supports to people living with and affected by HIV/AIDS. Many people living with
HIV are isolated due to the experience of stigma and discrimination that is compounded by a
lack of awareness in the community, We offer innovative programs, educate our community,
and advocate for those impacted by HIV/AIDS to help them come out of the margins and
reclaim their role as engaged and valued members of our community.

Your exceptional stewardship of various causes has left a great imprint on our work in the
community. Your participation in World AIDS Day activities in York Region will help to
enhance our awareness efforts on behalf of all persons throughout your community living

with and affected by HIV/AIDS.

Please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions. We are finalizing our program and

launching our media campaign, so 1 would appreciate your kind and prompt response.

Kind regards,

/? . &Z\,MQC&/J caGc

Radha Bhardwaj, Executive Director

Providing support and dignified care to those living with and gffected by HIV/AIDS in York Region.




a‘ Town of Newmarket HERITAGE NEWMARKET ADVISORY ®
MINUTES COMMITTEE

Newmarket

Tuesday, October 1, 2013 at 7:00 p.m.
Mulock Room, 395 Mulock Drive

The regular mesting of the Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee was held on Tuesday,
October 1, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. in the Mulock Room at 395 Mulock Drive, Newmarket.

Members
Present: R. Caister
S. Fuller
A. Hart
B. Locke
M. Watts
N. Friend
Councillor Hempen

Absent: Wes Playter

Staff: Barb Mendonca, Administrative Assistant
The meeting was called to order at 7:02 p.m.

Athol Hart in the Chair.

PRESENTATIONS/DEPUTATIONS

1. HERITAGE NEWMARKET ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES —~ OCTOBER 1, 2013
ITEM 1 — SENIOR PLANNER — POLICY/ OFFICIAL PLAN AMENDMENT #10

The Senior Planner — Policy presented the Official Plan Amendment #10 Newmarket
Urban Centres Secondary Plan to the Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee.

Moved by Sandra Fuller
Seconded by Ross Caister

THAT a sub-committee of the Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee be formed
to review the Official Plan Amendment #10 Newmarket Urban Centres Secondary

Plan document and meet with the Senior Planner — Policy in the first two weeks of
November 2013.

CARRIED

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Hempen declared a pecuniary interest in any item regarding Main Street as he has a
business on the street.

Town of Newmarket | Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee | Minutes — October 1, 2013
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ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

None.

2,

HERITAGE NEWMARKET ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES - OCTOBER 1, 2013
ITEM 2 - HERITAGE NEWMARKET ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES

Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee Minutes of September 3, 2013.

Moved by Ross Caister
Seconded by Billie Locke

THAT Councillor Hempen abstain from voting on item 1C) (A by-law will be passed
by Council in the next forty five days regarding the Heritage Conservation District)
due to a conflict of interest;

AND THAT the Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee Minutes of September 3,
2013 bhe approved.

CARRIED

HERITAGE NEWMARKET ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES - OCTOBER 1, 2013
ITEM 3 - CORRESPONDENCE

a) Planning and Building Services letter to property owners and business owners
regarding Heritage Conservation District Plan Lower Main Street South.

b) Town Council Electronic Extract regarding Heritage Conservation District Lower Main
Street South.

¢) Application for Zoning By-law Amendment, 178,180,184,188,190 and 194 Main
Street, Main Street Clock Inc.

Moved by Sandra Fuller
Seconded by Ross Caister

THAT the Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee finds itself unable to
support the Zoning By-law Amendment Application as there is no change
in height or mass of the project since it was last presented to the
Committee;

AND THAT a sub-committee will be struck to supply a detailed report to
Council and the Planning Department.

CARRIED

Town of Newmarket | Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee | Minutes — October 1, 2013




d) Notice of complete application 178,180,184,188,190 and 194 Main Street — Main
Street Clock Inc.

Moved by Sandra Fuller
Seconded by Ross Caister

THAT item d) will contain the same information as item 3 c).
CARRIED
e) Notice of complete application, western terminus of Silken Lauman Drive.

f) Senior Planner — Community Planning - Clock Tower documents.

g) Senior Planner — Community Planning - e-mail regarding the cold storage building at
the Tannery.

h) Ministry of Tourism, Culture and Sport — Ministry’s latest InfoSheet.

Moved by Ross Caister
Seconded by Malcolm Watts

THAT items 2 a), b), ), f), g), h) be received as information.
CARRIED

HERITAGE NEWMARKET ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES — OCTOBER 1, 2013
ITEM 4 — FINANCIAL REPORT

The Treasurer provided a verbal financial report.

Moved by Billie Locke
Seconded by Norman Friend

THAT the verbal Treasurer's report of the Heritage Newmarket Advisory
Committee be received.

CARRIED

HERITAGE NEWMARKET ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES - OCTOBER 1, 2013
ITEM 5 - PLAQUES

a) Site Plagues

The Chair presented three concepts for site plaques. The Treasurer will research
the updated cost of the stand and plaque.

b) Residence Plagues

A replacement plague will be made for the Denne House.

Town of Newmarket | Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee | Minutes — October 1, 2013
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¢} Heritage Location Plagues

The Chair advised that there was no report regarding the heritage location plaque
available at this time.

HERITAGE NEWMARKET ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES ~ OCTOBER 1, 2013
ITEM 6 — INVENTORY SUB-COMMITTEE

Nothing to report.

HERITAGE NEWMARKET ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES — OCTOBER 1, 2013
ITEM 7 — DESIGNATED MAINTENANCE PROPERTY AND CONCERNS

Nothing to report.

HERITAGE NEWMARKET ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES - OCTOBER 1, 2013
ITEM 8 — REPORTS OF COMMITTEE MEMBERS

a) Historical Sgciety

The Historical Society proposes an Old Fire Hall Project to convert the Old Fire Hall
into a suitable space. These include a Regicnal Fire Museum, Newmarket Historical
Society Archive, Artifact storage for the Museum and multi-use work/activity and
meeting room(s) space for use by the Museum, Historical Society, Fire Museum and
community groups.

Moved by Malcolm Watts
Seconded by Tom Hempen

THAT the Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee supports the Old Fire Hall
Projects suggestions.

CARRIED
b) Museum
The museum report was received.

Moved by Norman Friend
Seconded by Billie Locke

THAT the Museum report be received as information.
CARRIED
c) ARCH
The Chair advised that the tent at Fairy Lake for Doors Open was well attended. The

Chair advised that there is now a permanent display space in the basement of the
Library for the Museum, Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee and the Historical

Society.
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Moved by Billie Locke
Seconded by Ross Caister

THAT the Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee supports the using of the
space at the Library and that members of the Museum, Heritage Newmarket

Advisory Committee attend to hand out brochures, talk about the display and
appear in period costume whenever possible.

CARRIED

d) Street Naming Committee

No report received. The Chair will discuss with the current member to change the
representative sitting on the Street Naming Commitiee.

9. HERITAGE NEWMARKET ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES - OCTOBER 1, 2013
ITEM 9 — NEW BUSINESS

Discussion ensued regarding the Murray House. The following suggestions were made
to re-advertise the availability of the building to be moved to another location and will be
given to the Senior Planner — Community Planning as requested:

a) The current owner is offering $30,000.00 towards the cost of moving the house.

b) The Chair will discuss with Councillor Vegh to offer the building to Habitat for
Humanity.

¢) Discussion with Royal LePage.

d) Put signage on the property.

e) SNAP interview Sandra Fuller — use as a community story.

f) Put advertisement on Freecycle.

g) Interview Sandra Fuller on Barrie TV.

h) Interview Sandra Fuller on the Rogers channel.

Moved by Malcelm Watts
Seconded by Billie Locke
THAT the meeting adjourn.
CARRIED

There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 9:04 p.m.

Date Athol Hart, Chair

Town of Newmarket | Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee | Minutes — October 1, 2013
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Town of Newmarket NEWMARKET
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
MINUTES
Thursday, October 17, 2013 at 5:00 p.m.
Cane Room

Municipal Offices
395 Mulock Drive

Newmarket

The regular meeting of the Newmarket Economic Development Advisory Committee was held
on Thursday, October 17, 2013 at 5:00 p.m. in the Cane Room of the Municipal Offices located

at 395 Mulock Drive.

Members Barb Bartleft

Presnet: Michael Croxon
Donna Favreau (5:05 to 7:00 p.m.)
Jim Gragtmans (Chair)
Jim Lotimer (5:00 to 6:27 p.m.)
Paul Montador
Jackie Playter
lan Proudfoot
Gary Ryan
David White (5:00 fo 6:39 p.m.)
R.N. Shelton, Chief Administrative Officer
Mayor Van Bynen

Absent: Jim Alexander
Beric Farmer
Rick Henry
Gary Ryan
Regional Councillor Taylor

Guest: Karen Dubeau, Shared Digital Infrastructure
Staff: S. Chase, Director of Information Technology
I. McDougall, Commissioner of Community Services

C. Kallio, Economic Development Officer
L. Moor, Council/Committee Coordinator

Jim Gragtmans in the Chair.
The meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m.

DECLARATIONS

None.
ADDITIONS

None.

Town of Newmarket | Newmarket Economic Development Advisory Committee
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NEWMARKET ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES
OCTOBER 17, 2013 - ITEM 1

INTELLIGENT COMMUNITY: DRAFT YORK REGION BROADBAND STRATEGY
UPDATE AND NEWMARKET IMPLICATIONS

The Economic Development Officer introduced Ms. Susan Chase, Director of
Information Technology for the Town of Newmarket. Ms Chase provided a verbal
overview of the Draft York Region Broadband Strategy. She advised that the document
provided in the agenda package is a summary document; as the strategy in full form is
over one hundred pages.

D. Favreau arrived at 5:05 p.m.

Discussion ensued regarding the following:

Revenues and costs associated with a municipally owned broadband strategy
Pay for Service options

Target broadband speeds

Conduit installations along major corridors

Municipal and Regional Governments in the business of Internet connectivity for
its residents

Moved by lan Proudfoot
Seconded by Michael Croxon

The Newmarket Economic Development Advisory Committee recommends to
Council:

THAT the Town of Newmarket consider a number of options to at least begin the
process to build a high speed connection service within Newmarket along with
business plans and implementation cases;

AND THAT with the assistance of the Shared Digital Infrastructure organization
that the Regional Municipality of York be requested to supply information on what
the Town of Newmarket can expect in terms of support in moving forward with
high speed connectivity services.

CARRIED

NEWMARKET ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES
OCTOBER 17, 2013 - ITEM 2
NEDAC MINUTES MAY 16, 2013

Newmarket Economic Development Advisory Committee Minutes of May 16, 2013.

Town of Newmarket | Newmarket Economic Development Advisory Committee
| Minutes — October 17, 2013
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Moved by Jackie Playter
Seconded by Paul Montador

THAT the Newmarket Economic Development Advisory Committee Minutes of May
16, 2013 be received.

CARRIED

NEWMARKET ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES

OCTOBER 17, 2013 - ITEM 3
CENTRES AND CORRIDORS: DRAFT FINAL SECONDARY PLAN

The Commissioner of Community Services provided a verbal introduction of a
development proposal for the property at the intersection of Davis Drive and Patterson
Street. The Economic Development Officer showed a conceptual slide image of the
proposed building structure. Discussion ensued regarding the feasibility of encouraging
fibre optic cable installation within site plan development applications. Further
discussion ensued with respect to the required specific language that should be
incorporated into the draft secondary plan document in an effort to mandate the
development community into providing broadband service within their sites.

Jim Lotimer left the meeting at 6:27 p.m.

4,

NEWMARKET ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES
OCTOBER 17, 2013 -~ ITEM 4
POST-SECONDARY EDUCATION STRATEGY

The Economic Development Officer provided a verbal update regarding the Post-
Secondary Education Strategy; he advised that included in the agenda package is a list
of the membership of the Post-Secondary Collaborative Working Group. Discussion
ensued regarding the Regional report scheduled for distribution within a two week time
frame and Newmarket’s strategy should be considered once the Regional approach has
been identified. There was consensus that members of NEDAC, the Shared Digital
Infrastructure group and the Post-Secondary Collaborative Working Group meet to
assess Newmarket's position with a view to have a scheduled NEDAC meeting on
November 26, 2013 to discuss the overall plan.

David White left the meeting at 6:39 p.m.

5.

NEWMARKET ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES
OCTOBER 17, 2013 - ITEM 5
SIGNIFICANT PROJECTS UPDATE

The Economic Development Officer advised that he distributed with the agenda the
confidential document entitled ‘Significant Project Updates” and if there are any queries
regarding such to send an e-mail or call him directly.

Town of Newmarket | Newmarket Economic Development Advisory Committee
| Minutes — October 17, 2013




NEWMARKET ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES

OCTOBER 17, 2013 -ITEM 6
NEW BUSINESS

a)

b)

Jackie Playter requested that the Economic Development Officer provide some
insight to the NEDAC members regarding the downtown core improvements and
the resultant increased tax assessments. The Economic Development Officer
advised that the Main Street commercial assesssment base has increased by 71%
since the inception of the Downtown Development Incentive Programs.

The Chair queried those present about their interest in collaborating Economic
Development discussions with the Northern 6 municipalities.

Moved by Paul Montador
Seconded by Jackie Playter

THAT the meeting adjourn.

CARRIED

There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 7:00 p.m.

Dated

Jim Gragtmans, Chair

Town of Newmarket | Newmarket Economic Development Advisory Committee
{ Minutes — October 17, 2013
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Newmarket Pubiic Library Board

- ‘Newmarket T
..w Regular Board Meeting
e Wednesday, September 18, 2013
o Newmarket Public Library Board Room

Present: Joan Stonehockér - Chair
Tara Brown
Michae! Castro
John Taylor

Staff Present: Todd Kyle, CEQ

Linda Peppiatt, Deputy CEO
Lianne Bond, Administrative Coordinator

Regrets: Tom Vegh - Vice Chair
Tom Hempen

Wes Playter

The Chair called the meeting to order at 5:20 p.m.

1. ADOPTION OF AGENDA ITEMS:

i} Adoption of Regular Agenda

i) Adoption of the Closed Session Agenda

iii) Adoption of Consent Agenda items

The Chair asked if there were any additions to the agenda.

Motion 13.09250

MOVED BY JOHN TAYLOR
SECONDED BY MICHAEL CASTRO

THAT Agendas i) to iii) be adopted as presented.
CARRIED

2, DECLARATIONS
None were declared.

3. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS:

i} Adoption of the Regular Board Meeting Minutes for Wednesday, June 19, 2013
ii) Adoption of the Closed Session meeting Minutes for Wednesday, June 19, 2013
iii) Strategic Operations Report for June, July and August 2013

iv) Library Statistical Data

v} Monthly Bank Transfer

Newmarket Public Library Reguiar Board Minutes September 18, 2013

Page 1 of 4



Motion 13,09.251

MOVED BY MICHAEL CASTRO
SECONDED BY JOHN TAYLOR

THAT Consent Agenda ltems i} to v} be received as presented.

CARRIED

4. MOTION TO CONVENE INTO A CLOSED SESSION
There were no closed sassion items.

5. POLICIES

An updated Policy Review Schedule was provided to the Board. The Board reviewed the following policies:

i) Dress Code Policy

ii) Health and Safety Policy
iii) Volunteer Services Policy
fv) Records Retention Policy

The Board recommended changes to the Health and Safety Policy and Volunteer Palicy.

Motion 13.09.252

MOVED BY JOHN TAYLOR
SECONDED BY TARA BROWN

THAT the Library Board approve the Dress Code Policy and Records Retention Policy as presented, and
Health and Safety Policy and Policy on the Use of Volunteers as amended;

AND THAT the Library Board receive the updated Policy Review Schedule.

CARRIED
6. REPORTS
i) Second Quarter Financial Statements

The CEC reported that the Library is on target to be on or under budget for 2013.

Motion 13.09.253

MOVED BY JOHN TAYLOR
SECONDED BY IMICHAEL CASTRO

THAT the Library Board received the Second Quarter Financial Statements as presented.

CARRIED
if) NPL-TON Joint Task Force (JTF) Committee
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i) NPL-TON Joint Task Force {(JTF) Committee
a) NPL-TON (Community Services) Joint Report 2013-18 — Carrespondence

Correspondence was received from the Town of Newmarket's Manager, Special Projects/Customer

Service clarifying the NPL-TON {Community Services} Joint Report 2013-18 from the Service Review
Steering Committee regarding the intent reported under the Business Plan and Strategic Plan

Linkages section
Motion 13.09.254

MOVED BY JOHN TAYLOR
SECONDED BY MICHAEL CASTRO

THAT the Library Board receive correspondence from Town of Newmarket Manager, Special

Projects/Customer Service clarifying the NPL-TON (Community Services) Joint Report 2013-18 from the
Service Review Steering Committee regarding the intent reported under the Business Plan and Strategic

Plan Linkages section.
CARRIED
7. BUSINESS ARISING
i} 2014 Draft Operating Budget

The CEO advised the Library Board of some minor adjustments to 2014 Draft Operating Budget submission
that the Town of Newmarket Finance Department recommended due to issues that were unforeseen

when the draft was prepared.
Motion 13.09.255

MOVED BY JOHN TAYLOR
SECONDED BY TARA BROWN

THAT the Board approve the adjustments to the 2014 Operating Budget submission as presented.

CARRIED

i) Action List

The Board reviewed the Action List.
8. NEW BUSINESS

i} Library Ambassador Campaign

The CEO will bring back information regarding beginning a Library Ambassador Campaign to promote the
new Strategic Plan which is part of the 2013 Business Plan. This item will be added to the Library Board

Action List.

i) Update on Strategic Plan Activities — ldeaMarket

Newmarket Public Library Regular Board Minutes September 18, 2013 Page 3 of 4



61

The CEO updated the Library Board on the progress in Library programs to ignite community
dialogues, discovery and debate through the Jaunch of the IdeaMarket. The Library Board held a
discussion regarding the parametres that should be set regarding the programming of the discovery
and debate events to ensure that the Library is maintains control over program content and invitees.
The Board would iike to see the formation of a Community Advisory Committee to vet the topics and

run the events.

9, DATE{S) OF FUTURE MEETINGS

The next regular Library Board meeting will be Wednesday, October 23, 2013 at 5:30 pm in the Library

Board rcom

10. ADIQURNMENT

Motion 13.09.256

MOVED BY MICHAEL CASTRO
SECONDED BY JOHN TAYLOR

THAT there being no further business the meeting adjourned at 6:45 p.m.

CARRIED

Jo'e(r)lStone‘hocker ToddRyle,
Chai Secretary/Treasurer
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CENTRAL YORK FIRE SERVICES
JOINT COUNCIL COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 1, 2013 AT 10:30 A.M.
TOWN OF NEWMARKET, CANEA & B

MINUTES

A meeting of the Joint Council Committee was held on Tuesday, October 1, 2013 at 10:30 a.m.
in the Cane Room at the Town of Newmarket Municipal Offices, 395 Mulock Drive.

Members
Present: Newmarket:
Absent:
Aurora:
Staff: Newmarket:
Aurora:
Absent;
CYFS:

Councilior Emanuel
Councillor Twinney
Councillor Kerwin

Councillor Abel
Councillor Ballard
Councillor Gallo

R. Shelton, Chief Administrative Officer (10:35 to 11:15 a.m.)
M. Mayes, Director of Financial Services/Treasurer

(10:40 to 11:25 a.m.)

L. Georgeff, Director of Human Resources

(10:45 to 11:25 am..)

L. Lyons, Deputy Clerk

N. Garbe, Chief Administrative Officer (10:35 to 11:10 a.m.)
D. Elliott, Director of Corporate & Financial Services/Treasurer
I. Laing, Fire Chief

P. Leslie, Deputy Fire Chief
R. Comeau, Deputy Fire Chief

The meeting was called to order at 10:35 a.m.

Councillor Twinney in the Chair.

ADDITIONS TO AGENDA

The Fire Chief requested that a verbal Station Renovation Update be included as an addition to

the agenda.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST-

None.
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JOINT COUNCIL COMMITTEE MINUTES — OCTOBER 1, 2013 — ITEM 1
APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Joint Council Committee Minutes of September 3, 2013.

Moved by Councillor Emanuel
Seconded by Councillor Ballard

THAT the Joint Council Committee Minutes of September 3, 2013 be approved.
CARRIED

JOINT COUNCIL COMMITTEE MINUTES ~ OCTOBER 1, 2013 - ITEM 2
APPROVAL OF (CLOSED SESSION) MINUTES

Joint Council Committee (Closed Session) Minutes of September 3, 2013.

Moved by Counciilor Gallo
Seconded by Councillor Emanuel

THAT the Joint Council Committee (Closed Session) Minutes of September 3, 2013
be approved.

CARRIED

JOINT COUNCIL COMMITTEE MINUTES — OCTOBER 1, 2013 — ITEM 3
FIRE SERVICES REPORT 2013-07
TRAINING DIVISION STATUS REPORT

Fire Services Report 2013-07 dated September 24, 2013 regarding Training Division
Status Report.

Moved by Councillor Emanuel
Seconded by Councillor Abel

THAT Fire Services Report 2013-07 Training Division Status Report dated
September 24, 2013 be received for information purposes.

CARRIED

JOINT COUNCIL COMMITTEE MINUTES - OCTOBER 1, 2013 - ITEM 4
VERBAL REPORT — STATIONS 4.1 AND 4.2 RENOVATION UPDATE

The Fire Chief provided a verbal update regarding proposed renovations to Station 4-2
and advised that the Class D cost estimate is within plus or minus 20% of the approved
funding level. He further advised that the Class D cost estimate for proposed
renovations to Station 4-1 have not yet been received, however it would appear the
scope will exceed the approved level of funding.

Central York Fire Services - Joint Council Committee
Minutes — Octcober 1, 2013 Page 2 of 3
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Moved by Councillor Emanuel
Seconded by Councillor Ballard

THAT the matter of the proposed station renovations be deferred to a special or
regular meeting of CYFS - Joint Council Committee when the Class D cost
estimate is received for Station 4-1;

AND THAT other budgeting options be considered by Newmarket Council.

CARRIED

The Committee was advised that a Closed Session was not required at this time.

5.

JOINT COUNCIL COMMITTEE MINUTES — OCTOBER 1, 2013 - ITEM 5
NEW BUSINESS

a) The Fire Chief thanked everyone involved with the CYFS Open House recently held
in Aurora that attracted approximately 1400 people. He advised that the Newmarket
Open House is scheduled for October 5, 2013.

b} The Fire Chief advised of a recent complaint regarding the use of chimineas and he
informed the Committee that such units are in compliance with the Fire Code.

c) The Fire Chief advised that a Habitat for Humanity theme build for Emergency
Services in York Region will take place in the fall of 2014 and the house will be

equipped with a sprinkler system.

d) The Fire Chief advised that a general session to discuss the Master Fire Plan is
scheduled for October 16, 2013 at the Training Centre located at 623 Timothy Street
and should anyone wish to attend to advise him.

Moved by Counciilor Emanuel
Seconded by Councillor Baliard

THAT the New Business items listed a) through to d) be received.

CARRIED

Moved by Councillor Ballard
Seconded by Councillor Gallo

THAT the meeting adjourn.

CARRIED

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 11:25 a.m.

{
ﬁ/n—fﬂ. S, @072 @éw (I .(/‘(

Date

;Z’our}jl'for Twinney, Chair

— o/
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CENTRAL YORK FIRE SERVICES
JOINT COUNCIL COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 3, 2013 AT 10:30 A.M.
TOWN OF AURORA, LEKSAND ROOM

MINUTES

A meeting of the Joint Council Committee was held on Tuesday, September 3, 2013 at 10:30
a.m. in the Leksand Room at the Town of Aurora Municipal Offices, 100 John West Way.

Members Present:  Aurora;

Newmarket:

Staff: Aurora:

Newmarket:

CYFS:

Councillor Abel
Councillor Ballard
Councillor Galio

Councillor Emanuel
Councillor Kerwin
Councillor Twinney

D. Elliott, Director of Corporate & Financial Services/Treasurer
N. Garbe, Chief Administrative Officer

R. Shelton, Chief Administrative Officer
M. Mayes, Director of Financial Services/Treasurer
L. Lyons, Deputy Clerk

. Laing, Fire Chief
R. Comeau, Deputy Fire Chief

The meeting was called to order at 10:35 a.m.

Councillor Gallo in the Chair.

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

None.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None.

1. JOINT COUNCIL COMMITTEE MINUTES - SEPTEMBER 3, 2013 - ITEM 1
CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR APPOINTMENTS

Election of Chair and Vice-Chair for remainder of term of Council. The floor was opened

for nominations of Chair.



Moved by Councillor Emanuel
Seconded by Councillor Ballard

THAT Councillor Twinney be appointed as Chair of Central York Fire Services —
Joint Council Committee for the remainder of the term of Council.

CARRIED
The floor was opened for nominations of Vice-Chair.

Moved by Councillor Twinney
Seconded by Councillor Kerwin

THAT Councillor Abel be appointed as Vice-Chair of Central York Fire Services —
Joint Council Committee for the remainder of the term of Council.

CARRIED
Councillor Gallo agreed to continue as Chair for the remainder of the meeting.

JOINT COUNCIL COMMITTEE MINUTES — SEPTEMBER 3, 2013 - ITEM 2
APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Joint Council Committee Minutes of May 14, 2013 and May 23, 2013.

Moved by Councillor Twinney
Seconded by Councillor Kerwin

THAT the Joint Council Committee Minutes of May 14 and May 23, 2013 be
approved.

CARRIED

JOINT COUNCIL. COMMITTEE MINUTES — SEPTEMBER 3, 2013 - ITEM 3
APPROVAL OF (CLOSED SESSION) MINUTES

Joint Council Committee (Closed Session) Minutes of May 14, 2013.

Moved by Councillor Emanuel
Seconded by Councillor Twinney

THAT the Joint Council Committee (Closed Session) Minutes of May 14, 2013 be
approved.

CARRIED

Central York Fire Services - Joint Council Committee
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JOINT COUNCIL COMMITTEE MINUTES — SEPTEMBER 3, 2013 - ITEM 4

JOINT CENTRAL YORK FIRE SERVICES AND CORPORATE SERVICES REPORT -
FINANCIAL SERVICES 2013-32

2014 BUDGET RECOMMENDATIONS

Joint Central York Fire Services and Corporate Services Report — Financial Services
2013-32 dated August 22, 2013 regarding 2014 Budget Recommendations.

The Director of Financial Services/Treasurer (Newmarket) provided an overview of the
report and advised that all comments were received and incorporated and that a 9.7%

increase to the Fire Services budget will be presented to Newmarket Council at a
Special Committee of the Whole (Budget) meeting scheduled for September 16, 2013.

Discussion ensued regarding various budget items. The Fire Chief advised that the
Central York Fire Services training facility will be available for use in 2014. He also
provided clarification regarding several capital budget items such as the replacement of
a light vehicle which is five years old to avoid vehicle repair costs as well as access
control locks required to improve security at the three stations.

Moved by Councillor Emanuel
Seconded by Councillor Twinney

THAT Joint CYFS/Corporate Services Report — Financial Services 2013-32 dated
August 22, 2013 regarding 2014 Budget Recommendations be received and that
the Central York Fire Services draft 2014 operating and capital budgets be
approved with the following amendments:

1.  THAT the property lease for the Training Facility be removed from the base
operating budget;

2.  THAT the position of Chief Training Officer be deferred;

3.  THAT the position of Fire Prevention Officer be deferred;

4. THAT the change to the Administrative Position to full-time be deferred;
5. THAT the purchase of water softeners for each Fire Station be deferred;
6. THAT the Portacount Fit Testing Machine costs be adjusted;

7. THAT the access control locks purchase for all Stations and Training Centre
be deferred;

8. THAT the outdoor electronic display signs purchase be deferred.
9. THAT the purchase of a replacement light vehicle be deferred,;

CARRIED

Central York Fire Services - Joint Council Commitfee
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Moved by Councillor Baliard
Seconded by Councillor Abel

THAT a Training Officer position be included in the 2014 Central York Fire Services
Budget.

MOTION LOST

Moved by Councillor Abel
Seconded by Councillor Ballard

THAT one electronic display sign purchase be included in the 2014 Central York Fire
Services Budget.

MOTION LOST

JOINT COUNCIL COMMITTEE MINUTES — SEPTEMBER 3, 2013 — ITEM 5
FIRE SERVICES REPORT 2013-03
MASTER FIRE PLAN UPDATE

Fire Services Report 2013-03 dated August 1, 2013 regarding the Master Fire Plan
Update.

The Fire Chief provided an overview of the report. Discussion ensued regarding hosting
public workshops and community information open houses regarding the Master Fire
Plan. The Fire Chief advised that he would provide JCC members with the actual
additional costs from Dillon Consulting regarding the Council Workshops and/or
Community Information Open Houses.

Moved by Councillor Ballard
Seconded by Councillor Kerwin

1. THAT Fire Services Report 2013-03 Master Fire Plan (MFP) Update dated
August 1, 2013 be received for information purposes;

2.  AND THAT staff be directed to work with Dillon Consulting to assist with the
Master Fire Plan Update;

3. AND THAT one public workshop/community open house be scheduled with
both communities to obtain public feedback regarding the Master Fire Plan.

CARRIED

JOINT COUNCIL COMMITTEE MINUTES - SEPTEMBER 3, 2013 - ITEM 6
FIRE SERVICES REPORT 2013-04
FIRE STATION 4-2 RENOVATIONS

Fire Services Report 2013-04 dated August 7, 2013 regarding Fire Station 4-2
Renovations.

Central York Fire Services - Joint Council Committee
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The Fire Chief advised that bids received are still being reviewed. Discussion ensued
regarding the scope of work associated with the renovations to the Fire Station and the
feasibility of shared costs and merged facilities between the two municipalities. The Fire
Chief advised that he is currently working with Procurement Services and the
consultants in an effort to obtain a viable floor plan of projected renovations before a
Class D cost estimate can be completed.

Recommendation 2 contained in Fire Services Report 2013-04 dated August 7, 2013
regarding Fire Station 4-2 Renovations was replaced with the following:

“AND THAT the tender date be extended or not awarded for Station 4-2 renovations until
further information is received including a cost estimate for Station 4-1 renovations;

AND THAT should the need arise a Special Joint Council Committee meeting be called
regarding the Station 4-2 Renovations Tender document.”

Moved by Councillor Ballard
Seconded by Councillor Kerwin

1.  THAT Fire Services Report 2013-04 Fire Station 4-2 Renovations dated
August 7, 2013 be received for information purposes;

2. AND THAT the tender date be extended or not awarded for Station 4-2
renovations until further information is received including a cost estimate for
Station 4-1 renovations;

3. AND THAT should the need arise a Special Joint Council Committee meeting
be called regarding the Station 4-2 Renovations Tender document.

CARRIED

JOINT COUNCIL COMMITTEE MINUTES — SEPTEMBER 3, 2013 - ITEM 7
FIRE SERVICES REPORT 2013-05

EARLY BUDGET APPROVAL — RESPIRATORY PROTECTION TESTING
EQUIPMENT

Fire Services Report 2013-05 dated August 19, 2013 regarding Early Budget Approval —
Respiratory Protection Testing Equipment.

Moved by Councillor Emanuel
Seconded by Councillor Abel

THAT Fire Services Report 2013-05 Early Budget Approval — Respiratory
Protection Testing Equipment dated August 19, 2013 be received for information
purposes;

AND THAT early budget approval be given for this capital expense for the 2014
budget and staff be directed to proceed with purchasing the Respiratory
Protection Testing Equipment, as set out herein.

CARRIED

Central York Fire Services - Joint Council Committee
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8. JOINT COUNCIL COMMITTEE MINUTES - SEPTEMBER 3, 2013 - ITEM 8
FIRE SERVICES REPQRT 2013-06
FIRE HYDRANT COMPATIBILITY PLAN

Fire Services Report 2013-06 dated August 21, 2013 regarding Fire Hydrant
Compatibility Plan.

Moved by Councillor Emanuel
Seconded by Councillor Twinney

THAT Fire Services Report 2013-06 Fire Hydrant Compatibility Plan dated August
21, 2013 be received for information purposes;

AND THAT JCC request Public Works staff develop a strategic time frame to
implement the Fire Hydrant Compatibility Plan to update flow rates and fire
hydrant conspicuity.

CARRIED

9. JOINT COUNCIL COMMITTEE MINUTES - SEPTEMBER 3, 2013 ~ITEM 9
JOINT CYFS AND CORPORATE SERVICES INFORMATION REPORT — FINANCIAL
SERVICES 2013-28
2013 CENTRAL YORK FIRE SERVICES BUDGET REPORT — SECOND QUARTER

Joint CYFS and Corporate Services Information Report — Financial Services 2013-28
dated August 21, 2013 regarding 2013 Central York Fire Services Budget Report —
Second Quarter.

Moved by Councillor Emanuel
Seconded by Councillor Ballard

THAT Joint CYFS and Corporate Services Information Report - Financial Services

2013-28 dated August 21, 2013 regarding 2013 Central York Fire Services Budget
Report- Second Quarter be received for information purposes.

CARRIED

Moved by Councillor Twinney
Seconded by Councillor Abel

THAT the Joint Council Committee resolve into a closed session for the purpose of
discussing labour relations or employee negotiations (Labour Relations Matters).

CARRIED
The Committee resolved into a Joint Council Committee (Closed Session) at 12:04 p.m.

The Minutes of the Joint Council Committee (Closed Session) are recorded under separate
cover.

Central York Fire Services - Joint Council Committee
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The Committee resumed into public session at 12:06 p.m. and the Chair reported the following
from the Closed Session.

Town of Newmarket Council Extract related to Item 1 of Joint Council Committee (Closed
Session) regarding a Labour Relations matter was received for information purposes.

10.

1.

JOINT COUNCIL COMMITTEE MINUTES - SEPTEMBER 3, 2013 - ITEM 10
JCC 2014 MEETING SCHEDULE

Discussion ensued regarding the 2014 meeting schedule of the Central York Fire
Services — Joint Council Committee.

Moved by Councillor Twinney
Seconded by Councillor Kerwin

THAT the CYFS-JCC Meeting Schedule be approved subject to the inclusion of a
scheduled meeting in July, September and October 2014.

CARRIED

JOINT COUNCIL COMMITTEE MINUTES — SEPTEMBER 3, 2012 - ITEM 11
NEW BUSINESS

a) The Fire Chief advised that there will be an Open House on September 28, 2013 in
Aurora at Station 4-4, and on October 5, 2013 in Newmarket at Station 4-1.

b) The Fire Chief provided the JCC members with a photograph of the new aerial
truck. :

Moved by Councillor Ballard
Seconded by Councillor Emanuel

THAT the meeting adjourn.

CARRIED

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 12:13 p.m.

Aoy S, 202

Date

Councillgf Gallo, Chair
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DEVELOPMENT & INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES ~ ENGINEERING SERVICES
TOWN OF NEWMARKET :
‘ \) 395 Mulock Drive www.newmarket.ca

P.O. Box 328 info@newmarket.ca
Newma rke-t Newmarket, ON L3Y 4X7 805.805.5193

October 17, 2013

DEVELOPMENT & INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES REPORT
ENGINEERING SERVICES 2013-50
TO: Committee of the Whole

SUBJECT: Foxtail Ridge - Parking Review
File No.:T08 T.30 Foxtail Ridge

ORIGIN: Director, Engineering Services

RECOMMENDATIONS

THAT Development and Infrastructure Services Report — ES2013-50 dated October 17, 2013
regarding Foxtail Ridge — Parking Review, be received and the following recommendation(s) be
adopted:

1. THAT the parking restrictions remain as existing.

COMMENTS

Engineering staff received a request by the Ward Councillor to review the current parking restrictions on
Foxtail Ridge. In accordance with the Corporate Parking Policy, Engineering staff conducted a survey of
the community to determine support and any other solutions. The survey contained the Town’s proposal to
restrict parking on the north side of the street (sidewalk side). The results of the survey had a majority of
residents who responded stating they were against any changes to the current parking restrictions.

Therefore, it is recommended that the existing parking restrictions remain. These restrictions are related to
the general prohibitions of the Parking Bylaw such as no parking in front of a fire hydrant or in excess of
three-hours would still apply.

PUBLIC CONSULTATION

A letter was sent out from the Town (Engineering Services Department) on September 13, 2013 soliciting
comments from the Foxtail Ridge community that would have been directly impacted by the proposed
parking restrictions. Of the 87 households directly impacted by the parking restriction changes (fronting and
major flankage properties), the Town received responses from 29 households (33%). Of the 29
households, 15 were against any changes in restrictions (562%), 7 were in favour of the restrictions (24%),
and 7 preferred that the restrictions be amended (24%), mostly to the other side of the street.

The community will be contacted and forwarded a copy of this report prior to the Committee of the Whole
Meeting, for review and deputation if they wish to attend the Committee of the Whole Meeting.
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Development & Infrastructure Services
Report ES2013-50

QOctober 17, 2013

Page 2 of 3

BUSINESS PLAN AND STRATEGIC PLAN LINKAGES

» Well-planned and connected...strategically planning for the future to improve information access
and enhance travel to, from and within Newmarket.

UMAN RESOURCE CONSIDERATIONS

No impact to current staffing levels.

IMPACT ON BUDGET

Operating Budget (Current and Future)
No impact to the Operating Budget.

Capital Budget

No impact to the Capital Budget.
CONTACT

For more information on this report, please contact Mark Kryzanowski at 905-895-5193 extension 2508;
mkryzanowski@newmarket.ca.

Prepared by: //W/ / A M

M. KryzanowskKi, M.C.L.P/R.P.P R. Binghan/C.E.T,,

Senior Transportation Coordinator Manager, Engineering & Technical Services
.\\\ Ww@ &k Q S / -

R. Prudhomme, M.Sc., P. Eng. R. Prentice. Commissiocner,

Director, Engineering Services Development & Infrastructure Services
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Development & Infrastructure Services
Repert ES2013-50

Qctober 17, 2013
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DEVELOPMENT & INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES ~ ENGINEERING SERVICES
TOWN OF NEWMARKET

395 Mulock Drive www.newmarket.ca

P.O. Box 328 info@newmatkal.ca

Newmarket, ON L3Y 4X7 905.805,5193

Newmarket

November 1, 2013

DEVELOPMENT & INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES REPORT
ENGINEERING SERVICES 2013-51

TO: Committae of the Whole

SURBJECT: Town of Newmarket
Oxford Homes Residential Subdivision, Phase 1A RP ~ 65M-3853
Requeast for Final Acceptance and Assumpticn

ES Filze No.; D.24.64.1

ORIGIN: Director, Engineering Services

RECOMMENDATION

THAT Development and Infrastructure Services Report — ES 2013-51 dated November 1, 2013
regarding the Final Acceptance and Assumption ke received and the following recommendation(s)
be adopted:

1. THAT the request for final acceptance and assumption of the Oxford Homes Residential
Subdivision — Phase 1A as shown on the attached map be finally accepted and assumed by

the Town;
2. AND THAT the securities be released as recommended by our Checking Consultant.

3. AND THAT Ms. Angela Meyer of Oxford Homes (711371 Ontario Corp.}, and Mr. Angelo A.
Maurizio, P. Eng., of Schaeffer & Associates Ltd. be notified of these recommendations.

BACKGROUND
We are in receipt of an application from Schaeffers Consulting Ltd. on behalf of Oxford Homes (711371

‘Ontario Corp.) pursuant tc the Oxford Homes Residential Subdivision, Phase 1A Subdivision Agreement
wherein a request for final acceptance and assumption is made.

Phase 1A does not include any municipal services and is comprised solely of lots and blocks which make
up Plan 65M-35853.

All required documentation has been provided and reviewed by our checking consultant, R.J. Burnside &
Associates Lid., wha have provided their recommendation for final acceptance and assumption.

Legal and Financial Services have conducted a file review and confirmed that all obligations of the Owner
(Oxford Homes (711371 Ontario Corp.) under the Subdivision Agreement as it relates to Legal and
Financial Services have been met.
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Development & Infrastructure Services Report - Engineering Services ES-2013-51
Oxford Homes Rasidential Subdivision, Phase 1A RP — 85M-3553

Request for Final Acceptance and Assumption

Page 2 of 3

BUSINESS PLAN AND STRATEGIC PLAN LINKAGES

«  Well Equipped and Managed...provides a thorough and timely consideration of applications for
development and redevelopment in accordance with all statutory requirements;

e Well Planned and Connected...continues to improve the quality of the road network within the Town
of Newrnarket,

CONSULTATION

There is no public consuitation with this recommendation.
BUDGET IMPACT

Qperating Budget (Current and Future)

There will be no impact on current budget.
CONTACT

For more Information on this repert, contact Victoria Klyuev at 905-895-5193 extension 2513 or by
e-mail at, vklyuev@newmarket.ca

.
A Ly -

Victoria Klyliev, B.A., C.E.T,, Rick Binghay/ C.E.T., Manager,

Senior Engineering Development Coordinator Enginearing and Technical Services

Rasidential

Plogd.

Rachel Prudhomme, M.Sc., P.Eng., Director
Engineering Services

Reb Prentice, Commissioner
Development and Infrastructure Services
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DEVELOPMENT & INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES - ENGINEERING SERVICES
TOWN OF NEWMARKET
‘ ) 395 Muleck Drive www.newmarket.ca

P.O. Box 328 info@newmarket.ca

Newmarket Newmarket, ON L3Y 4X7  905.895.5193

November 13, 2013

DEVELOPMENT & INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES REPORT
ENGINEERING SERVICES 2013-52
TO:! Committee of the Whole

SUBJECT:  Queen/Parkview (east leg) — All-way Stop Review
File No.:T08 T.30 Queen

ORIGIN: Director, Engineering Services

RECOMMENDATIONS

THAT Development and Infrastructure Services Report — ES2013-52, dated November 13, 2013
regarding Queen/Parkview (east leg) — All-way Stop Review, be received and the following
recommendlation(s) be adopted:

1. THAT the existing stop control at the Queen Street and Parkview Crescent (east leg) remain
as existing due to not meeting the warrants outlined in the Transportation Management
Policy as approved by Town Council, and also due to safety concerns noted in Community
Services Report — ES2013-52, based on the Ministry of Transportation requirements.

BACKGROUND

The following is a brief history of this issue.
1999:

At the regular meeting on Tuesday September 7, 1999, Town Council dealt with recommendations from
Operations Report 99-66 which was addressing the request for additional stops signs on Queen Street
between Parkside Drive and Lorne Avenue. At that fime, no additional stop signs were warranted,;
however, additional warning signs were added.

2005:
In a review in 2005 initiated by the Traffic Safety Advisory Committee (TSAC), a memorandum was

prepared with options to address speeding and safety concerns. In particular, with the improvement to the
collision database at that time, it was noted that a significant number of single motor vehicle collisions were o
oceurring due to speed and road conditions. This review examined speed humps, rumble strips, chicanes ]
and all-way stops. The following were the recommendations from the 2005 report:




Development & Infrastructure Services
Report £ES2013-52

November 13, 2013

Page 2 0of 8

1. Actively work with York Region to improve safety and to reduce congestion on Davis
Drive by attempting to reduce traffic infiltrating volumes on Queen Street.

2. Install a yellow centre median in the road sections in an attempt to reduce speeds and
monitor results as to their effectiveness.

3. Maintain a Radar Speed Board presence on Queen Street,

4. |Investigate the possibility of reducing the road width through reconstruction or creating a
low centre raised median.

5. Investigate the feasibility of applying micro surfacing to the road section.

6. Install a sidewalk on the south side of Queen Street.

Recommendations #1, #2, #3 and #6 have been acted upon. Recommendation #1 forms part of the current
vivaNext work. Recommendation #2 has been implemented and expanded upon. The work completed as
per Recommendations #2 and #3 has been instrumental in the collision reduction and speed management
oh Queen Street. Recommendation #4 was considered and is discussed further in this report.
Recommendation #5 is still being reviewed for effectiveness. However, the reduction in motor vehicle
collisions seen since the implementation of Recommendations 2 and 3 did not prompt immediate action on
this item.

2011.

Further action was taken in 2011 as a result of a Transportation Workshop. Staff reviewed the signage
along this section of Queen Street as well as the warrants for the possibility of adding flashing amber
beacons. Upon the completion of the review, some of the warning signs were adjusted, but a flashing
amber beacon was not warranted and did not meet the criteria outlined in the Ontario Traffic Manuals

(OTM).
June 2012:

At its regular meeting of June 11, 2012, Town Council adopted recommendations in Community Services
Report ES 2012-42. The report was drafted to respond to a petition requesting speed humps for Queen
Street. The Council resolution was to widen and lengthen the centre median, install cross-hatching within
the median and provide edge lines along the Parkview Crescent intersection (east leg). As well, some
vegetation was trimmed back at the intersection to provide better east-west visibility.

September 2012

At its regular meeting of Monday September 24, 2012, Town Council adopted recommendations from
Community Services Report ES 2012-60 regarding parking restrictions. The parking restrictions were
along the east and west leg of Parkview Crescent to ensure that cars would not be parked near the
intersection, thereby blocking sight lines.

September 2013

At its regular meeting of September 9, 2013, Town Council adopted a motion by the Ward 5 Councillor that
stated:

“THAT the matter of a three-way stop sign immediately included at the east
intersection of Parkview Crescent and Queen Street be referred to staff for a report.”

The report being provided at this time has been researched and produced to address that September 2013
resolution.

79




80

Development & Infrastructure Services
Report ES2013-52

Noavember 13, 2013

Page 3of 6

COMMENTS

1. WARRANTS:

As per the Town's Council-approved Transportation Management Policy, standard intersection counts
were taken at both the east and west leg of Parkview Crescent and Queen Street. These counts were 5
hours in duration (7:00am to 9:00am, and 3:00pm to 6:00pm). The intersection counts were conducted
about 2 weeks apart to ensure that the review was not undertaken during a potential ‘low’ volume day and
also to take into consideration the fluctuating nature of traffic on Queen Street due to the vivaNext
construction on Davis Drive.

The All-Way Stop warrants consist of three (3) parts. The first part does not apply, since the warrant deals
with future signalization of the intersection. In this case, traffic signals are not planned for this intersection.

The second warrant examines the number of recorded vehicle collisions in, or adjacent to, the intersection
over the last twelve (12) months. Records indicate that no vehicle collisions occurred at either intersection.

The third warrant is divided into two parts and examines traffic and pedestrian volumes. The first part of
this warrant examines all the vehicles approaching the intersection on an hourly basis. The minimum traffic
and pedestrian volume required is an “average hour vehicle/pedestrian volume” of 500.

The second part of this third warrant examines traffic and pedestrian volumes on an hourly basis along the
minor street (Parkview Crescent in this case). The minimum traffic and pedestrian volume required is an
“average-hour vehicle/pedestrian volume” of 200.

Both warrants need to be met at 100% or greater to warrant an all-way stop control. The results of the all-
way stop warrant analysis indicate that the all-approach warrant is at 93%, and the minor street warrant is
at 7% for the Queen/Parkview east leg. The results of the all-way stop warrant analysis indicate that the all-
approach warrant is at 85%, and the minor street warrant is at 6% for the Queen/Parkview west leg.
Therefore, neither intersection meets the warrants required for an all-way stop control.

If Council were to consider installing the signs based on the fact that one of the percentages given above
(93%) appears to be close to the warrant, it is important to note once again that BOTH WARRANTS NEED
TO BE MET AT 100% or greater according to the specifications. The fact that the minor street warrant is as
low as 6 percent indicates that the warrant is far from being met by a significant amount.

2. SAFETY

There are safety issues that need to be considered. More specifically, in its Ontario Traffic Manuals (OTM),
the Ministry of Transportation of Ontario outlines additional information and consideration for all-way stop
controls. In OTM Book 5 (Regulatory Signs), the Ministry outlines situations in which some inappropriate
uses of all-way stop controls are to be avoided. When considering the Queen / Parkview intersection, OTM
Book 5 discourages the use of all-way stop controls for the following purposes or conditions:

+ As a speed control device;
» Where traffic would be required to stop on grades;
* As a means of deterring the movement of through traffic in a residential area.

The centre median that was installed on Queen Street was to slow traffic and to reduce motor vehicle
collisions. Based on the information in OTM Book 5, the introduction of an all-way stop control at this
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intersection might create the potential for increased rear-end collisions, particularly in the eastbound
direction where vehicles are travelling downhill.

All-way stop controls are intended to govern the right-of-way at an intersection. The very low vehicle counts
(less than 10 vehicles in the peak hours) from both legs of Parkview Crescent would not create an effective
or safe intersection control. The following “Turning Movement Diagram” shows the AM and PM peak hour
traffic volumes and turning movements for both intersections.

TURNING MOVEMENT DIAGRAM

Queen and Parkview Crescent West* Queen and Parkview Crescent East”
(*PM values are in brackets) (*PM values are in brackets)
154 (224)  — 126 (313) 148 (189)  m—)- A 210(346)
2(9) "% r & m oy "3 £ s
5(4) 3(0) 2(2) 7(8)

The peak hour volumes are very low entering and exiting Parkview Crescent at either intersection.
3. OTHER METHODS

Town staff met with a representative of the Ward 5 Traffic Safety Committee on September 20, 2013
regarding the all-way stop and other potential mitigation measures that may be effective instead of an all-
way stop. Staff has reviewed several mitigation measures other than an all-way stop which included:

s Speed humps, both standard and rubberized (removable)

e One-way street (Parkview Crescent)

e ‘Right-In/ Right-Out Only” restriction

« Expansion of the centre median including impressed concrete/raised median
+ Additional radar speed signage

s (Crosswalks

As noted in previous reports, speed humps of any type would not be placed on a minor collector road.
Furthermore, placing speed humps on a stretch of road such as Queen Street near the Parkview
intersection would create a safety hazard due to the hill and curved section of road. Any sort of vertical
deflection (like a speed hump) or horizontal deflection (like a chicane) would not be advised because of the
grades and curves on Queen Street.

Creating a one-way on Parkview Crescent would be overly onerous on the residents and the street.
However, restricting left turning movements (or any movement) out of Parkview Crescent east could be
considered by enacting a by-law and posting proper signage. This would prohibit the movements that are
perceived as unsafe. Such a “right-in/right-out only” restriction would require the support of the Parkview
Community, and the restriction would need to be reviewed for safe operational and emergency services.
Based on the low number of left turns at the East intersection shown in the “Turning Movement Diagram”
above, it would appear that the Parkview Community already exercises this option to a degree.

Expansion of the centre median or raising the median would be something to consider if Haskett Park is
improved on the north side of Queen Street and becomes a connection to the development areas of the
Secondary Plan.
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Additional radar signage is currently being exercised through the streets that have been identified as
having additional traffic due to the vivaNext construction. Queen Street has been identified as one of those
streets.

The Town and York Region do not endorse crosswalks, as these have been found to be dangerous since
they give pedestrians a false sense of safety when crossing busy streets.

Given the above, the Town has provided a balanced approach to safety at the intersection. No additional
measures are warranted at this time.

PUBLIC CONSULTATION

Representatives of the Ward 5 Traffic Safety Committee were consulted to discuss additional mitigation
measures prior to the production of the report.

BUSINESS PLAN AND STRATEGIC PLAN LINKAGES

e Wall-planned and connected...strategically planning for the future to improve information access
and enhance travel to, from and within Newmarket.

HUMAN RESOURCE CONSIDERATIONS

No impact to current staffing levels.

IMPACT ON BUDGET

Operating Budget (Current and Future)
No impact to the Operating Budget.

Capital Budget
No impact to the Capital Budget.

CONTACT

For more information on this report, please contact Mark Kryzanowski at 905-895-5193 extension 2508;
mkryzanowski@newmarket.ca.

a’“"ﬂﬂ
1 /h »//4
prepared by. . [/]/ | /]~ / A /,M/:“\
M Kryzanows’kl M.C.LP., RP.P R. Bingham, gE.T.,
Senior Transportation Coordmator Manager, Engineering & Technical Services
-t £ —— .
R. Prudhomme, M.Sc., P. Eng. R. Prentice. Commissioner,

Director, Engineering Services Development & Infrastructure Services
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OCctober 25, 2013
DEVELOPMENT & INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES REPORT

ENGINEERING SERVICES ES 2013-53
TO: Committee of the Whole
SUBJECT: GO Railway Pedestrian Crossing Anti-Whistling, Mile 34.89, Deviation Road

CRIGIN: Director, Engineering Services

RECOMMENDATIONS

THAT Development & Infrastructure Services Commission — Engineering Services Report ES 2013-
53 dated October 25, 2013, regarding GO Railway Pedestrian Crossing Anti-Whistling, Mile 34.89,
Deviation Road, be received and the following recommendation be adopted:

THAT the Town not proceed with a whistle ban proposal at the GO pedestrian crossing (mile
34.89) located at Deviation Road.

BACKGROUND

At its regular meeting of April 12, 2010, Council considered Community Services Report 2010-33 and
adopted the following recommendations;

THAT Community Services Engineering Services Report 2010-33 dated March 31, 2010, regarding GO
Railroad Pedestrian Crossing Enhancements and Main Street North and London Road Intersection
Signalization be received and the following recommendation(s) be adopted:

1. THAT this report be received for information purposes only

2. AND THAT the Town proceed with the necessary steps to incorporate a whistle ban at the Main
Street North and London Road intersection pedestrian crossing from 11:00pm — 6:00am daily.

Staff met with representatives from both Metrolinx-and Transport Canada to review the Town's request to
implement a partial whistle ban {from 11:00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m. daily) at the GO pedestrian crossing located
at Deviation Road, in the Main St. N. and London Rd. area (see map on the last page of this report).

Upon review of the Town's request, Metrolinx advised that part-time or partial whistle bans are no longer
supported. The reasons given were that Metrolinx needs to ensure consistency and safety for the travelling
public at all crossing facilities and that Transport Canada recommends against partial bans. Metrolinx
further advised that “Transport Canada’s guidelines on these matters suggest that generally whistling
restrictions should be on a 24 hour basis.”




Development and Infrastructure Services Report ES 2013-53
October 25, 2013
Page 2 of 4

A 24 hour train whistle ban is not recommended for safety reasons. There is significant research that
correlates increased accidents at level crossings with whistle bans.

Furthermore, there are increased liability issues to the Town if anti-whistling is implemented. When a
municipality enters into a whistle cessation agreement, it must assume all liability, including claims, losses,
damages, costs or expenses, etc. related to the pedestrian crossing. Staff has reviewed municipal insurers’
positions from our own Town and from other municipalities who considered implementing anti-whistling.
We have concluded that, from a Risk Management perspective, municipal insurers do not recommend the
implementation of a Whistle Cessation Bylaw. As municipalities are facing increasing liabilities on
municipal lands and with potential claims at railway crossings being substantial, our own insurer
recommended that we do not transfer this liability to the Town.

And finally, another reason for not recommending the by-law is that anti-whistling orders are never final.
‘Regardless of the implementation of an anti-whistling by-law, the train operator has the ultimate sole
discretion to disregard the order and blow the train horn anyway if he or she has any safety concerns. As a
result, the train horns may sound even when the whistle cessation by-law has been enacted.

Although the whistle ban is not being recommended in this report, the Town has nonetheless gained a
significant value-added benefit from this exercise. Reviewing and enhancing the safety features at the
crossing has made the facility safer for pedestrians and users of the trail system, thereby benefitting the
entire Town.

BUSINESS PLAN AND STRATEGIC PLAN LINKAGES

Provide efficient, effective and environmentally sound service to a level that achieves Council and/or
Provincially mandated service level which meets public health and safety requirements and enhance
quality of life.

PUBLIC HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPACT

Safety at the Go Pedestrian Crossing will continue to be maintained with the existing safety enhancements
and signing.

HUMAN RESOURCE CONSIDERATIONS

Not applicable to this report.

BUDGET IMPACT

Operating Budget (Current and Future)
No impact of the Operating Budget

Capital Budget
No impact of the Capital Budget
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CONTACT

For more information on this report, please contact Rick Bingham, Manager of Engineering and Technical
Services at 905-953-5300 ext. 2505, rbingham@newmarket.ca

QW\D \R@M&LQ A ifg

Rachel Prudhomme, M.Sc., P.Eng., Rick Bingham, g7E.T.
Director of Engineering Services Manager of Engineering Services and
Technical Services

Robert Prentice,

Commissioner of Community Services

RB:jlk
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October 28, 2013

TO:

DEVELOPMENT & INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES REPORT
ENGINEERING SERVICES 2013-54

Committee of the Whole

SUBJECT:  Traffic By-law (By-law 2011-24) Housekeeping Amendments

File No.:TO8 T.30

ORIGIN: Director, Engineering Services

RECOMMENDATIONS

THAT Development and Infrastructure Services Report — ES2013-54, dated October 28, 2013
regarding Traffic Bylaw (By-law 2011-24), be received and the following recommendation(s) be
adopted:

1

THAT the definition of Personal Mobility Device be deleted, and the new definition be added;

Personal mobility device is a compact motorized transportation device used to allow greater
freedom of movement. Personal mobility devices include forms like motorized wheel chairs,
motorized mobility scooters, and Segways.

2. AND THAT the errors noted in Appendix A of this report be amended with the recommended
wording;

3. AND THAT Gorham Street at Harry Walker Parkway, 1 way eastbound on Gorham Street in
Schedule Il (Stops Signs) be deleted, and that Harry Walker Parkway at Gorham Street be
added to Schedule VIl (Signaled Intersections);

4. AND THAT Schedule IX be amended by removing ‘Lockwood Circle — North East’ and
removing ‘Stonehaven Avenue & Kingsmere Avenue — South East’, and adding ‘Stonehaven
Avenue & Kingsmere Avenue/Lockwood Circle — North East’;

5. AND THAT the additional stop sign location in Appendix B be added to Schedule lll (Stop
Signs);

6. AND THAT the necessary Bylaws be prepared and submitted to Council for their approval.

COMMENTS

This report is a housekeeping exercise to correct minor mistakes, add missing items and add clarity to
certain components.
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Recommendation 1. There was some confusion regarding Segways and that they only be used by the
physically disabled. In fact, the definition was referring to a Segway as a form of personal mobility device.
The definition is amended as follows:

Personal mobility device is a compact motorized transportation device used to allow greater freedom of
movement. Personal mobility devices include forms like motorized wheel chairs, motorized mobility
scooters, and Segways.

Recommendation 2. As found in Appendix A, this is a list of typographical errors to be corrected.

Recommendation 3. This recommendation removes the minor stop control on Gorham Street for the traffic
signals that were installed.

Recommendation 4. This recommendation is to correct an issue with Schedule IX (School Crossing
Locations). During the preparation of the by-law, the Stonehaven & Kingsmere/Lockwood was split out to
give the appearance that Lockwood Circle had a separate school crossing location. The correct school
crossing location is:

Stonehaven Avenue & Kingsmere Avenue/Lockwood Circle — North East
The direction reference ‘North East’ refer to the leg of the intersection that the crossing is located.

Recommendation 5. As found in Appendix B, this is a list of stop sign locations to be added to Schedule
Ill. The maijority of these intersections are from the northwest and southeast sections of Town.

Therefore, it is recommended that the above changes be made to improve the accuracy of the Traffic By-
law.

PUBLIC CONSULTATION

No public consultation was undertaken for this report.

BUSINESS PLAN AND STRATEGIC PLAN LINKAGES

¢ Well-planned and connected...strategically planning for the future to improve information access
and enhance travel to, from and within Newmarket.

HUMAN RESOURCE CONSIDERATIONS

No impact to current staffing levels.

IMPACT ON BUDGET

Operating Budget (Current and Future)

No impact to the Operating Budget.

Capital Budget

No impact to the Capital Budget.
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CONTACT

For more information on this report, please contact Mark Kryzanowski at 905-895-5193 extension 2508;

mkryzanowski@newmarkeif/
L A/ !
s A /5/««4/’—” -

Prepared by:

M. Kryzanowski, M.C.I.P., R.P.P R. Bingham, CE.T,
Senior Transportation Coordinator Manager, Engineering & Technical Services
| Vvl S
£
R. Prudhomme, M.Sc., P. Eng. R. Prentice. Commissioner,

Director, Engineering Services Development & Infrastructure Services
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Appendix A

Section 22.2 b). The word ‘that’ should be replaced with ‘than’. The sentence should read:

The driver of any vehicle from stopping for a period of not more THAN forty-five......

Schedule Il — Stop Signs.
The direction of ‘1-way’ needs to be added to Maple Hill Court at Harry Walker Parkway.

The direction of ‘1-way’ needs to be added to Nicholson Drive at Harry Walker Parkway.
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Location
Art Westlake Avenue at Atkins Drive
Aspenwood Drive at Roadhouse Boulevard
Atkins Drive at Cenotaph Boulevard
Atkins Drive at Blencowe Crescent
Blackhall Crescent (East arm) at Veterans Way
Blackhall Crescent (West Arm) at Veterans Way
Bob Gapp Drive at Atkins Drive
Bob Gapp Drive at Memorial Circle
Bob Scott Court at Foxcroft Boulevard
Bonshaw Avenue at Gilpin Drive
Bulmer Crescent at Carlissa Run
Carlissa Run at Ford Wilson Boulevard
Cenotaph Boulevard at Memorial Circle
Cheryl Mews Boulevard at Ford Wilson Boulevard
Cliff Gunn Road at Carlissa Run
Cliff Gunn Road at Cheryl Mews Boulevard
Blencowe Crescent (South arm) at Atkins Drive
Blencowe Crescent at Memorial Circle
Emma Broadbent Court at Aspenwood Drive
Ernest Cousins Circle at Grainger Trail
Ernest Cousins Circle at Poppy Lane
Ernest Cousins Circle at Poppy Lane
Ernest Cousins Circle at Veterans Way
Foxcroft Boulevard at Bob Scott Court
Frederick Curran Lane at Art West Avenue
Grainger Trail at Memorial Circle
Gilpin Drive at Roadhouse Boulevard
Goring Circle at Grainger Trail
Goring Circle at Poppy Lane
Goring Circle at Poppy Lane
Goring Circle at Veterans Way
Hans Pfaff Court at Poppy Lane
Hopper Lane at Cheryl Mews Boulevard
Hopper Lane at Cliff Gunn Road
Inniscarra Gate at Ford Wilson Boulevard
Karl Rose Trail at Art West Avenue
Karl Rose Trail at Ray Snow Boulevard
Ken Bishop Way at Carlissa Run
Ken Bishop Way at Cheryl Mews Boulevard
Kwapis Boulevard at Bonshaw Avenue
Kwapis Boulevard at Bonshaw Avenue
Mae Brooks Drive at Carlissa Run
Mae Brooks Drive at Cheryl Mews Boulevard
McCron Crescent at Atkins Drive
McTavish Drive at Bob Gapp Drive
McTavish Drive at Bob Gapp Drive
McTavish Drive at Cenotaph Boulevard
McTavish Drive at Blencowe Crescent
Memorial Circle at Grainger Trail
Memorial Circle at Grainger Trail
Memorial Circle at Poppy Lane
Memorial Circle at Poppy Lane
Memorial Circle at Veterans Way

Appendix B

Type
1 way
1 way
1 way
1 way
2 way
2 way
2 way
1 way
1 way
1 way
1 way
2 way
1 way
1 way
2 way
1 way
1 way
1 way
1 way
1 way
2 way
2 way
2 way
1 way
1 way
3 way
1 way
1 way
2 way
2 way
2 way
1 way
1 way
1 way
1 way
1 way
1 way
2 way
1 way
2 way
2 way
2 way
1 way
1 way
2 way
2 way
1 way
1 way
3 way
3 way
3 way
3 way
3 way

Direction
eastbound on Art Westlake Avenue
eastbound on Aspenwood
northbound on Atkins Drive
northbound on Atkins Drive
northbound on Blackhall Crescent (East arm)
northbound on Blackhall Crescent (West arm)
northbound on Bob Gapp Drive
northbound on Bob Gapp Drive
westbound on Bob Scott Court
westbound on Bonshaw Avenue
southbound on Bulmer Crescent
eastbound on Carlissa Run
eastbound on Cenotaph Boulevard
eastbound on Cheryl Mews Boulevard
southbound on Cliff Gunn Road
northbound on Cliff Gunn Road
westbound on Blencowe Crescent
westbound on Blencowe Crescent
southbound on Emma Broadbent Court
eastbound on Ernest Cousins Circle
northbound on Ernest Cousins Circle
southbound on Ernest Cousins Circle
southbound on Ernest Cousins Circle
southbound on Foxcroft Boulevard
eastbound on Frederick Curran Lane
southbound on Grainger Trail
northbound on Gilpin Drive
eastbound on Goring Circle
northbound on Goring Circle
southbound on Goring Circle
southbound on Goring Circle
southbound on Hans Pfaff Court
northbound on Hopper Lane
southbound on Hopper Lane
westbound on Inniscarra Gate
eastbound on Karl Rose Trail
southbound on Karl Rose Trail
southbound on Ken Bishop way
northbound on Ken Bishop way
northbound on Kwapis Boulevard
southbound on Kwapis Boulevard
southbound on Mae Brooks Drive
northbound on Mae Brooks Drive
westbound on McCron Crescent
northbound on McTavish Drive
southbound on McTavish Drive
northbound on McTavish Drive
northbound on McTavish Drive
eastbound on Memorial Circle
northbound on Memorial Circle
northbound on Memorial Circle
southbound on Memorial Circle
northbound on Memorial Circle
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Memorial Circle at Veterans Way
Poppy Lane at Memorial Circle
Quaker Trail at Quaker Trail
Quick Street at Stuffles Crescent (South Arm)
Rannie Road at Ritas Avenue
Rannie Road at Ritas Avenue
Ray Snow Boulevard at Art West Avenue
Ray Snow Boulevard at Woodspring Avenue
Riordan Court at Cenotaph Boulevard
Ritas Avenue at Rannie Road
Ritas Avenue at Rannie Road
Ritas Avenue at Tom Taylor Crescent
Roadhouse Boulevard at Emma Broadbent Court
Roadhouse Boulevard at Kwapis Boulevard
Ross Patrick Crescent (East Arm) at Carlissa Run
Ross Patrick Crescent (West Arm) at Carlissa Run
Sherman Brock Circle at Cenotaph Boulevard
Sherman Brock Circle at Cenotaph Boulevard
Sherman Brock Circle at Grainger Trail
Sherman Brock Circle at Poppy lane
Sherman Brock Circle at Poppy lane
Sherman Brock Circle at Stuffles Crescent
Sherman Brock Circle at Veterans Way
Shortreed Terrace at Art Westlake Avenue
Shortreed Terrace at Atkins Drive
Stuffles Crescent (East Arm) at Atkins Drive
Stuffles Crescent (West Arm) at Atkins Drive
Stuffles Crescent (North Arm) at Quick Street
Veterans Way at Memorial Circle
William Dunn Crescent at William Dunn Crescent
Williamson Family Hollow (East Arm) at Carlissa run
Williamson Family Hollow (West Arm) at Carlissa run

3 way
3 way
1 way
1 way
4 way
4 way
1 way
1 way
1 way
4 way
4 way
1 way
1 way
1 way
2 way
2 way
2 way
2 way
1 way
2 way
2 way
1 way
2 way
1 way
1 way
1 way
1 way
1 way
3 way
1 way
2 way
1 way

southbound on Memorial Circle
eastbound on Poppy Lane
southbound on Quaker Trail
southbound on Quick Street
northbound on Rannie Road
southbound on Rannie road
eastbound on Ray Snow Boulevard
southbound on Ray Snow Boulevard
southbound on Riordan Court
eastbound on Ritas Avenue
westbound on Ritas Avenue
eastbound on Ritas Avenue
northbound on Roadhouse Boulevard
eastbound on Roadhouse Boulevard
northbound on Ross Patrick Crescent (East Arm)
northbound on Ross Patrick Crescent (West Arm)
northbound on Sherman Brock Circle
southbound on Sherman Brock Circle
eastbound on Sherman Brock Circle
northbound on Sherman Brock Circle
southbound on Sherman Brock Circle
southbound on Sherman Brock Circle
northbound on Sherman Brock Circle
northbound on Shortreed Terrace
northbound on Shortreed Terrace
northbound on Stuffles Crescent (East Arm)
northbound on Stuffles Crescent (West Arm)
eastbound on Stuffles Crescent (North Arm)
eastbound on Veterans Way
northbound on William Dunn Crescent
northbound on Williamson Family Hollow (East Arm)
northbound on Williamson Family Hollow (West Arm)
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DEVELOPMENT & INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES REPORT
ENGINEERING SERVICES 2013-55

TO: Committee of the Whole

SUBJECT:  Schoal Crossing Locations Request — Maple Leaf Public School
File No.:T08 T.30 Longford

ORIGIN: Director, Engineering Services

RECOMMENDATIONS

THAT Development and Infrastructure Services Report — ES2013-55, dated October 29, 2013
regarding School Creossing Locations Request — Maple Leaf Public School be received and the
following recommendation(s) be adopted:

1. THAT the Maple Leaf Public School administration be forwarded a copy of this report and
Council extract and be encouraged to pursue school bus options with the parents on the
east side of Main Street North.

COMMENTS

At its regular meeting of September 30, 2013, Town Council adopted a recommendation under New
Business to investigate the request from Maple Leaf Public School for school crossing locations in the
area. An email from the school administration specified locations at the Longford Drive /Cherrywood Drive
and Longford Drive/Gwillimbury Road intersections, and at the Main/Penn intersection since the school
catchment area extends to the east side of Main Street North.

For the Longford/Cherrywood or Longford/Gwillimbury locations, the Transportation Management Policy
outlines the criteria for implementing school crossing locations with school crossing guards. The Policy is
derived from the Ontario Traffic Council (OTC) update in 2006 to the Ministry of Transportation (MTO)
manual of 1992. Based on the Policy, the necessary pedestrian and traffic counts were undertaken. The
Policy is not solely based on the number of children crossing, but also the available gaps in traffic to cross
the street and on the interaction between pedestrians and motorists. Since both intersections are all-way
stop controls, sufficient gaps will always be created through the right-of-way control nature of the stop sign.
However, the studies were conducted with the assumption that the stop signs are not present to create a
‘worst case’ scenario for children to cross the street.

Based on the study, both intersections have sufficient number of gaps in the fraffic to accommodate the
children crossing Longford at Cherrywood and Longford at Gwillimbury. Therefore, school crossing
locations with a school crossing guard is not warranted at this time. The parents and school children
should be commended on the orderly nature of the children crossing Longford Drive and on the high
percentage of parents accompanying their children. As well, a “Walking School Bus” (i.e. - a few parents
and several children walking together in a line) was noted coming from south of the school site.
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As for the Main Street North/Penn Avenue location, the number of children crossing does not meet the
required minimum number required by the Transportation Management Policy. However, the high volumes
on Main Street North preciude any sufficient or consistent gaps in traffic. This intersection has been
reviewed previously for an all-way stop control and traffic signals. The all-way stop control would not be
the safest alternative and would not be recommended. For this reason, the introduction of a school
crossing location with a crossing guard would be met with similar safety concerns. Traffic signals would be
the only feasible and safe alternative.

As for the ultimate solution, the Town, in conjunction with Metrolinx, will be undertaking a Mobility Hub
station wide-area plan that would contemplate new or enhanced control access points on Main Street
North (most likely to include traffic signals at the Main/Penn intersection) to support future station needs.
However, this does not address the immediate needs in the interim. Town staff has contacted the School
Board to determine alternatives related to the school busing policy. As a potential solution, a school bus of
some type could pick up and drop off the children on the east side of Main Street North. Such a solution
would remove the necessity for children to cross Main Street North. The school administration, the parents
and the School Board would need to undertake this exercise.

It is therefore recommended that a copy of this report be forwarded to the Maple Leaf Public School
administration, and that the administration encourage the parents to pursue the options with bussing.

PUBLIC CONSULTATION

TMAC has reviewed the recommendations for the Longford locations and is supportive of the
recommendations.

BUSINESS PLAN AND STRATEGIC PLAN LINKAGES

» Well-planned and connected... strategically planning for the future to improve information access
and enhance travel to, from and within Newmarket.

HUMAN RESOURCE CONSIDERATIONS

No impact to current staffing levels.

IMPACT ON BUDGET

Operating Budget (Current and Future)

No impact to the Operating Budget.

Capital Budget

No impact to the Capital Budget.



96

Development & Infrastructure Services
Report ES 2013-55

October 29, 2013

Page 3 of 4

CONTACT

For more information on this report, please contact Mark Kryzanowski at 905-895-5193 extension 2508;
mkryzanowski@newmarket.ca.

Prepared by W//% ~ A G

"IV! "Kryzandwski, M.C.I.P., R.P.P R. Bingham, CEZ.T.,

Senior Transportation Coordlnator Manager, Englneermg & Technical Services
40 é Jfﬁ

R. Prudhomme, M.Sc., P. Eng. R. Prentice. Commissioner,

Director, Engineering Services Development & Infrastructure Services
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DEVELOPMENT & INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES - ENGINEERING SERVICES

TOWN OF NEWMARKET
395 Mulock Drive www.newmarket.ca
P.0O. Box 328 info@newmarket.ca

Newmarket Newmarket, ON L3Y 4X7 905.805.5193

November 7, 2013

DEVELOPMENT & INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES REPORT
ENGINEERING SERVICES ES 2013-56

TO: Committee of the Whole

SUBJECT:  Town of Newmarket
Landmark Estates Residential Subdivision, Phase 1 RP — 65M-3437
Request for Final Acceptance and Assumption of Aboveground Works
Clearmeadow Boulevard between Yonge Street and Jordanray Boulevard/Rannie Road
ES File No.: D.24.60

ORIGIN: Director, Engineering Services

RECOMMENDATION

THAT Development and Infrastructure Services Report — ES 2013-56 dated November 7, 2013
regarding the Final Acceptance and Assumption of Aboveground Works be received and the
following recommendation(s) be adopted:

1. THAT the request for final acceptance and assumption of aboveground works on
Clearmeadow Boulevard between Yonge Street and Jordanray Boulevard/Rannie Road
within the Landmark Estates Residential Subdivision — Phase 1 as shown on the attached
map be finally accepted and assumed by the Town;

2. AND THAT Mr. Tony Orsi of Landmark Estates (1209104 Ontario Ltd.), and Mr. Andrew ip,
P.Eng., of Masongsong Associates Engineering Ltd. be notified of these recommendations.

BACKGROUND

We are in receipt of an application from Masongsong Associates Engineering Ltd. on behalf Landmark
Estates (1209104 Ontario Ltd.) pursuant to Clearmeadow Boulevard, between Yonge Street and Jordanray
Boulevard/Rannie Road within the Landmark Estates Residential Subdivision, Phase 1 Subdivision
Agreement wherein a request for final acceptance and assumption of aboveground works is made.

The maintenance period for works has been satisfied and all requirements for assumption have therefore
been met.

All required documentation has been provided and reviewed by our checking consultant R.J. Burnside &
Associates Ltd., and at this time no recommendation to release the performance security has been made.

The recommendations apply only to engineering matters and are subject to comments of applicable Town
departments.




Development & Infrastructure Services Report Engineering Services 2013-56
Landmark Estates Residential Subdivision, Phase 1 RP — 65M-3437
Request for Final Acceptance and Assumption of Aboveground Works

Page 2 of 3

BUSINESS PLAN AND STRATEGIC PLAN LINKAGES

¢ Well Equipped and Managed...provides a thorough and timely consideration of applications for
development and redevelopment in accordance with all statutory requirements;

¢ Well Planned and Connected...continues to improve the quality of the road network within the Town
of Newmarket.

CONSULTATION

There is no public consultation with this recommendation.

BUDGET IMPACT

Operating Budget (Current and Future)

With this recommendation, the above captioned subject road within Landmark Estates Residential
Subdivision, Phase 1 will now be under the Town’s Operating Budget.

CONTACT

For more information on this report, contact Victoria Klyuev at 905-895-5193 extension 2513 or by
e-mail at, vklyuev@newmarket.ca

T

% TN A5 /<f;~4‘/""*—~—

Victoria Klygfev, B.A., CE.T, Rick Bingham, C & T., Manager.
Senior Engineering Development Coordinator Engineering and Technical Services
Residential

AR VW

Rachel Prudhomme, M.Sc., P.Eng., Director
Engineering Services

/Zj/ﬁo”/&-

Rob Prentice, Commissioner
Development and Infrastructure Services
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Planning and Building Services
‘ ] TOWN OF NEWMARKET :
395 Mulock Lrive www.newmarket.ca

Newma rket P.C. Box 328 planning@newmarket.ca
Newmarket, ON L3Y 4X7 905.953.5321

November 14, 2013
DEVELOPMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES/PLANNING & BUILDING SERVICES REPORT 2013-55
TO: Committee of the Whole
SUBJECT: Application for Zoning By-Law Amendment,
178, 180, 184, 188, 190 and 194 Main Street
Main Street Clock Inc.

Files: D14 NP 13-19

ORIGIN: Application Submitted to the Planning Department

RECOMMENDATIONS

THAT Development and Infrastructure Services — Planning and Building Services 2013-55 dated
November 14, 2013 regarding application for zoning by-law amendment be received and the
following recommendation(s) be adopted:

1. THAT the application for zoning by-law amendment, as submitted by Main Street Clock Inc. for
lands being located at the southwest corner of Main Street South and Park Avenue, municipally
known as 178, 180, 184, 188, 190 and 194 Main Street be referred to a public meeting;

2. AND THAT following the public meeting, issues identified in this report, together with
comments from the public, Committee, and those received through the agency and
departmental circulation of the application, be addressed by staff in a comprehensive report to
the Committee of the Whole, if required;

3. AND THAT Chris Bobyk, The Forrest Group 590 Alden Road, Suite 211, Markham, ON L3R
8N2be notified of this action.

COMMENTS

Location
The subject lands are located on the southwest corner of Main Street South and Park Avenue municipally

known as 178, 180, 184, 188, 190 and 194 Main Street (See Location Map attached).

Proposal

Main Street Clock Inc. have submitted an application for zoning by-law amendment to amend the existing
Historic Downtown Urban Centre (UC-D1) zone to permit a mid-rise 6 storey mixed use building on the

subject property consisting of 150 Residential units above 10 units of ground floor commercial and two

levels of underground parking (173 spaces) while retaining the historic Post Office/Clock Tower building.
The three buildings south of the Clock Tower are proposed to be demolished and redeveloped. The
proposal also contemplates the conveyance of a parcel of Town owned [and in the northeast corne
Market Square. This parcel is currently grassed and used for utility boxes. The proposed two stor
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underground parking would extend under the existing library parking and a portion of the Market Square
parking lot. If deemed appropriate, it will be necessary to provide easements to allow the underground
parking garage to extend into Town owed property.

Site Description

+ the Subject lands currently contain the two storey post office building at the corner of Main Street South
and Park Avenue and addition that runs along Park Avenue. The subject lands also contain the 3 two
storey commercial buildings fronting on Main Street, south of the above noted former Post Office
building.

- total lot area is approximately 0.27 hectares with a frontage on Main Street of £ 55 metres and a
frontage on Park Avenue of + 87 metres.

* the surrounding land uses are:
North: Trinity United Church and low density residential further west along Park Ave.

South: Existing Commercial with residential apartments above.
West: Newmarket Public Library and the Market Square parking lot.

East: Existing Commercial and urban park land.

Preliminary Review

Official Plan Considerations

One of the goals and strategic directions of the Plan is the protection and enhancement of the natural and
cultural heritage of the Town. Section 1.3.2 indicates that the protection of the Town’s cultural heritage will
be a priority for the Town and that the preservation, restoration and utilization of the Town’s heritage
resources is vital for the retention of the Town's cultural identity.

Section 1.3.6 under the strategic directions entitled Revitalization of the Historic Downtown indicates that
the Historic Downtown is the traditional Central Business District of Newmarket and that there is significant
opportunity for growth and change that would facilitate the achievement of the Plan’s strategic directions.
Additional development in this area would achieve the sustainability goal by providing an opportunity to live
close to services without the need to burden the road system. The Official Plan goes on to indicate that
with additional development, the rich history of the area will be protected for the enjoyment of residents as
the Plan builds on the Newmarket Historic Downtown Community Improvement Plan. The mix and design
of retail and service, office, institutional, entertainment, recreational and residential uses located along
Main Street will continue to foster a sense of vibrancy and community in the Historic Downtown at an
Urban Scale in harmony with the rich heritage of the surrounding residential neighbourhoods.

The Subject Property is designated Historic Downtown Centre on Schedule A - Land Use Plan to the
Town’s Official Plan.
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The Historic Downtown Centre designation permits a number of uses including residential uses up to 80
units per net hectare. The Official Plan allows for greater densities provided background studies
demonstrate that the proposed development will not create an unacceptable level of traffic, and will be
compatible with the existing surrounding development. To demonstrate this, the Official Plan requires a
number of studies to be submitted including a Shadow Impact Study, Traffic Impact Study, Heritage Impact
Assessment, Environmental Site Assessment, Functional Servicing Report and Planning Justification
Report discussed further in this report.

One of the Official Plan’s primary goals is to revitalize the Historic Downtown. Policies related to this
portion of Main Street encourage improvements in the form of infill development and rehabilitation that is at
a scale that retains the historic character of the area. The plan encourages retail uses along Main Street
with residential units on the upper floors and encourages pedestrian activity by providing adequate links to
Main Street and landscaped sidewalks.

In summary, the Official Plan would encourage appropriate residential and commercial redevelopment in
scale with the historic character of Main Street South.

Zoning Bylaw Considerations

The subject property is currently zoned Historic Downtown Urban Centre Zone (UC-D1) by comprehensive
zoning By-Law 2010-40. The UC-D1 zone includes an apartment building as a permitted use. The
performance standards for this zone have a minimum height of 2 storeys and a maximum height of 3
storeys, a minimum floor space index if 0.5 and a maximum floor space index of 1.0. There are no yard
setbacks in this zone category as many of the existing buildings are built to the lot lines.

The applicant is proposing to amend the existing zone of the property to allow for a 6 storey building
stepped back from Main Street with a floor space index of 4.25. Relief from the parking requirements is
also being requested. The current zoning By-law would require 1.75 parking spaces per unit which equals
263 spaces for the proposed 150 apartment units. The applicant is proposing 173 spaces which amounts
1.15 spaces per unit.

The proposed commercial units that are replacing existing units will not have parking requirements
associated with them. However, the newly proposed commercial units would be required to provide parking
or cash in lieu of same. The current rate for cash in lieu of parking for the Downtown area is $1500 per
space. This can be applied to the deficient parking spaces for the residential units as well as the newly
proposed commercial units if this application is approved.

Provincial Policy Statement

The Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) provides policy direction on matters of provincial interest related to
land use planning and development. As a key part of Ontario’s policy-led planning system, the PPS sets
the policy foundation for regulating the development and use of land. It also supports the provincial goal to
enhance the quality of life for the citizens of Ontario.

Planning decisions shall be consistent with the Provincial Policy Statement. The PPS provides for
appropriate development while protecting resources of provincial interest, public health and safety, and the
quality of the natural environment. The PPS supports improved land use planning and management, which
contributes to a more effective and efficient land use planning system.
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Heritage Conservation District

Council have recently passed a By-law to implement the Heritage Conservation District Plan for Lower
Main Street South. The by-law is currently in the Notice of Appeal period which ends on December 2,
2013. If there are no appeals received, the HCD Plan will be in full force and effect on December 3, 2013.
While these applications have been made prior to the Heritage Conservation District being in full force, the
development proposal will be reviewed against the policies and objectives of the Plan.

Purpose

The purpose of the Heritage District Plan is to establish a framework for assessing and guiding proposals
by private property owners and the municipality’s proposals for public works to ensure that change
contributes to the district character. The Plan also list the types of proposals requiring heritage review,
offers guidance on building conservation, gives guidance on adapting existing buildings and identifies
where new compatible construction would be appropriate.

Types of Buildings

The Plan identifies three types of buildings and provides guidelines for each building in the proposed
district. The building hierarchy are those that are Historic, those that are complementary to the district and
other buildings that are neither historic nor complementary. The Clock Tower building at the southwest
corner of Main Street South and Park Avenue is identified as a Historic Landmark Building. The remainder
of the buildings under this application are designated Historic Commercial buildings with the exception of a
small infilt building at 190 Main Street filling in what used to be an alley space between 188 and 194 Main
Street which is designated as neither historic nor complementary.

Goal of the Plan

The overreaching goal of the Plan is to revitalize the Lower Main Street South District while preserving its
historic character. The Plan has a number of objectives and policies to achieve this goal. The policies of
the Plan, specifically as they relate to buildings identified as historic (Historic Landmark buildings and
Historic Commercial Buildings), supports the retention of historic buildings in the district. If a property
owner proposed to demolish a building, a heritage impact assessment may be required to ascertain
whether there are alternatives to demolition. The Town is not obligated to issue a demolition permit.

Plan Policies
The HCD Plan also contains policies in relation to new construction. This section of the Plan indicates that

the Town will favour proposals for new construction that propose:

» building height is not less than two storeys and not more than three storeys and is complementary
to adjacent historic buildings and the streetscape;

e there is zero front yard setback and zero side yards;

» the facade shows a vertical orientation (or vertical directional emphasis) by segmenting the mass of
the building into units of two or three bays across and by placing windows that are taller than they
are wide in the upper floor;

» the ground floor of the facade is mostly taken up by plate glass display windows, the upper floor (or
floors) shows a rhythm of windows spaced across the wall, and clay brick of light buff or red colour
clads ground-floor piers and the upper-floor wall,

+ floors align, or align approximately, with floors of adjacent historic buildings, allowance being made
for changes in grade on the Main Street South hill;
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» the facade is surmounted by a flat roofline, either a decorative brick cornice or a decorative brick
parapet;

¢ signage is integrated into the ground floor design; and,

s at corner locations, the design addresses the corner and presents two street facades.

The appropriateness of any new design would be demonstrated through a heritage impact assessment in
which the impact of the new design on adjacent historic buildings, the streetscape and the district is
assessed. A heritage impact assessment has been submitted for this application and discussed further
below.

Views

The HDC Plan discusses the importance of the protection of views to, from and within the district.
Specifically, the Plan indicates the Town will review application for their potential impact on existing views
including views of the districts four landmark buildings, one of which being the Clock Tower.

Guidelines

The HDC Plan also contains a number of Guidelines identifying minor improvements to the Post Office
building such as filling in holes in the brick work where flag poles and window shields were once mounted.
The Guidelines also provide a four step process for approaching improvements or restoration of Historic
Commercial Buildings. Section 5.6 of the Plan identifies guidelines for New Construction which are based
on the policies for new construction identified above.

The HDC Plan provides a number of suggestions for buildings within the district which are provided below
for the properties that form this application. The applicant has indicated that they will integrate heritage
facades as part of the redevelopment where feasible. It is noted that the submitted Heritage Impact
Assessment also recommends that some form of integration of the existing heritage structures/facades into
the development be considered. Further, a structural investigation and a Conservation Plan will be required
to determine the appropriate conservation strategy.

184 Main Street South - The Plan recommends that after the siding is removed from the storefront and
upper floor and the roughcast plaster beneath is exposed, restoration based on historic photographs and
the fire insurance plans should occur. This is one of the district's few buildings where a plaster finish -
authentic roughcast and not synthetic EIFS - is recommended. The restored plaster finish should be left in
its natural state and not tinted with colour, as was typical, unless there is evidence in the underlying
roughcast plaster of a colour tint.

188 Main Street South - The Plan recommends that the siding on the ground floor and upper floor should
be removed. If the underlying brick veneer is not irretrievably damaged, restoration based on historic
photographs should occur.

194-196 Main Street South - Historic photographs shows at No. 194 an identical building to No. 196. The
siding covering No. 194 should be removed, and restoration of the upper floor and storefront should
proceed if the underlying brick is not irretrievably damaged.

Comments
The proposal by the applicant for redevelopment of these buildings on Main Street South would assist in
the revitalization of Downtown Newmarket by providing a number of residential units in the core and
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providing additional commercial units along Park Avenue as encouraged by the Plan. However, the
proposal does not meet significant policies of the Heritage Conservation District Plan by exceeding the 3
storey height limitation and not preserving in situ Historic Commercial Buildings. To assist in the on-going
review of the application against the HCD Plan, a Heritage Impact Assessment has been submitted. Staff
will providle further analysis of this proposal against the HCD Plan in a comprehensive report after the
required Statutory Public Meeting has occurred.

Heritage Impact Assessment

A heritage impact assessment is a report prepared by a qualified heritage specialist to assess the impacts
demolition, removal, significant alteration or new construction may have on the character of the building,
property, its surrounding context and/or a historic area. Submitted with the application is a Heritage Impact
Assessment for 180-194 Main Street South prepared by Goldsmith Borgal & Company Architects.

The HIA provides a historical and contextual background and an architectural review for for Main Street
and specifically the structures under this application. The report provides a review of the Town’s Official
Plan and the Lower Main Street South Heritage Conservation District Plan and the relevant policies.

The report asserts that the proposal addresses the Town's policies by:

» Developing a site within the Historic Downtown which has been identified as an area with a
significant opportunity for growth as it would achieve the sustainability goal of providing an
opportunity to live close to services without the need to burden the road system.

¢ Including a multi-unit residential and commercial uses to achieve a mix of uses within the Historic
Downtown.

¢ Proposing a use that has the potential to revitalize the Historic Downtown.

The report also acknowledges that the proposal does not meet the Town's policies and objectives related
to heritage, such as;

e Maintaining the historic scale in the Historic Downtown at Two, two-and-one-half, or three stories.

¢ Protecting heritage by retaining and restoring existing buildings.

The Heritage Impact Assessment continues by providing specific details on the proposed development
against the polices of the Heritage Conservation District Plan. The report indicates how these policies can
be achieved, and where there is conflict, recommendations are made on how to mitigate the impact
increased density would have on the heritage aspects of the District.

The Town is in the process of securing a peer review consultant to review the HIA and comment on the
submitted plan. Final comments on the HIA will be provided in a future report to Committee of the Whole.

Shadow Study

A shadow study has been prepared for the proposal that details impacts of shadowing on the surrounding
neighbourhood at the spring and fall equinoxes and summer solstice. The shadow impacts are shown at
9am, 12pm, 2pm and 4pm. Shadow Studies illustrate the impact of development in terms of sun and
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daylight access to the surrounding context including surrounding buildings, the public realm, public and
private open space.

The shadow studies submitted show little impact on the low density developments to the west of Main
Street. There appears to be significant shadowing on the public streets of Park Avenue and Main Street.
Staff have requested a current condition shadow study be submitted to clarify the cumulative impacts the
proposed building would have over the existing situation.

Departmental and Agency Comments

Heritage Newmarket have completed a preliminary review of the proposal and provided comments to staff.
The comments relate to questions of clarification on the submitted Heritage Impact Assessment as well as
providing photographs of existing views to landmark buildings (The Old Post Office, Trinity United Church
and Old Town Hall) that would be impeded if this proposal were to be approved in its current state. It is
intended that that applicant and heritage consultant will attend Heritage Newmarket on December 3" to
present the proposal and answer any questions the committee have. Further comprehensive comments
will be included in a report to Committee of the Whole after the public meeting is held.

The Town has received comments from various utilities that will be addressed throughout the planning
process.

Engineering services have reviewed the Traffic Impact and Parking Study, Functional Servicing Report and
Phase 1 and 2 Environmental Site Assessments and have the following comments to offer:

Traffic Impact Study and Parking
The Traffic iImpact and Parking Study (TIPS) only analyses traffic operations on week-days — Saturday
traffic operations should also be considered.

The Report assumes no traffic generation from the Commercial Retail Units (CRU). Vehicle traffic is likely
to be generated from the CRU and therefore some traffic generation shoulid be forecast.

Additional sight distance work needs to be completed based on a design speed of 50km/h opposed to the
45km/h in the report.

The adequacy of the parking supply proposed for the residential use should be further reviewed within the
context of all of the uses proposed including the CRU.

Insufficient justification is provided to support the conclusion that no parking is required for the proposed
CRU.

The TIPS does not provide any analysis of the impacts of the site redevelopment based on the
replacement of the existing uses. Further consideration of these factors may result in the need for
additional parking.

Sanitary Sewage

Sanitary sewage from this development as proposed will discharge to the existing sanitary sewer on Main
Street. The capacity of only the sanitary sewer on Main Street fronting this property has been reviewed in
the FSR. No analysis has been carried out to confirm that adequate capacity exist in the downstream
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system for the flows generated by this development. The applicant will be required to carry out a study to
confirm that adequate capacity exists or determine what downstream improvements are required to the
sanitary system. All cost for the study and any downstream improvements necessary will be the sole
responsibility of the applicant.

Water Supply

The report did not provide any hydrant flow information or modelling to confirm if the existing watermains
are adequate to service the proposed development. The consultant should provide either modelling or a
hydrant flow test on the watermain where the connection is proposed to confirm that the existing watermain
is adequate.

Additional analysis for the Fire Underwriters Survey calculation is required (projected fire flow rate).

Storm Drainage

The existing site is generally impervious. The proposed development will have minimal impact on the
quantity of storm water flow which discharges from the property. Water captured and discharged from the
roof is inherently clean and therefore the quality of the storm water discharging from the property will be
improved from the existing condition. The final design should demonstrate that the water quality from this
site meets Enhanced Protection Criteria as defined by MOE Guidelines,

Phase 1 and Phase 2 Environmental Site Assessments

Engineering Services have reviewed the Phase 1 and Phase 2 Environmental Site Assessments and have
indicated a number of comments that require addressing. The reports identify that contamination exists in
the soils above residential standards. Remediation work and the filing of a Record of Site Condition (RSC})
will likely be required. Sufficient environmental work has been carried out to demonstrate that it should not
be an undue hardship to remediate the site. We require confirmation from the MOE on whether or not an
RSC will be required.

COMMUNITY CONSULTATION POLICY

A statutory public meeting will be required as part of the Planning Act requirements for the proposed
changes to the zoning bylaw. A number of comments/letters have been submitted to date including a
petition against the existing proposal for redevelopment of these buildings on Main Street South citing
design, obstruction of views, traffic increase and parking as issues to be addressed.

BUDGET IMPACT (CURRENT AND FUTURE)

Application fees have been received, and the Town will receive revenue from assessment fees from any
land use decisions made on the subject properties. Should the application be referred to a public meeting,
there will be the typical costs associated with providing notice and holding the public meeting.

HUMAN RESOURCE CONSIDERATION

Not applicable to this report as staffing levels remain the same.
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Conclusicn

It is appropriate to refer this application for zoning by-law amendment to a statutory public meeting to hear

comments/questions from the public.

Attachments: Location Map
Site Plan
Elevations
Perspective Plan

Director of Planning and Building Services

Commissioner of Development and
Infrastructure Services
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LOCATION
MAP
178, 180, 184, 188, 190 and 194 MAIN STREET
(CLOCK TOWER)

Newmarget TOWN OF NEWMARKET PLANNING DEPARTMENT
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DEVELQPMENT & INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES/PLANNING & BUILDING SERVICES
TOWN OF NEWMARKET

‘\) 395 Mulock Drive www.hewmarket.ca
P.O. Box 328 info@newmarket.ca

Newma rket Newmarket, ON L3Y 4X7 905.895.5193
November 14, 2013

DEVELOPMENT & INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES/PLANNING & BUILDING SERVICES REPORT 2013-58
TO: Committee of the Whole
SUBJECT: Heritage Designation
27 Main Street North

Bonseph (Tannery) Ltd. and 2213305 Ontario Inc.

ORIGIN: Committee of the Whole

RECOMMENDATIONS

THAT Development & Infrastructure Services /Planning & Building Services Report 2013-58 dated
November 14, 2013 regarding 27 Main Street North be received and the following recommendations be
adopted:

1. THAT Council not proceed with the Heritage designation of the Murray House at 27 Main Street
North; ,

2. AND THAT Council withdraw the notice of intention to designate the property at Murray House
at 27 Main Street North;

3. AND THAT Bonseph (Tannery) Ltd. and 2213305 Ontario Inc., ¢/o Sterling Silver Development
Corporation, Attention: Ken Kirsh, 53 The Links Road, TORONTO ON M2P 1T7 be advised of this ;
decision;

4, AND THAT Brian Feherty of Feherty and Associates Ltd., 411 Queen Street, NEWMARKET ON L3Y
2G9 be advised of this decision.

Background
Council at their May 6, 2013 meeting directed staff to advertise the potential relocation of the Murray

House at 27 Main Street North and that a Notice of Intent to Designhate 27 Main Street North be
authorized for the purpose of inventory and documentation. Council also directed that after the
documentation is completed, that the notice of intent to designate be withdrawn to allow for demolition.

COMMENTS
With the cooperation of the property owner, staff and Heritage Newmarket have been working diligently
over the last five to six months to find a willing party to relocate the Murray House at 27 Main Street
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Development & Infrastructure Services/Planning & Building Services Report 2013-58
27 Main Street North

Bonseph (Tannery) Ltd. and 2213305 Ontario Inc.

November 14, 2013

Page 2 of 3

Various members of the community that have interest in heritage structures have been contacted
including Pickering College, the Quakers and Georgina Pioneer Village as well as local relators to inform
them of the availability of the House.

While there has been some interest and staff have toured the house with those who have contacted us,
there have been no willing parties to move the structure to date. The owner of the property has indicated
a financial incentive provided the dwelling is removed by December 1, 2013, however there has been no
take-up on this offer.

The interior and exterior of the property has been photo documented and the interior floor plans have
been drafted for historical files.

BUSINESS PLAN AND STRATEGIC PLAN LINKAGES

The recommendations of this report assist the Town in meeting its vision of being:

Well Balanced by ensuring Newmarket’s rich built history is acknowledged and preserved through
designation and/or documentation.

Well Respected by encouraging cooperation and collaboration while being tradition based and forward
looking.

BUDGET IMPACT

Operating Budget {Current and Future)

In the event Council decides to designate the structure and the designation is appealed by the Owner,
there may be a budgetary consideration for defending a designation bylaw at the Conservation Review
Board and/or the Ontario Municipal Board if necessary.

Capita!l Budget
The recommendations contained in this report will have no direct impact on the Capital Budget.

CONTACT

For more information on this report, contact Dave Ruggle, B.A.A., MCIP, RPP at 905-953-5300, Extension

2(%& druggle@newmarket.ca.
) A

Dave Ruggle, @.AWW RPP
Senior Planner — C&mmunity Planning

VA

Director of Planning & Building Services Commissioner, D‘a{elopment &
Infrastructure Services
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Bonseph (Tannery) Lid. and 2213305 Ontario Inc.
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LOCATION
MAP
27 Main Street North
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PLANNING AND BUILDING SERVICES

; Town of Newmarket www.newmarket.ca

} 395 Mulock Drive planning@newmarket.ca
P.0. Box 328, STN Main T: 905.953.5321

Newmarke't Newmarket, ON L3Y 4X7 F: 905.953.5140

November 14, 2013

DEVELOPMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES/PLANNING & BUILDING SERVICES REPCRT 2013-59
TO: Committee of the Whole

SUBJECT: Application for Draft Plan of Subdivision, Draft Plan of Condominium, Official Plan and
Zoning Bylaw Amendment
19TN 2013 002
Part of Lot 89, Concession 1, E.Y.S.,
292145 Ontario Limited
Files: D7, D9, D12 & D14-NP13 16

ORIGIN: Planning and Building Services

RECOMMENDATIONS

THAT Development and Infrastructure Services/Planning and Building Services Report 2013-59 dated
November 14, 2013 regarding Application for Official Plan Amendment, zoning by-law amendment,
Draft Plan of Condominium and Draft Plan of Subdivision be received and the following
recommendation(s) be adopted:

1. THAT the Application for Official Plan Amendment, zoning by-law amendment, Draft Plan of
Condominium and Draft Plan of Subdivision, as submitted by292145 Ontario Limited for lands
being composed of part of Lot 89, Concession 1 E.Y.S. be referred to a public meeting.

2. AND THAT following the public meeting, issues identified in this Report, together with comments
of the public, Committee, and those received through the agency and departmental circulation of
the application, be addressed by staff in a comprehensive report to the Committee of the Whole,

if required.

3. AND THAT Gary Templeton, Templeton Planning Ltd, 71 Tyler Street, Aurora, ON, L4G ZN1 be
notified of this action.

COMMENTS

Location and Surrounding Land Uses

The Subject Lands are located at the westerly terminus of Silken Laumann Drive between the Hydro One Wﬁg
Corridor and the rail line. (See Location Map attached). The property has an area of 1.495 hectares and,
more particularly described as Parts 7, 9 and 13, Plan 65R-33844.

The subject property is currently vacant with the following adjacent land uses.
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292145 Ontario Limited — Zoning By-law/Official Plan Amendments/

Draft Plan of Condo/Subdivision 19TN 2005 004
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North: Employment Uses (Industrial)

South: Vacant Open Space/Natural Heritage

East: Hydro Corridor/low density residential
West: Railway Line/Open Space/Natural Heritage

Proposal

The applicant is proposing to redesignate the subject lands from The Natural Heritage System (Meadows)
to Emerging Residential. The application also proposes to rezone the subject lands from the Environmental
Protection Open Space (OS-EP) zone to the Residential Townhouse Dwelling 3 (R4-R) zone to permit a
common element condominium consisting of 28 at grade townhomes on the subject lands.

Preliminary Review

Official Plan Considerations

The subject property is designated Natural Heritage System on Schedule “A” Land Use ptan and shown as
Meadow on Schedule B detailing the Natural Heritage System, in the 2006 Official Plan. The applicant is
applying to redesignate the subject lands to the Emerging Residential designation to permit ground related

townhomes.

The Natural Heritage System, which includes woodlots, meadows, watercourses and wetlands are to be
protected and enhanced where possible. The Official Plan states that there are two types of Meadows
designated in the plan — Meadow 1 and Meadow 2. Meadow 1 represents lands that are completely within
the existing floodplain and Meadow 2 lands are outside of the floodplain. Development and site alteration
are not permitted in any Meadow 1, however, Meadow 2 designation would permit limited development
and site alteration provided it can be demonstrated through an Environmental Impact Statement that
there will be no negative impacts on the feature or no loss of function.

This application would see the removal of the Natural Heritage designation which necessarily needs to be
appropriately justified. An Environmental Impact Statement has been submitted as part of the application
and concludes that the development, as proposed, will not result in a negative impact on existing natural
heritage features and functions.

The submitted report has been peer reviewed by Northsouth Environmental who have a number of
comments reguiring further information to be submitted to ensure the EIS provides a complete
characterization of natural heritage features and functions to permit assessment of environmental impacts
to ensure appropriate protection and mitigation strategies and conformity with the policy requirements of
the Town, Region and Province.

119
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292145 Ontario Limited — Zoning By-law/Official Plan Amendments/

Draft Plan of Condo/Subdivision 19TN 2005 404

November 14, 2013

Page 3 of 7

Zoning Bylaw Consideration

The Subject Property is currently zoned Environmental Protection, Open Space Zone {OS-EP) by Bylaw
Number 2010-40, as amended. The Applicant wishes to rezone the Subject Property to the Residential
Townhouse Dwelling 3 {R4-R) and Open Space (OS) zones to implement the plan. As this development
proposal does not have servicing allocation, the Holding (H) provisions of the Planning Act will be required
in the event the property is rezoned.

Roads and Traffic

Further comments are required from Hydro One relating to the proposal to construct a permanent turning
circle in the existing Hydro One Corridor with a private access road for the condominium townhouses
constructed off the new cul de sac. There are opportunities for Active Transportation linkages through

these fands.

Engineering Services have reviewed the letter report from Mark Engineering and agree with the
conclusions that no adverse effects on Silken Laumann Drive are expected as a result of the traffic that will
be generated from this proposed development and no specific improvements will be required to the
existing road network.

Sanitary Sewage _

Sanitary sewage from the proposed development will discharge to the existing sanitary pumping station
on Sydor Court. Engineering services have noted some errors with the number of units used in the
calculations and the population figures and require the report to be updated. However, they are satisfied
that even with the corrected expected flows, adequate capacity will be available in the existing sanitary

pumping station.

The applicant is proposing a sanitary sewer across the Hydro One Corridor from the proposed
development to the pumping station on Sydor Court. Hydro One comments are required regarding any

required easements.

Water Distribution

It is proposed to supply water to this development by extending the existing watermain on Sydor Court
through the Hydro One Corridor and connect to the new proposed cul de sac. Approval from Hydro One
will be required. The water distribution system modelling to date had not been to Town standards. The
water distribution system is to be remodelled based on Town Standards.

Storm Drainage

An extended detention wetland pond is proposed to control storm flows from this development and to
provide “enhanced” quality control. It is proposed that this facility will ultimately be owned by the condo
corporation. Engineering Services have reviewed the storm water design and have a number of technical
comments that will have to be addressed in a resubmission.
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Noise and Vibration analysis
The noise and vibration report is currently out for peer review. Comprehensive comments will be provided in a

future report to Commitiee.

Servicing Allocation
Servicing allocation has not been granted for this proposed draft plan of subdivision.

Provincial Policy Statement
The Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) provides policy direction on matters of provincial interest related to

land use planning and development. As a key part of Ontario’s policy-led planning system, the PPS sets the
policy foundation for regulating the development and use of land. It also supports the provincial goal to
enhance the quality of life for the citizens of Ontario.

Planning decisions shall be consistent with the Provincial Policy Statement. The PPS provides for
appropriate development while protecting resources of provincial interest, public health and safety, and
the quality of the natural environment. The PPS supports improved land use planning and management,
which contributes to a more effective and efficient land use planning system.

The Provincial Policy Statement is intended to be read in its entirety and the relevant polices are to be
applied to each situation.

Departmental and Agency Comments

Engineering Services have provided comments on the submitted reports outlined above.

Agency Comments
The Town has also received comments from various agencies that will be addressed throughout the

planning process.

BUSINESS PLAN AND STRATEGIC PLAN LINKAGES
This application has linkages to the Community Strategic Plan as follows:

Well-equipped and Managed: by providing opportunities for varied housing types, affordability and
densities

COMMUNITY CONSULTATION POLICY
The recommendations of this report refer the applications to the statutory public meeting as required by the

Planning Act.

BUDGET IMPACT

Operating Budget (Current and Future)

The appropriate planning application fees have been received for Official Plan amendment, zoning bylaw
amendment, draft plan of condominium and draft plan of subdivision. The Town will also receive revenue

121
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from development charges and assessment revenue with the development of this subdivision in the event
the applications are approved.

Capital Budget
There is no direct capital budget impact as a result of this report.

CONTACT
For more information on this report, contact: Dave Ruggle, Senior Planner — Community Planning, at 905-
953-5321, ext 2454; druggle@newmarket.ca

Attachments
1 - Location Map

VS

Commissioner Development and Infrastructure Director of Planning and Building Services

Senior Planngr L~G19.|’?ﬁmuni’cy Planning




Development and Infrastructure Services/Planning and Building Services Report - Planning 2013-59
292145 Ontario Limited — Zoning By-law/Official Plan Amendments/

Draft Plan of Gondo/Subdivision 19TN 2005 004

November 14, 2013

Page 6 of 7

LOCATION
MAP
WEST TERMINUS OF SILKEN LAUMANN DRIVE
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- Planning 2013-59
Amendments/

292145 Ontario Limited — Zcning By-law/Official Plan
Draft Plan of Condo/Subdivision 19TN 2005 004

Development and Infrastructure Services/Planning and Building Services Report

Page 7 of 7

November 14, 2013
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PZ

TOWN OF NEWMARKET
Outstanding Matters

Newmarket Reviewed by Operational Leadership Team
November 12, 2013
ltem Subject Recommendation Date to come back to Committee Staff Comments

Committee of the Whaole Minutes — June
9, 2008 — ltem 25

Legal & Development Services Report —
Building & By-laws 2008-09 Draft Noise
By-law

THAT Legal and Development Services Report —
Building and By-laws 2008-09 dated June 3, 2008
regarding the Draft Noise By-law be received and
referred to a Strategic Directions Workshop.

Deferred by Council on Nov 23/09
to next term of Council - will be
placed on that O/S list

Draft by-law developed
Report will address infill
development protocol

This will follow Sign By-
law
Date TBD

Committee of the Whole Minutes -
August 30, 2010 — liem 41

Legal and Development Services Report
— Joint Legal and Planning 2010-29;
Ontario Municipal Board Appeals - Town
of Newmarket Comprehensive Zoning By-
Law 2010-40

THAT staff seek clarfication regarding Ontario
Municipal Board hearing timelines and report back.

Date to be determined

Matter joint with Glenway matter
Pre-hearing December 10, 2013

Timelines to be
determined

Awaiting prehearing
date from OMB

Commitiee of the Whole Minutes —
February 27, 2012 -- ltem 18

Corporate Services Report — Legislative
Services — By-Laws 2012-05

Sign By-Law

THAT Corporate Services Report — Legislative Services —
Bylaws 2012-05 dated February 9, 2012 regarding the
Sign By-law be received and that staff bring the draft Sign
By-aw back to Committee of the Whole for approval upon
completion of the community input process.

Public Information Centre
scheduled for September 25, 2013

Public consultation to confinue until
October 9, 2013

Outside Legal Advice
received and being
reviewed by staff

Strikethrough indicates that the item will be removed from the outstanding list prior to the next OLT meeting
Bold indicates that the item will be on the upcoming agenda

Last revisions made on November 13, 2013

{Updated and including Committee of the Whole Minutes of November 4, 2013)
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ltem Subject Recommendation Date fo come back fo Committee Staff Comments
4.| Committee of the Whole Minutes — March THAT Engineering Services staff bring a report back to Waiting for report from
21,2011 —Htem 6 Town Council with the results of all studies including | Q1 2014 NWQ developer's group
Community Services Report —ES 2011-15 mitigation measures if required, and next steps.
Northwest Newmarket Quadrant — Traffic Waiting for feedback
Monitoring Status from developer
Update AND THAT the On-street Bicycle Lane Implementation
Plan be brought back to Town Council for review and Part of Active
adoption including a phasing plan in consideration of Transportation Plan
Committee of the Whole Minutes — budgetary requirements and implementation. coordinated by
February 28, 2011 —ltem 7 Planning Dept.
Community Services Report —ES
2011-07
Official Plan — Schedule D — Bicycle Lane
Implementation Plan
5.| Committee of the Whole Minutes — April AND THAT staff report to Committee of the Whole with | Q1 2014 Inclusivity Advisory
30,2012 — item 16 a draft Action Plan in support of the Ten Common Committee Review
Corporate Services Report — Legislative Commitments in 2013, following input from the before coming back fo
Services 2012-13 — Canadian Coalition Of inclusivity Advisory Committee; Commitice of the
Municipalities Against Racial Discrimination Whole
{CCMARD) Membership
6.| Committee of the Whole Minutes — THAT staff continue to contract Graffili removal | Feb 2014
February 25, 2013 — ltem 16 services, in the amount of $15,000 for 2013;
Development and Infrastructure Services
Report — Public Works Services 2013-09 AND THAT staff continue to evaluate the program’s
Graffiti Removal Services — Update impact for 2013 and report back to Council on the
effeciiveness of the program in one year,;
7.| Committee of the Whole Minutes — April 8, THAT staff be authorized to issue a request for | Q12013 tnformation Report to
2013 —ltem 13 proposals with the intent of securing a suitable Follow
Community Services — Recreation and charitable and/or not for profit organization dedicated to
Culture serving Newmarket for use of the Fernbank
Development and Infrastructure Services — Farmhouse;
PWS/ES
Planning & Building Services Joint Report AND THAT staff report back recommending a tenant
201305 along with operating and capital projections.
Future use of Fembank Farmhouse
8.| Committee of the Whole Minutes — April AND THAT the request to endorse the resolution | Q1 2014 CAQ to follow-up

29,2013 - ltem 17
Hospital Parking Charges

regarding reduction and capping of parking charges be
referred to staff to obtain feedback and input from
Southlake Regional Health Centre and report back.
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ltem Subject

Recommendation

Date to come back to Committee

Staff Comments

Committee of the Whole Minutes — May 21,
2013 —ltem 14
Motion — Asset Replacement Fund

THAT staff be directed to bring forward a policy to
define and restrict the use of the Asset Replacement
Fund to major repair, maintenance and replacement of
tangible capital assets defined by regulatory accounting
standards.

Q2 2014

10

Committee of the Whole Minutes — June
10, 2013 — ltem 12
Borland Court — Repaving Request

THAT the deputation by Ms. Sidor regarding a request
to repair and repave Borland Court be received;

AND THAT the matter of repairing and repaving
Borland Court be referred to staff to report back at the
earliest opportunity on the feasibility of accelerating this
particufar road rehabilitation project.

Q12014

Pending Budget
Approval

11

Committee of the Whole Minutes
September 23, 2013 — ltem 22
Development & Infrastructure Services
Report — Planning & Building Services
2013-40

Cash In Lieu of Parking

THAT Development & Infrastructure Services Report —
Planning & Building Services 201340 dated
September 12, 2013 regarding Cash In Lieu of Parking
be referred to a future Committee of the Whole
(possibly November 2013) meeting;

AND THAT the report be circulated to BILD (Building
Industry and Land Development Association) Canada

Q12014

12

Committee of the Whole Minutes — June
10,2013 - ltem 16

Development and Infrastructure Services
Report — ES 2013-28

Davis Drive and Yonge Street Streetscape
Design and Enirance Features

THAT Recommendations 1 and 2 of Development and
Infrastructure Services Report ES 2013-28 dated June
6, 2013 regarding the Davis Drive and Yonge Street
Streetscape Plans be referred back to staff and
subsequently to members of the Newmarket Economic
Development Advisory Committee to obtain comments,
including reduced cost and design feedback;

AND THAT approval be granted to proceed with the
conceptual Urban Place Making designs for the
following intersections at a combined estimated cost of

$18,650.00 and 1o report back through the VIVA Task
Force:

i) Yonge Street and Davis Drive
fii} Yonge Sfreet and Eagle Street

AND THAT Recommendation 3 ii} (Davis Drive and Main
Street) of Davelopment and Infrastructure Services
Report ES 2013-28 dated June 6, 2013 regarding the
Davis Drive and Yonge Street Streetscape Plans he
referred to the Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee
and the Newmarket Historical Society to obtain feedback.

Q12014
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ifem Subject

Recommendation

Date to come back fo Committee

Staff Comments

13

Committee of the Whole Minutes — June
10, 2013 — tem 24 — New Business f)

Committee of the Whole Minutes —
November 4, 2013 - ltem 13

- Development & infrastructure Services
Report — ES 2013-48 — Millard Avenue
Parking Review — Forest Glen Road to
Lorme Avenue

THAT siaif review the parking restrictions currently in
place cn Millard Avenue between Lorne Avenue and
Forest Glen with a view to implement a three hour limit
and no overnight parking.

THAT Development & Infrastructure Services Report —
ES 2013-48 dated October 15, 2013 regarding Millard
Avenue Parking Review — Forest Glen Road to Lorne
Avenue be referred back to staff for further review.

January 2014

14

Special Committee of the Whole —August AND THAT staff authorize a peer review on the due | January 2014
1,2013 - ltem 4 diligence aspect of the project within a 120 day time
Development and Infrastructure Services frame.
Report — Commissioner 2013-34
Old Town Hall Renovations
19 Committee of the Whole Minutes — THAT staff continue to work with York Region and | Q2 2014
November 4, 2013 - Item 12 vivaNext staff io address issues that arise from
Development & Infrastructure Services construction and confinue to carry out traffic counts for
Report— ES 2013 — 44 Gorham St., Gladman Ave., Park Ave., Millard Ave.,
Davis Drive — vivaNext Construction Carol St., Sandford St. and Beman Drive;
Traffic Infiltration Status Report # 2.
AND THAT town staff in coordination with York Region
and York Regional Police; focus speed management
program resources on the streets noted in Appendix A;
AND THAT a report on the town wide traffic mitigation
policy come forth in the first quarter of 2014 with a
feasibility study of an advanced green signal going
south on Prospect St
1§ Committee of the Whole Minutes —

August 26, 2013 - ltem 17
Motion — Three Way Stop Sign

THAT the matter of a three-way stop sign
immediately included at the east intersection of
Parkview Crescent and Queen Street be referred to
staff for a report.

November 25, 2013




Mike Mayes, Director
Financial Services/Treasurer

: ] TOWN OF NEWMARKET
395 Mulock Drive www.newmarket.ca
N ewimma rke't P.O. Box 328 mmayes@newmarket.ca

Newmarket, ON L3Y 4X7 905,053-5300 ext. 2102

November 11, 2013
JOINT CAQ/CORPORATE SERVICES REPORT - FINANCIAL SERVICES-2013-50
TO: Mayor Tony Van Bynen and Members of Council
Committee of the Whole
SUBJECT: 2013 Audit

ORIGIN: Director, Financial Services/Treasurer

RECONMENDATIONS

THAT Joint CAO/Corporate Services Report-Financial Services — 2013-50 dated November 11, 2013
regarding the 2013 Audit be received and the following recommendations be adopted:

1. THAT BDO Canada be appointed as the Town’s auditors for 2013;

2. AND THAT the BDO audit plan, as attached, be received.

COMMENTS

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to appoint BDO as the Town’s auditors for the 2013 fiscal period and to
accept their proposed audit plan.

Budget Impact

The audit fees are a fixed amount for 2013 and 2014. The audit plan does not result in any alterations
to this pricing. Appointment of BDO as the Town’s auditors will have no affect on the budget.

Summary

The Audit Committee had a meeting scheduled for October 29. At this meeting they were to
recommend the auditors for 2013 and review their audit plan. No formal meeting was held.

In lieu of trying to reschedule the meeting, staff is making the recommendations to Council.
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Background

The terms of reference for the Audit Committee state “The primary function of the Audit Committee is to
assist the Council in maintaining the financial integrity of the municipality” and that to do so they are to
meet three times a year:

1. April/May: To recommend approval of the annual financial statements.

2. June: To review the newly issued external auditors’ management letter with senior management.

3. October/November: To review and approve the scope of the external audit and to follow up with
senior management on disposition of the previous year's external auditors’ management letter
points.

Generally, the first two meetings are combined. At the October/November meeting it has been the general
practice to recommend appointment of the auditors for the current year’s financial statements.

For the last meeting on October 29, only three of the six members were able to attend and it was deemed
that the requirements for quorum had not been met. An informal meeting was held at which no decisions or
recommendations could be made. Our auditors, BDO, presented their audit plan at that time.

Analysis & Options

It was suggested that rather than reschedule the meeting, the Treasurer could write a report to Council to
make the recommendations that the Audit Committee would have done. A draft of this report would be
circulated to all members of the Audit Committee for their review. This approach was acceptable to the
three members present and to the Chair who was contacted by telephone.

Given that BDO is already contracted for 2013 and that the Committee has no concerns with their work
related to the 2012 audit, it would be appropriate to appoint them for 2013.

This appointment would be for the Town's consolidated financial statements, for the Newmarket Public
Library, the Newmarket Downtown Business Improvement Area (BIA), the Trust Fund and the audit of the
federal gas tax allocation.

The plan that they presented (copy attached) has been presented and reviewed. It does not differ
significantly from the plan for 2012 and there are no major new developments.

BUSINESS PLAN AND STRATEGIC PLAN LINKAGES

This report links to Newmarket's key strategic directions in being Well Managed through fiscal
responsibility.

CONSULTATION

This approach was discussed and found acceptable by the Chair of the Committee and by the three
members present on October 29,

A draft copy of this report has been circulated to all members of the Audit Committee for their review and
comments.
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BUDGET IMPACT

The audit fees for 2013 have already been set. The audit plan does not include any alterations to this
pricing. Appointment of BDO Canada as the Town's auditors will have no affect on the budget.

CONTACT

For more information on this report, contact: Mike Mayes at 905-953-5300, ext. 2102 or via e-mail at
mmayes@newmarket.ca

D
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%ke IVIayes cc;Af’ Anita Moore, AMCT
EC‘E@F” Eiiancial Services /Treasurer Commissioner, Corporate Services

O Pt —

Robert N. Shelton
Chief Administrative Officer
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Attachment
(1) Audit plan
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Tel: 905 898 1241 BOO Canada LLP-

: Fax:90% 893 0028 The Gates of York Plaza
Toll-fres; 864 275 8834 17310 Yonge Screet; Unit 2
vewwe bido.ca Hewmarket ON L3Y 7RE Canads

Private & Confidential
October 24, 2013

The Corporation of the Town of Newmarket
395 Mutock Drive

PO Box 328, STN Main

Newmarket Ontario 13Y-4X7

Dear Sir/Madani:
Re:  Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of The Corporation of the Town of
Newmarket

For the year ended December 31, 2013

The purpose of this report is to comrmunicate to the Mayor and Council certain aspects of the

-audit that we believe woutd be of interest to you. The Mayor and Council can play an important
part in the audit planning process and we took forward to discussing our proposed plan with you

to determing whether there are additional areas of concern to the Mayor and Council which-we
shatld consider..

Our éommunication with'you at the end of our audit will be in the form of a final letterta you.
For certain matters, depending on the sighificance of the items, we may decide to communicate
these orally. Note, that Michael Jones will be primarily responsible to communicate this
information to you. ' '

Our expectation is that communication will be two-way, and that you commuricate with us
matters you consider relevant to the audit to the extent you consider retevant and/ar changed
from past years. In particular, we wautd tike your views and input an the following:
+ The appropriate person(s) in the entity'’s governance structure with whom to communicate,
s Thé. allocation of responsibilities betweer those 'éh'arged with  govérnance and
management.
« The entity’s objectives and strategies, and the reiated business risks that may resutt in
material misstatements,

« Matters that warrant particular attention during the audit, and any areas where you
request additfonal procedures to be undertaken.

+ Significant communications with regulators.
s Other matters that may influence the audit of the financial statements.

+ How you oversee the effectiveness of internal control, and the detection or possibility of
fraud.

« What actions you take in response to developments in accounting standards; corparate
governance practices, exchange listing rutes, and related matters,

+ How you have responded to previous comrunications with the auditor.
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Our proposed process for taking action and reporting back on matters that you communicate to
us will be:
¢ Reflected by the audit teamn in the audit planning and procedures executed; and
» Through our final letter to you or verbally depending on the nature of the items brought to
our attention,

For matters that we communicate to you, please report back your process an how you will deal
with these items along with your views and input on the particular matters discussed above if
different than last year.

This report should not be distributed without our prier consent. We accept no responsibility to a
third party who uses this communication.

Current Developments in the Profession

There have been significant developments in the area of financial reporting, corporate
governance and auditing this year.

Accounting Standards

The municipality applies Public Sector Accounting Standards. We have attached our PSAB Update
publication which will provide you with details on recent changes to Public Sector Standards. In
addition we believe the following pubtications are very relevant to the municipality and have
attached them for your reference:

¢ A New Government Transfers Standard
s A Guide to Accounting for Financial Instruments in the Public Sector

¢ Taxation Revenue

Independence

At the core of the provision of external audit services is the concept of independence. We are
communicating matters that, in our professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence for the forthcoming audit of the municipality.

In determining which relationships to report, we have considered the applicable legislation and
relevant rutes of professional conduct and related interpretations prescribed by the appropriate
provincial institute/ordre covering such matters as the following:

« holding of a financial interest, either directly or indirectly in a client;

« holding a position, either directly or indirectly, that gives the right or responsibility to exert
significant influence over the financial or accounting policies of a client;

+ personal or business relationships of immediate family, close relatives, partners or retired
partners, either directly or indirectly, with a client;

« economic dependence on a client; and
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« provision of services in addition to the external audit engagement.

We have prepared the following comments to facilitate our discussion with you regarding
independence matters.

We are not aware of any relationships between the municipality and us that, in our professional
judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence to date.

We hereby confirm that we are independent with respect to The Corporation of the Town of
Newmarket within the meaning of the Rules of Professional Conduct of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Ontarlo as of October 29, 2013,

Responsibilities of the Auditor

It is important for the Mayor and Council to understand the responsibilities that rest with the
municipality and its management and those that belong to the auditor. The audit of the financial
stateiments does not relleve management or those charged with governance of thelr
responsibitities outlined below:

» Management is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
which includes responsibilities related to internal control, such as designing and maintaining
accounting records, selecting and applying accounting poticies, safeguarding assets and
preventing and detecting fraud and error.

« The auditor's responsibility is to express an cpinion on the consolidated financial statements
based on an audit thereof,

» An audit is performed to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement and, owing to the
jnherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that some misstatements of the
financial statements will not be detected {particularly intentional misstatements concealed
through collusion), even though the audit is properly planned and performed.

« The audit includes:

(i) assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether dise to
fraud or error;

{ii) obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment including internal control in
order to plan the audit and to assess the risk that the consolidated financial statements
may contain misstatements that, individually or in the aggregate, are material to the
financial statements taken as a whole;

(iii) examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements;

(iv) assessing the accounting principles used and their application; and
{v) assessing the significant estimates made by management.

+ When the auditor's risk assessment includes an expectation of the operating effectiveness of
contrals, sufficient appropriate audit evidence will be obtained through tests of controls to
support the assessment, but the scope of the auditor's review of internal control will be
insufficient to express an opinion as to the effectiveness or efficiency of the entity's controls.
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+ The auditor will express an opinion as to whether the consolidated financial statements
present fairly In atl material respects, in accordance with Canadian public secter accounting
standards, the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the entity.

Further details regarding our responsibilities are outlined in our engagement letter.

Audit Approach

We have been engaged to perform the audit of the consolidated financial statements of The
Corporation of the Town of Newmarket for the year ended December 31, 2013. We will adopt an
audit approach that allows us to issue an audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements
of the municipality in the most cost effective manner, while still obtaining the assurance
necessary to support our audit opinion.

Under the BDO Audit Approach, we use risk and assurance models to determine the evidence to
collect and evaluate whether sufficient appropriate evidence was obtained to be able to draw
reascnable conclusions to allow us to form an opinion. This approach focuses on obtaining
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to reduce the risk of material misstatement in the financiat
statements to an appropriately low level, This means that we focus our audit effort in areas that
we believe have a higher risk of being materially misstated and do less audit work in areas that

are only low risk.

To assess risk accurately, we need to have a clear understanding of the municipality’s business
and the environment it operates in. Much of our understanding is obtained through discussions
with management and their staff, We would appreciate any information that you could provide
to us about your business, industry, competitive marketplace, internal controls, oversight of
management's processes relating to fraud and error, or anything eise that you feel is important. to
the audit as it may corroborate what we have already learned from management and other
sources, or it may be new information to us. We would also appreciate any insights that you
could provide to us on what you perceive to be risky in your municipality as that witl make our
audit more effective and efficient, which will benefit all concerned. In particular we are
interested in any knowledge you have regarding actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the

entity.

The following sections provide more detail on our audit approach for The Corporation of the
Town of Newmarket for the current year,
Audit Seope

We anticipate the scope of our audit of the consolidated financial statements of The Corporation
of the Town of Newmarket for the year ended December 31, 2013 to include the following:

s An audit opinion on the consolidated entity
s Federal Gas Tax Audit

» Newmarket Public Library audit

» Trust Fund Audit

» Main Street District Business Improvement Area audit
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Overall Audit Strategy

The general audit strategies available to us are a "combined" audit approach or a "substantive”
audit approach.

In a combined audit approach, we would obtain our assurance from a combination of tests of
controls (compliance procedures) and substantive procedures (such as analysis of data and
obtaining direct evidence as to the validity of the items). The combined strategy is more
appropriate when there is a large number of transactions and when controls in the municipatity
are strong. By obtaining some of our assurance from tests of controls, we can reduce the
substantive procedures that need to be done. Under a substantive audit approach, all of our
audit evidence is obtained through substantive procedures like analysis, confirmation,
examination of documentary or electronic evidence, etc,

Rased on our knowledge and experience with your municipality and a pretiminary review of your
internal controls, we anticipate using a combined approach.

We plan to test the operating effectiveness of controls in the following transaction streams:

« Purchases

» Payroll

Assuming these controls are operating effectively, we will reduce our substantive procedures in
these transaction streams and related financiat statement areas.

Financial Statement Areas With Significant Risks

Based on our knowledge of the municipality’s business, our past experience, and knowledge
gained from management and you, we have identified the following financial statements areas
with significant risks of material misstatement.

These risks arise mainly because of the complexity of the accounting rules, the extent of
estimation and judgment involved in the valuation of these financiat statement areas, and the
existence of new accounting pronouncements that affect them. We have also provided a brief
summary of how we plan to audit these significant risks.

Financial Statement Areas With Significant | Proposed Audit Procedures
Risks
o Employee future benefits e Actuarial valuation for employee future
benefits - audit information given to actuary
and actuarial assumptions

» Expenses to Councillors and Employees » Review expenses for reasonableness

Materiality

Materiality can be defined as follows:

"A misstatement or the aggregate of all misstatements in financial statements is considered to
5




be material if, in the light of surrounding circumstances, it is probable that the decision of a
person who iIs relying on the financlal statements, and who has a reasonable knowledge of
business and economic actlvities (the user), would be changed or influenced by such
misstatement or the aggregate of all misstatements. Misstatements In financial statements
arise from departures from generally accepted accounting principles and include departures
from fact, inappropriate determination of accounting estimates, and omissions of necessary
information. Misstatements may arise from error or fraud, or from the consequences of an
illegal act.”

Performance materiality means the amount or amounts set by the auditor at less than materiality
for the financial statements as a whole to reduce to an appropriately tow level the probability
that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality for the
financial statements as a whole.

When establishing the overall audit strategy, the auditor shall determine materiality for the
financial statements as a whole. If, in the specific circumstances of the entity, there is one or
more particular classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures for which misstatements
of lesser amounts than materiality for the financial statements as a whole could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
statements, the auditor shall also determine the materiality tevel or levels to be applied to those
particular classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures. The auditor shall determine
performance materiality for purposes of assessing the risks of materfal misstatement and
determining the nature, timing and extent of further audit procedures.

Although we are required to determine materiality based on our perception of the needs of users,
it is extremely difficult to predict with certainty who those users will be or, indeed, the specific
needs of known users. Consequently, the materiality decision ultimately becomes a matter for
the auditor's professional judgment. We have identified Mayor and Council as the most important
users of the municipality’s financial statements. .

Canadian generally accepted auditing standards require the use of both quantitative and
qualitative factors in determining materiality. For the audit of The Corporation of the Town of
Newmarket for the year ended December 31, 2013, we have concluded that a materiality level of
$1,000,000, based on 1% of revenue, is appropriate for the purposes of planning the audit.

Planning Matters Relating to Group Audits

we will be relying on the work of Collins, Barrow in relation to the financial statements of
Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. We will need to obtain information to ensure that the audit
completed for Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. meets Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards.

We will be required to communicate with Collins, Barrow, asking that they provide us with
written representation in the form of a letter that covers at least the following poinis:

e The fact that Collins, Barrow is aware that financial information from the financial
statements of Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. is to be relied upon in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of The Corporation of the Town of Newmarket, on which

BDQ Canada LLP, as primary auditors, intends to report.

» The component auditor must also indicate if the accounting policies followed are essentially
6
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consistent with Canadian GAAP, and if not, to explain and quantify the differences,

The letter will clearly state that Collins, Barrow is aware that BDO Canada LLP intends to rely
on the work performed by them in forming our opinion on the municipality's consolidated
financial statements.

We need written representation that Coltins, Barrow is independent of the municipality as
required under the Canadian rules of independence,

Timing of the Audit

We anticipate the following schedule for the conduct of the audit:

e Audit Committee ptanning meeting ¢ Qctober 29, 2013
s [nterim audit fieldwork » November 25, 2013
» Year-end audit fieldwork « March 24, 2014

Review of draft financial statements with|» May 31, 2014
the Audit Committee

Communication of Results

At the completion of our audit, just prior to issuing our Independent Auditor's Report, or earlier if
considered necessary, we will communicate to you matters arising from the financial statement
audit, Our communication will include the following:

matters required to be communicated to the Mayor and Council under Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards including possible fraudutent activities, possible illegal acts,
significant weaknesses in internal control and certain related party transactions;

matters that have a significant effect on the qualitative aspects of accounting principles used
in the municipality's financial reporting;

whether or not there were significant difficulties encountered during the audit;
significant matters discussed, or those subject to correspondence with management;

other matters arising from the audit that, in our professional judgment, are important and
relevant to the Mayor and Council; and

matters previously agreed with you to be communicated to the Mayor and Council.

Conclusion

We hope that this letter will provide you with an update on the current developments within the

accounting profession, as well as clarify our independence, responsibility and audit approach.

We look forward to discussing these issues with you. Please do not hesitate to contact us about

any of the above items or other matters of concern to the Mayor and Council.
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Yours truly,

Mtietioe et

Michael Joenes .
Partner

8D0 Canada LLP
Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants
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) TOWN OF NEWMARKET www.newmarket.ca

395 Mulock Drive planning@newmarket.ca

Newma rket P.0. Box 328, STN Main T: 905.953.5321

Newmarkst, ON L3Y 4X7 F.: 905.853.5140

October 15, 2013

DEVELOPMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES/PLANNING & BUILDING SERVICES

REPORT 2013-47

TO: Committee of the Whole

SUBJECT: Application for Official Plan Amendment, Zoning By-law Amendment,
and Draft Plan of Subdivision Approval
Part of: Lots 60, 61, 64, 65, 66, 67 Block 92, RP 65M-2212
and all of Block 91, RP 65M-22-12; Block 155, RP 65M-2205; Blocks
144, RP 65M-2261; Block 89, RP 65M-2263; and Block 73, RP 65M-
2284 _
Planning Files: Official Plan Amendment — DONP1210; Zoning By-Law
Amendment — D14NP1210; and Draft Plan of Subdivision — D12NP1210
Marianneville Developmentis Limited (Glenway)

ORIGIN: Appeal to the Ontario Municipal Board of Application Submitted to the

Town of Newmarket Planning and Building Services

THAT Development and Infrastructure Services/Planning and Building Services Report 2013- 47 dated
October 15, 2013 regarding application for Official Plan Amendment — D9NP1210; Zcning By-Law

Amendment — D14NP1210; and Draft Plan of Subdivision — D12NP1210 be received and the following

RECOMMENDATIONS

recommendations be adopted:

1. That the applications for Official Plan Amendment — D9NP1210, Zoning By-law Amendment-
D14NP1210 and Draft Plan of Subdivision ~ D12NP1210 submitted on April 20, 2012 be denied due to
substantial unresolved technical issues regarding the propesed form of development as set out within

this report.

2. That the Without Prejudice Offer in the form as submitted on August 23, 2013 not be accepted.

3. And That Council direct staff and legal counsel to continue to work with the proponent, commenting
agencies and the residents toward the resolution of issues in advance of the Ontario Municipal Board
hearing scheduled for December 10, 2013 and an eight week Hearing commencing March 3, 2014 with
a view of resolving such Issues. Any changes to the issues will be reperted to Council, parties and

participanis.
Ru
&

----------------

1ith Victor

Associates
URBAM AND REGIOMNMAL PLANNIHQ

---------------------------
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BACKGROUND

Location

The subject lands are located in the area south of Davis Drive West, generally between Yonge Street to
the east and Bathurst Street to the west. The bulk of development is proposed on those lands, east of the
Hydro One corridor, which bisect the grounds of the former Glenway Country Club. Legally, the subject
fands are described as Part of Lots 80, 61, 64, 65, 66, 67, Block 92, RP 65M-2212 and all of Block 81, RP
65M-22-12; Block 155, RP 65M-2205; Block 144, RP 65M-2261; Block 89, RP 65M-2263; and Biock 73,

RP 65M-2284.

Summary

This application proposes the development of a new community on lands that are part of the former
Glenway Country Cluk. The Town of Newmarket received a Planning Application form signed and dated
April 20, 2012 for aa Official Plan Amendment, Zoning By-law Amendment and Draft Plan of Subdivisicn to
permit infill residential and commercial development,

The application proposes amanding the existing land use designation in the Town of Newmarket Official
Plan as ‘Parks and Open Space’ to the following land use designations:

- Stable Residential

- Emerging Residential
- WUrban Centre, and

- Commercial

The application proposes amending the existing zone designations in the Town of Newmarket Zoning By-
law 2010-40 as foliows:

- From '‘08-2' (Open Space Two) to R1-D (Residential One)

- From ‘08-2' (Open Space Two) to R1-CP (Residential One)

- From ‘0S-2' (Open Space Two) to R4-CP {Residential Four)

- From ‘0$-2-32" (Open Space Two — Exception 32) to R5-__ (Residential Five & Site Specific
Exception to permit a high density residential block)
From 'OS-2’ (Open Space Two) to CR2-__ (Retall Commercial & Site Specific Exception to
permit a motor vehicls service station)

The structure of this report first address the application as originally submitted on April 20, 2012, This
section of the report provides details of the appealed applications, a review of applicable policy and a
summary of the technical reports, issues, public comments received as background information for the
statuary public meeting and a recommendation regarding those applications.

The next section of the report addresses the Without Prejudice Offer received August 23, 2013. A copy of
this offer is attached as Appendix 1. This Offer was submitted after the last prehearing in an attempt to
resolve the concerns raised by the Town in the review of the applications. This offer was provided on the
basis that it could be circulated to agencies, can be circulated to all parties including the Residents .
Association, and can be dealt within a public session of Town Council. If this Offer does not result in a '
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settlement, the appellants have noted that they wiil seek Ontario Municipal Board approval of the
appiications as filed and appealed.

For this reason, this report must address and provide recommendations for both the appealed application
and the Without Prejudice Offer.

Apoeal of Applications to the Ontario Municipal Board

On April 15, 2013 an appeal of the Official Plan Amendment, Zoning By-law Amendment and the Draft
Plan of Subdivision to the Ontario Municipa! Board was recsived. The basis of the appeal, as set out in the
submission, is the failure of the Town of Newmarket to make a decision on the applications in accordance
with Sections 22(7), 34(11) and 51(34) of the Planning Act.

At the Ontario Municipal Board Prehearing Conference held August 7, 2013 the Board scheduled a second
Prehearing for December 10, 2013 and an eight-week Hearing commencing March 3, 2014,

APPEALED APPLICATION (April 20, 2012)

Proposal

The original application proposals cailed for the redevelopment of the eastern (9 holes) portion of the
former Glenway Country Club, the portion of which is generally located east of the Hydro One corridor.
The proposed development consists of residential infill, ranging in density from single detached dwellings
to apartment buildings. A commercial component is proposed, fronting Davis Drive, as well as a park block
located internal to the overall community.

Approximately 33 hectares of land is part of the draft plan of subdivision proposing 730 dwelling units.
Below, the proposal is described by building type and block.

Single Detached Dwellings:

A total of 165 single-detached dwellings are proposed to be located on 15.5 hectares. 62 dwellings
are to be located east of the Hydro One corridor and west of the existing single detached dwellings
and apartment dwellings on Crossland Gate; 56 single-detached dwellings between Fairway
Garden and Bowser Crescent; and 40 single-detached dwellings east of Eagle Street West,
adjacent to existing single detached dwellings on Brammar Street.

Single Detached Condominiums:

A tfotal of 54 single detached condominium units are proposed on approximately 7.9 hectares
located west of Eagle Street West, adjacent to existing single detached dwellings on Bowser
Crescent and Crossland Gate.

Condominium Townhomas:

A total of 219 condominium fownhouse units are proposed on approximately 7.6 hectares fronting
Davis Drive West at the Crossland Gate entrance.
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Apartment Building:

Two 15-storey apartment buildings with 292 units are propesed on approximately 2.33 hectares
adjacent to the existing GO Transit Bus Terminal on Davis Drive West.

Approximately 0.65 hectares fronting Davis Drive West, east of the existing Crossiand Gate entrance is
proposed for commercial purposes.

Parkland is proposed between the Hydro One corridor and Kirby Crescent adjacent to the multi-purpose
trail system corridor linking the community to the north as well as future trails identified -in the Town's
Canceptual Trail System. Linkages ‘o the south and to the Ray Twinney Recreational Complex will be

maintained and enhanced.

Approximately 1.76 km of new public roads and 2.71 km of new private roads are proposed. The new
public roads connect with arterial roads where possible and provide new internal road networks.

The five existing ponds on the subject lands are proposed to be used for stormwater management
faciiities.

A location map and the proposed Draft Plan of Subdivision are attached to this report as Appendix 2 and
Appendix 3 respectively.

Application Submissions

The following documents have been submitted in support of the application:
- Planning Application Form
Surveys & Plan of Subdivision
Planning Justification Report
Soil Investigation
Noise Feasibility Study
Tree Inventory Report
Archeological Assessment Stage 1
Shadow Impacts Report
- Parks & Recreation Assessment
Lighting Impact Study
Functional Servicing Report
Traffic Impact Report
Environmental Site Assessment Phase 1
Environmental Site Assessment Phase 2

Discussion: Policy Framework

Provincial Policy Statement

The Provincial Policy Statement 2005 (‘PPS") provides policy direction on matters of provincial interest.
related to land use planning and development. The PPS sets the policy foundation for regulating the
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development and use of land. The overarching goal of the PPS is to enhance the quality of life for the

citizens of Ontario. The key objectives of the PPS include building strong communiiies, wise use and
management of resources, and protecting public health and safety. Reglonal and municipal plans are
requwed to be cons;stent with the PPS

A number of PPS provisicns must be conSIdered for these applications including: Sectlon 1.1 Managmg
and Directing Land Use to Achieve Efficient Development and Land Use Patterns; Section 1.4 Housing;
Section 1.6 Infrastruciure and Public Service Faciiities; Section 1.8 Energy and Air Quality.

The proposed development is the intensification of existing private open space for residential and
commercial purposes. The PPS, Sections 1.1.2, 1.1.3.3 state that sufficient lands shall be made avaiiable
through intensification and redevelopment and if necessary designated growth areas to accommodate an
appropriate range and mix of land uses to meet projected needs te a horizon of up to 20 years.

Section 1.1.3.3 states, "Planning authorities shall identify and promote opportunities for intensification and
redevelopment where this can be accommodated taking into account existing building stock or areas, the
availability of suitable existing or planned infrastructure and public service facilities required to

accommeodate projected needs."

The supporting documents regarding existing and planned infrastructure and public service facilities are
not adequate or appropriate. As set out later in this report, there are significant outstanding concerns
regarding the availability of suitable existing or planned infrastructure and public service facilities to
accommodate projected needs. The Town has provided to the appellant a detailed list of the outstanding
issues. A copy is aftached as Appendix 4. Meetings have been held with the appellant and their

consuftants to discuss resolution of the concerns. The response from the appellant has consistently been

that they will cansider only a limited range of options that do not impact the lotting. No resolution has been
achieved at this time regarding these oufstanding concerns. Until these matters are resolved, the
applications for Official Plan Amendment, Zoning By-law Amendment and Draft Plan of Subdivision are not
consistent with the Provincial Policy Statement.

Growth Plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe

The Growth Plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe 2006 (“Growth Plan”) provides a framework for
implementing the Government of Ontario’s vision for building stronger, prosperous communities by better
managing growth in the region. It demenstrates the ways in which our cities, suburbs, towns and villages
will grow over the long term. The Growth Plan guides decisions on a wide range of issues, including
transportation, infrastructure planning, land-use planning, urban form, housing, natural heritage and

resource protection.

Directions for where and how to grow, the provision of infrastructure to support growth and protect natural
systems as well as cuitivate a culture of conservation are mattars of provincial importance and are
identified in this plan. Regional and municipal plans are required to conform with the Growth Plan.

A number of Growth Plan provisions must be considered, including Section 2.2.2 Managing Growth;
Section 2.2.3 General Intensification; Section 2.2.4 Urban Growth Centres: 2.2.5 Major Transit Station
Areas and Intensification Corridors. The Growth Plan stipulates that a minimum of 40% of all residential
development must be within the built up area and municipalities must recognize Urban Growth Centers as

areas of focused intensificaticn.
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The Growth Plan conceptually locates an Urban Growih Centre in Newmarket Centre, the boundaries ofl

which are delineated in the jocal Official Plan. The Growth Plan sets a target of 200 residents and jcbs per
hectare for the Newmarket Urban Growth Centre.

Intensification areas, such as urban growth centres, intensification corridors and major transit station areas
will become the focus of cumulative growth for both population and employment. The Town of Newmarket
is preparing a secondary plan for the Urban Centre, as discussed later in this report, and will be
implemented into the local Official Plan, by way of an amendment, once finalized.

The 2006 Newmarket Official Plan (approved in 2008) incorporated many of the Growth Plan policies.

The Town of Newmarket 2006 Official Plan Conformity exercise occurred at a time when a number of new
Provincial Policy initiatives were being infroduced. With each new legislative change, staff was required to
review and evaluate the changes to ensure that the draft Official Plan continued to be consistent with the
new planning directions. Town of Newmarket Planning Report 2006-46 outlines major themes that
required adjustments based on these initiatives. Two of these major themes are discussed below.

1) Emerging Residential Areas

The definition of permitted uses for the emerging residential designation was one of the key changes from
the 1996 Official Plan. It introduced a change away from low, medium and high density residential
designations to a Plan that distinguishes between established, or stable residential areas and vacant or
emerging residential areas. : :

The following extract from Planning Report 2006-46 sets out the principles for emerging residential areas.

“The Plan provides that the Emerging Residential areas may develop at low densities similar to the
majority of the Stable Residential areas while also allowing for a range of innovative and affordable
housing types, zoning standards and subdivision designs, where appropriate and supportable
through an acceptable planning justification report. While the focus of future intensification is
directed by this Plan primarily to the three contiguous urban centres (Yonge Strest Regional
Cenire, Healthcare Regional Centre, and Historic Downtown Centre), limited intensification is
permitted in both the Stable and Emerging Residential areas in a form and location that will
maintain the residential character and amenities.

To foster én appropriate transition between a Stable Residential area and an Emerging Residentiai area
that may include alternative built forms, a new policy has been added to the Emerging Residential pclicies
of the Official Plan (Section 3.3.2) as follows:

“in order to ensure compatibility with the existing housing stock, new housing directly abutting
existing homes in Stable Residential Areas should generally have a physical character similar to the
existing neighbourhood in terms of density, lot sizes, maximum building heights, and minimum
setbacks.”

This policy will still allow Emerging Residential areas to develop with a range of innovative and affordable
housing types, zoning standards and subdivision designs where appropriate, while ensuring that those
houses to be constructed Immediately adjacent to the existing houses will be of the same form and similar

density.

147
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It is essential that the Emerging Residential policies allow for aiternative housing forms and densities in
order to be consistent with the Provincial Policy Statement (PPS). The relevant sections of the PPS as
they relate to Newmarket are found in the “Building Strong Communities” policies which direct
municipalities to promote efficient development and land use patterns, to accommodate an appropriate
range and mix of residential, employment, recreational and open space uses to meet long-term needs, and
o promote cost-effective development standards to minimize land consumpticn and servicing costs. The
“Settlement Areas” and “Housing” policies of the PPS further direct municipalities to establish land use
patterns based on densities and a mix of land uses which efficiently use land and rescurces, and which are
appropriate for, and efficiently uss, the infrastructure and public service facilities which are planned or
available. Land use patterns within settlement areas are to be based on a range of uses and opportunities
for intensification and redevelopment where this can be accommodated taking into account existing
building stock or areas, including brownfleld sites and the availability of suitable existing or plannad
infrastructure and public service facilities required to accommodate the proiected needs. Finally, planning
authorities are directed to provide for an appropriate range of housing types and densities required to meet
projected requirements of current and future residents of the regional market area.

With the inclusion of the new pclicy identified above, staff is satisfied that in concert with the Urban
Centres, the PPS requirement to provide for an appropriate range of housing type, density, and
affordability can be achleved while at the same time maintaining the character of adjacent
neighbourhocds. '

2} Intensification

The Ofiicial Pian policies direct intensification throughout the settlement area, subject fo these
requirements. Virtually all of Newmarket can be considered a seftlement area. The Official Plan also
provides that various forms of housing are permitted and contains specific policies regarding the interface
of new development and existing development that “specifically like lots being adjacent to like lots”. The
question of compatibility at the lot line between the new and existing development is the- prlmary

consideration under this pclicy context.

The Plan envisions that the Town's urban structure will transition from predominately  greenfieid
development to a community that will socon be built-out to its boundaries. This necessitated policies that
provided a direction for the way the municipality will intensify and accommodate projected growth. The
Plan established three continuous Urban Centres, which are intended to accommodate the majority of the

future intensificaticn requirements.

The Official Plan seeks a density target of 2.5 FSI or greater in defihed nodes in the Yonge Street Regional
Centre. Those nodes are to be further defined through a Secondary Plan process as set out below.,

A specific number or percentage for intensification within the Urban Growth Centres is not set out in the
Official Plan or the draft Secondary Plan. Other than some of the lands identified as Emerging Residential
on Schedule A of the Newmarket Official Plan, all development in Newmarket can be considered
intensification, provided that it maintains the residential character and amenities. Limited intensification is
permitted within the remainder of the residential areas within the Plan. At that time, it was envisioned that
with the redevelcpment of the fands within the Urban Growth Centre and the remaining lands for greenfield
development, that sufficient lands were available to meet the growth target identified by the Region.

The proposed application is located in part of the ‘built up area’ and therefore identified as an area for
general intensification.
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The purpose of the Town of Newmarket Urban Centres Directions Report is to present a roadmap for the

development of the Newmarket Urban Centres Secondary Plan. The report outlines guiding principles for
future development in the Urban Centres that will form the basis of the Secondary Plan. The Report
illustrates recommended development concepts and sets out the key policy directions for the Urban
Centres.. , :

While the subject lands are not located within the Secondary Plan Study Area, the applicant has made a
request to the Town of Newmarket that lands abutting the GO Bus Terminal be considered for inclusicn in
the Secondary Plan Area and be designated as Urban Centres in order to facilitate higher density
development as part of this application. This request was considered by the Town-of Newmarket and &
letter was provided on July 15, 2012 advising that “since your application is progressing through a site
specific plan amendment process in advance of the Draft Secondary Plan, it is inappropriate to include the
lands within the Secondary Plan Area as requested.” At this time, this portion of the site will not be
included within the work on the Secondary plan and will not be included within the Urban Centre study
process.

The Reccmmended Developmsnt Concept within the Urban Centres Report identifies a framework for
future growth and development and provides for the interconnections between the existing neighbourhcods
and the new Urban Centres' neighbourhood. The creation of a fine grid of strests and block network will
further articulate the urban environment to create transportation movement patterns and develop the urban
fabric.

The location of the GO Bus Terminal at the north eastern end of the subject lands needs to be considered
in the context of the review of the development applications especially regarding the transit policies within

the Newmarket Directions Report. The Growth Plan recognizes Major Transit Station Areas as areas that ‘

will be planned to achieve increased residential and employment densities that support and ensure the
viability of existing and planned transit service tevels. Major Transit Station Areas are defined in the
Growth Plan as “the area including and around any existing or planned higher order transit station ... or the
area including and around a major bus depot in an urban core.” The inclusion of the GO Bus Terminal in
the Urban Centres Designation will consequently have impiications for the surrcunding area and the scale
of development surrounding the station. The Draft Report does not address issues of transition from higher
order transit stations to adjacent residential neighbourhoods other than to provide direction regarding the
provision of pedestrian linkages. Section 6.3.4 outlines transit policies within the Urban Centres study area,
and GO Transit Stations are highlighted as being significant mobility hubs.

The Urban Centre currently has no existing or planned school sites. Several recreational facilities are also
located in the vicinity of the Urban Centre, mast notable and relevant to this application is the Ray Twinney
Recreational Complex. A number of new community facifities including schools will be required within the
Urban Centre. Additional studies including a recreation master plan will be undertaken as part of future
studies of this area.

The directions report for the Urban Centres Secondary Plan indicates that the long-term vision for the
Newmarket Urban Centres s to accommodate 21,000 residents and 20,000 jobs by 2031. The pace of
development within the Urban Centre will be coordinated with the provision of infrastructure including such
matters as transit, roads, servicing, and community facitities.

York Region Official Plan 2010

The York Regional Official Plan ("YROP") guides economic, environmental and community building ¢

decisions to manage growth. The policies in the YROP help to co-ordinate and set the stage for more
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detailed planning by local municipalities. The plan is built on the pillars of creating a sustainable region,
through a strong natural environment, economic vitality, healthy complete communities, atfention to
agriculture and rural areas, and servicing the population.

The York Region Cfficial Plan was approved by the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing on
September 7, 2010 and subsequently appealed to the Ontario Municipal Board ("OMB"). Since that time,
the York Region Official Plan 2010 has been partially approved by the OMB and those corresponding
sections have been repealed in the York Region Official Plan 1994 through OMB Orders. Although the
entire Plan is not yet in full force and effect, the Regional Structure Plan (Map 1) is approved and reflects
the earlier 1994 Pian, designating the subject lands “Urban Area”. The YROP requires that the population
and employment forecasts in Table 1 be used as a basis for planning of new development. As part of
consideration of this application, determination should be made as to how the subjsect proposal aligns with
the Town’s forecasts and planning to the year 2031 considering matters such as growth within centres and
corridors, infill and intensification, provision of water and wastewater services, complete communities and
phasing and sequencing of growth within the Town. The minimum intensification target for Newmarket
between 2006 and 2031 is 5,260 units. These lands are within the built boundary and the policies of
Section 5.3 of YROP apply to thls appllcatlon These issues are addressed in a number of sections in this

report.

A 'Regional Centre’ is identified east of the subject lands, surrounding the intersection of Davis Drive and
Yonge Street. Yonge Street is identified as a 'Regional Corridor' the entire length of its passage through
the Town of Newmarket. The YROP guides intensification to the Regional Centres followed by the
Regional Corridors, and locally identified strategic locations. Regional Centres are generally identified in

- the YROP and are conceptually located on mapping.

The subject lands are not within the Yonge-Davis Regional Centre (which is delineated at the local level in
the Newmarket Official Plan). The stretch of Davis Drive abuttng the subject lands is not identified as a
Redional Corridor according to Map 1 of the YROP

The Town of Newmarket has through the 2006 Offigial Plan addressed the accemmodation of
intensification to meet population and employment projections. The planned development within the Urban
Growth Centre, as well as other development areas would address these requirements for Newmarket. As
set out within Section 14.2.1, when the Town is fully built out, the population is planned to be 98,000
people, Of the 13,000 additicnal population, approximately 8,000 are planned to be accommodated
through intensification in the Urban Growth Centres. As the Glenway lands were not considered as
available for development at that time, they were not considered by the Town in establishing these targets.

Although the subject lands are not needed to satisfy planned intensification targets, the Urban Growth
Centres still require additicnal planning and a number of criteria prior to proceeding to development. The
actual achievement of the growth projections for the Urban Growth Centres will depend as well on the
timing of development and market demand within that area for higher density units. The development of
the Glenway lands will assist in supporting the Town in mesting these growth objectives in the interim.

Allocation of water and wastewater servicing to the Glenway lands, if approved for development, would be
in accordance with current town policy and practices.

Town of Newmarket Official Plan

The Official Plan contains goals, objectives and policies established primarily to manage and dirsct
physical change and the effects on the social, economic and natural environment of the municipality. The
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Official Plan sets the basis for land use in Newmarket for the 2-O-yéér period post 2006. The Official Plan |
gstablishes the criteria for evaluating proposals for change and growth based on a "nolicy-led" approach
that focuses on long-term objectives rather than short-term Impacts.

The subject lands are designated as 'Parks & Open Space' and are adjacent to a 'Stable Residential
designation according to Schedule A of the Newmarket Officlal Plan.  As noted in Section 1.3.3., “in a
sustainable community, a stable neighbarhood is not necessarily a static neighborhocd but is one where
existing lifestyles can be maintained while sustaining the opportunities for new housing and employment”
“Growth should occur in a way that not only increases the quality of life for existing residents but also
orovides a functional environment for the future by protecting and enhancing natural features and systems,
~ minimizing waste and pollution and increasing efficiency and equality”. _

The Official Plan contains a number of policies that need to be considered in the evaluation of these
applications.

Proposed Land Use Desfgnatidhs“

The lands are currently designated as Parks and Open Space. The objective of the Parks and Open
Space System designation is to encourage a nstwork of parks, recreational facilities and open spaces that
provide a wide range of recreational and leisure opportunities to meet the needs of existing and future
residents. Where the Parks and Open Space designation is applied to privately owned lands, it shall not
imply that the lands are fres and open to the general public. : . :

The appl-icétions haVe requested a re~de'éignation of these lands to fhe following:

The application is proposing to change a small portion of the lands to this designation._The existing
residential area is designated as Stabie Residential Area. The objective cf the Stable Residential Areas
designation is to sustain and enhance the character and identity of existing residential communities. This
designation also encourages the preservation of existing housing stock, supplemented by various forms of
residential intensification such as infilling. Permitted uses are to reflect those bullt forms that are existing in
the community, primarily single-detached and semi-detached dweilings. The terms infill and intensification
are not defined in the official plan. The plan states that in the absence of a definition, the definition found
within the PPS shall apply. : : -

The Official Plan reinforces the commitment to protect and strengthen existing neighbourhoods. It
establishes that any development in Stable Residential Areas must respect the existing character of the
area. The Official Plan provides a framewaork for the Town to grow, directing the majority of growth to the
Urban Centres. Limited intensification is permitted in Stable Residential Areas in form and location that will
maintain residential character and amenities. Limited convenience commercial and institutional uses that
are compatible with residential neighbourhood are permitted in residential areas.

The forms of intensification permitted within Stable Residential Areas are accessory units and infill units
through the creation of new lots consistent with the size and form of housing in the neighbourhood as a
whole. Standards for infill lots are established in the Zoning By-law. The creation of new lots for the
purposes of infill shall be permitted subject to compatibility with the scale of the surrounding
neighbourhood, the physical suitability of the site to accommodate the proposed infill housing, availability of
hard services and road access requirements.

The majority of the lands are proposed to be designated as Emerging Residential Area. The objective of :
the Emerging Residential Areas designation is to provide for a range of residential accommodation by -
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housing type, tenure, size, location and price ranges to he‘Ip satisfy the Town’s housing needs. It alsc
encourages a range of innovative and affordable housing types, zone standards and subdivision designs.

The Official Plan in Section 12.4 sets out the policies to assess compatibility. This section states:
Development will be compatible with the existing built form by relating to and enhancing the area’s existing
physical character, qualities and scale. When reviewing development proposals, Council will consider the
appropriatensss of the development for the area based on how buildings respond to: the existing character
of the area, the nature of fenestration and sun reflection impacts; the nature of shadow impacts; the
existing and emerging built-form elements such as height, massing, setbacks, materials and finishes that

are incorporated into surrounding buildings.

Building heights immediately adjacent to a Stable Residential Area should provide an appropriate transition
and achieve suitable visual angular planes. Where a greater building height is proposed, setbacks may be
required in order to achieve appropriate height, massing and architectural quality for the location.

Section 12.5 sets out that buffering will be required to achieve compatibility where development is adjacent
to a Stable or Emerging Residential Area. Urban Centre use, Commercial uss, stormwater management
facilities, and areas of heavy pedestrian or vehicular traffic are land use areas that will require buffering to
mitigate adverse or confiicting elements. Buffering is implemented through provisions in the Zoning By-
law. No specific provisions have been proposed in this application to address the requirements in the
Official Plan regarding buffering. '

A 0.65 hectare block aleng Davis Drive is proposed for commercial uses. The objective of the Commercial
designation is to provide locations for commercial uses that do not usually locate within Urban Centres and
offer a broad range of commercial opportunities for residents. Permitted uses are land extensive retall and
service commercial uses, including retail warehouses, vehicle sales and service centres, business and
professional offices and places of worship. A commercial block in this location is appropriate however the
specific details of the development of these lands need to be addressed through the zoning provisions to
ensure that the site can function properly

The plan of subdivision proposes the majority of single detached lots on new public roads. These lots are
proposed to be similar lot areas and frontages to the existing fesidential lots. These lots respect the
existing character of the area and are consistent with the neighbourhood.

Within blocks 169 and 170, single detached residences are proposed on a private condominium road.
Although details of -the development of these blocks are not provided on the plan of subdivision,
information as to the potential development of these blocks is provided within the supporting reports for the
applications. The size and nature of these lots as well as the development pattern are significantly
different from the lot area and frontage of the existing lots and they introduce a development pattern that is
quite different than the existing character of the area. The use of private roads to link public roads raises a
number of concerns regarding the functioning of these roads especially the introduction of additional
through traffic onto these private roads. Overall, the development pattern set forward for these blocks,
especially in the context of their location immediately adjacent to and surrounded by lands designated as
Stable Residential Areas is not supported by the Official Plan policies.

A portion of land is proposed to be designated as Urban Centre. The objective of the Urban Centres
designation is to promote and maintain the Town as a major government, administrative, health,
commercial and regional service centre. The Yonge-Davis Urban Growth Centre is envisioned as a
meeting place, location for cultural facilities, public institutions, major services, and transit hubs. The
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boundaries of the Urban Centre are defined within the Official Plan.  These lands are not included within ©

the study area nor have Town staff supported including these lands within the study at this time.

The proposed development on Biock 171 with a high density residential building of 15 storeys does not
meet the requirements for compatibility as set out in Section 12.4 of the Plan. The transition of height from
2 storeys within the Stable Residential Area 0 15 storeys is not appropriate. = Although there may be a
justification for a higher density residential use due to the proximity to the GO station, the proposed height
and potential massing of this building does not respond appropriately to the existing character of the area.
In addition, no details regarding the proposed building have been provided to identify whether there is an
impact regarding visual angular plans or the need for zoning by-law provisions requiring stepbacks within
the building design as set out within this section the Official Plan.

The proposed medium density Lses within Block 166 and 167 would provide an appropriate transition to
the Stable Residential Area and- represent a type of built form that would assist in providing a range of
housing types within the community. Additional information has been requested regarding potential zoning
provisions to regulate the layout of the townhouse blocks to ensure that the development provides an
appropriate streetscape along Davis Drive. This information is still outstanding. '

Parkland Dedication Requirements

Section 8.2.2 sets out the parkland dedication requirements within the Official Plan. This section states:
Open Space lands may be provided by the conveyance in accordance with the provisions of the Planning
Act and through other actions by public authorities. All lands conveyed as part of parkland dedication must
be suitable for public recreation uses and acceptable to the Town in accordance with the Planning Act.

The appealed submission proposes one new park facility located to the west of the hydro corridor. Town |

staff advised that the proposed park is not acceptable to the Town and recommended that two small
private park facilities be developed as a component of Blocks 166 and 167. Parks and green spaces
should be connected to new and existing housing through a series of sidewalks and trails. Recreation and
Culture Depariments have advised that they prefer that large segments of parkland to be dedicated o the
municipality be located in close proximity to existing stormwater management ponds (Blocks 169 and 170)
and that a minimum of 5% of the land for parks purposes be provided in accordance with the Planning Act.
Any proposed parkland should consider the new Parks Policy Manual.

Monteith Brown Planning Consultants at the request of the Town provided an evaluation of the proposed
parkland dedication. With respect to the park’s location adjacent to the hydro corridor, it was felt that the
configuration and the narrow width proposed hindered its ability to accommodate features normally
associated with neighbourhood parks. These types of parkland uses are outlined in the Town’'s Park
Development Manual. It was noted that there are currently no parks located to the east of the Hydro
Corridor in this area and that the proposal does not adequately address the needs of existing and future
residents to the east of this corridor in this par: of Town. The distance of the propesed park from the higher
density development, apartment buildings is too far considering that those inhabitants are typically the
highest users of the parkland system. A more central location for the park in the vicinity of ‘Street B" and or
‘Street C' as identified in the draft plan of subdivision would achieve a better spatial retationship to the
existing parks and is more responsive to the location of the majority of the popuiation. .

Tree Preservation

153

Section 9.2.7 requires that in new subdivisions, in accordance with the Town's Tree Preservation,

Protection, Replacement and Enhancement Policy, there is to be no net loss of frees through the
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preservation of existing trees and the planting of replacement trees. A Tree Preservation, Protection and
Replacement Plan is required for Official Plan and Zoning By-law Amendments as well as for Draft Plan of
Subdivision. These Plans must be derived/guided from/by the policies cutlined in the Tree Preservation,
Protection, Replacement and Enhancement Policy (2005). The final reports are still outstanding for this
proposal and this policy requirement has not been satisfied.

Servicing

As set out within Section 14.0, the network of infrastructure serving the Town of Newmarket must be able
to meet current demands and be planned in conjunction with the anticipated scale and rate of growth.
Municipal sewer and water services are the required form of servicing for all new development. The Region
of York and Town of Newmarket share responsibility for sewer and water services. A number of issues
have been identified regarding servicing that remain outstanding at this time.

Storm Water Management

The Official Plan in Section 14.4 sets out a number of criteria for how new development should address
stormwater management concerns. As set out in subsection 1): New development will provide ‘appropriate
stormwater management facitities as approved by Council and, where necessary, the Lake Simcoe Region
Conservation Authority. Subsection 8 states: “All stormwater management facilities shall be designed to
the satisfaction of the Town and those other authorities with jurisdiction. As set out within January 2009
Storm Drainage & Stormwater Management - Town of Newmarket Engineering De8|gn Standards and
Critetia Section C. As noted in Section C1.01: “ Water’ quahty and guantity control in new development
areas are to be provided in Town-owned municipal blocks.” The applications propose the stormwater
management facilities to be located on private lands owned by the condominium corporations. This raises
serious concerns regarding the potential fack ability of these corporations to be able to maintain and
absorb the costs of any significant works on these facilities in the future. The approach proposed by the
applicant is contrary to the Official Plan, contrary to the engineering standards of the Town and raises a
number of implementation concerns as to the workablility of this concept.

In summary, the application for an Official Plan amandment to change the designations permitted on these
fands do not conform to a wide range cf Official Plan policies, are not appropriate, do not represent good
planning and are not supported. There have been a number of meetings with the applicants to identify
and address the issues with this application. These matters remain outstanding at this time.

Newmarket Zoning By-law 2010-40

The subject lands are currently zoned OS-2 'Private Open Space'

The proposed zoning by-law amendment residential zones are, R1, R4 and R5. These zone categories
permit a range of housing such as; detached dwellings in the R1; quadraplex, maisoneette, townhouse or
stacked townhouses in the R4; and apartment building in the R5.

The proposed commercial zone CR2 will permit an art galiery, commercial athietic centre, commercial
school, convenience store, day nursery, domestic animal care facility, drive-thru facility, dry cleaning
establishment, financial institution, garden centre, institutional day centre, Laundromat, medical clinic,
medical and dental laboratories, medical office, office, personal service shop, place of entertainment,
restaurant, retail store, service or repair shop, studio, veterinary clinic.
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The zone standards for the single detached dwelling units on the public road are in keeping with the{
surrounding community and reflect similar built form. Regulatory Set D requires a minimum 15 metre
frontage, minimum 7.5 meter front vard setback, maximum 35% lct coverage and maximum 10.7 metre (2
storey) height in the residential zones,

On June 17, 2013 the Town of Newmarket enacted amanding By-law 2013-30, which addresses residential
infill development in established neighbourhoods. Staff conducted research and public consultation in
advance of a Planning Depariment report dated April 18, 2013. The By-law amendment affects two
separate areas east of Yonge Street, east of the subject lands. The resulting By-law amendment suggests
that the two residential areas identified, are those neighbourhoods that require specific intensification
guidelines beyond that suggested in other legislation. The subject lands do not have specific infil
infensification provisions within the Zoning By-law.

As noted previously, there are a number of Official Plan policies that have not been addressed within the
proposed zoning by-law. The proposad zoning by-law amendment is not in conformity with the official plan
and is not supported.

Public_Co-mménts

A Statutory Public Meeting was held on January 7, 2013 at the Newmarket Theatre. The written comments
as well as submissions made at the Public Meeting have been consclidated and provided to the applicant
for consideration and response. A response from the application to the public comments received is
contained within the Community Comments Matrix attached as Appendix 5. The comments are
summarized by theme under the various headings below,

Growth

The development of Glenway is not required to mest the growth targets prescribed by the Pravince and the
Region. Furthermore, it is identified that the Urban Centres are those land where growth and intensification
should be targeted. The scale of development proposed is not in keeping with the community; i.e. dense
townhome development and condominium buildings.

Green Space and Tree Preservation

The development removes green space from the community that is not sufficiently replaced by the
proposed parkland dedication. The destruction or preservation of woodiots and mature trees has not been
detailed in the plans provided and therefore concern surrounds their fate.

Community Character

The plan for new sﬁbdivisions will negatively impéct the community's existing and stable character with the
introduction of higher density and additional traffic. The proposed plans will negatively impact the existing
residents’ quality of life. A concern has been raised regarding property values.

Service and Infrastructure

The new development will create strain on all local facilities, existing services and infrastructure and does
not provide new benefits to the community through added servicing provisions. The current community was
not planned with the proposed additional dwelling units and therefore it is ill equipped to handle the influx of .
new residents and the implications the new homes will have on infrastructure. There is widespread concern
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! surrounding the sufficiency of schools. The number of new residents will overwhelm the existing schools
and not enough consideration has been made for the allocation of new school sites.

Traffic

There is concern regarding congestion due to increased vehicular activity throughout the community’s road
network. Residents point out a number of locations where congestion may be exacerbated by the increase

in fraffic.
Stormwater Management

Improperly planned stormwater management may cause flooding to property. Current stormwater ponds
are already Insufficient in the community and increased development and runoff will aggravate the problem

further.
Agency Comments Received and Remaining Issues
As part of the complete planning applications, a number of technical reports were submitted and reviewed

by internal departments, agencies, as well as other consulting technical experts on behalf of the Town of
Newmarket. These comments are summarized below and are set out in further detail in Appsendix 4.

Green Space and Tree Preservation

Tree Inventory and Preservation Report

A Tree Inventory Report was provided and a peer review completed by Arbourvalley. Additional information
has been provided by the applicant. At this time, the Tree Inventory Report is appropriats for the majority of
the lands; however, outstanding information on significant trees on neighbouring properties (within 4.5 m of
the property line) as well as a tree preservation and replacement plan is still required.

FParks and Recreation

The appealed submission proposes one new park facility located to the west of the hydro corridor. Based
on the review of the submission, it is recommended that two small private park facilities be developed as a
component of Blocks 166 and 167. Parks and green spaces should be connected to new and existing
housing through a series of sidewalks and trails. Recreation and Culfure Departments prefer that large
segments of parkland to be dedicated to the municipality be located in close proximity to existing
stormwater management ponds {Blocks 169 and 170) and that a minimum of 5% of the land for parks
purposes be provided in accordance with the Planning Act. Any proposed parkland should consider the

new Parks Policy Manual.

Service and Infrastructure

Functional Servicing Report — Water Supply & Distribution System
The following are issues with the Servicing Report - Water Supply & Distribution System.
The report must address how connections will be routed through the proposed development to avoid

conflicts. The Town does not permit private watermains to loop into municipal watermains and issues
regarding municipal or private watermains under municipal or private roads must be addressed. The
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consultant should complete water distribution modeling of the proposed distribution to confirm the'

pressures.

Based cn discussions with the appellant, these issues are resolvable. The appeilant will need to update the
reports and plans to reflect these changes to watermain configurations prior to consideration of any

approvals for these Jands.

Water Resources (York Region)

The Region of York advises that all development on the subject property should adhere to the Wellhead
Protection Policies outlined in Section 7.3.39 and 7.3.45 of the York Region Cfficial Plan to ensure
protection from contamination and incompatible land uses. The Water Resources Branch has no
significant concerns with respect to the impact of the development on the quality of groundwater supplied
to municipal wells in the area. The commercial land proposal of a gas station, although cutside the
wellhead protection zone, incites concern and puts forth policies related to the preparation of a risk
management plan for land storing petroleum-based fuels and or solvents.

Section 2.3 of the York Region Official Plan sets out the objectives for the careful management of
stormwater.  While the subject lands are located in the jurisdiction of the Lake Simcoe regional
Conservation Authority, the foremost used reference guide is the Low Impact Development Storm Water
Management Guide. York Region recommends consulting this guide as well as the Lake Simcoe Region
Conservation Authority Technical Guide for Stormwater Management Submission. The applicant will also
need to have regard for the forthcoming South Georgian Bay Lake Simcoe Source Protection Region
policies contained in the SGBLS Source Protection Plan.

Functional Servicing Report — Grading
The following major issue has been identified with the Servicing Report — Grading.

The retaining walls proposed in the stormwater management pends are unacceptable and should be
redesigned to allow the side slopes to conform to Town Standards. Retaining walls proposed in some rear
yards should be reviewed and minimized at the detailed design stage.

Functional Servicing Report — Sanitary Sewage
The following issues have béen identified with the Servicing Report — Sanitary Sewage.

The use of MH- 110A as the critical hydraulic constraint is questionable. Confirmation that adequate
capacity exists in the downstream sewers, including the pumping station operated by the Region of York is

required.

The appellant is responsible to pay for their share of any improvements required to the downstream
infrastructure to accommodate sewage from the applicant’s proposal. The relevant information from the IBI
analysis of the downstream sewers has been provided to the appellant. The applicant still needs to
address issues raised in the 1Bl comment letter and determine what improvements are needed fo the
downstream infrastructure and enter into an agreement for those improvements to be made.

A number of tachnical issues have been identified in the Sanitary Sub-Trunk System Hydraulic report that
are outstanding. There is a need to undertake an up-to-dats analysis of the sewer system to determine
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surcharging levels and ary needed remedial works to accommodate development. Analysis of the West
sub-trunk should take into account all proposed and possible future development within this sewershed.

Water and Wastewater Servicing (York Region)

The proposed water system design by Cole Engineering based on servicing from Newmarket West
pressure district is not acceptabie for the Region. Prior to approval, the local area municipality must grant
servicing capacity allocation to the development, within the Region's capacity assignment and associated
triggers. Prior to complete servicing allocation being available, staff are requesting that all residential lands
be subject to various restrictions (i.e. Holding 'H’ Zone) to ensure that the water and wastewater servicing

are available prior to occupancy.

Stormwater Management

Functional Servicing Report

The following issues have been identified with the Servicing Report — Storm Drainage and Stormwater
Management. In addition to a number of technica! comments, the following issuss have been identified.

Existing private ponds should be conveyed to the Town and designed to meet Town standards. This is a
requirement of the Town’s engineering standards . There is concern regarding the water levels proposed In
the ponds and the impact the hydraulic grade line would have on foundation drains for the homes. All
homes should be protected from flooding for major storm events, Confirmation is needed that the existing
storm infrastructure is able to accept drainage throughout the site. Proposed lots east of Ponds & and 9
conflict with existing storm sewers to the extent they are likely not developable.

There have been cngoing discussions with the appellants regarding resoiution of these concerns and
responses to requested additional technical materials. However the primary issue that the existing private
ponds should be conveyed to the Town and designed to meet Town standards has not been addressed in

this submission.

Additional comments were provided by the LLake Simcoe Region Conservation Authority addressing issues
related to quality control volumes including existing upstream drainage. The LSRCA commented on a wide
range of technical issues and the need for more detailed information. These comments related fo flow
targets, capacity for outlets, assessment of existing conditions, conveyance capacity, pond overflow
details, calculation of storage capacity for ponds, the need for maintsnance access for ponds and detailed
elevations for the ponds. The appellant has been requested to submit a water balance.

All of the above issues are outstanding and yet to be resolved.

Traffic

Traffic Impact Study

The review of the Traffic Impact Study identified a number of concerns with the proposal. The report should
be revised to address Town road standard requirements, balancing of traffic counts, 10-year horizon and
revised trip generation rates, the most recent plans and development proposals within the area, the need
for traffic calming, any impacts that the proposed development may have on existing and proposed access
points and be consistent with traffic forecasts for other developments in the area.
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There is also the need to co-ordinate the location of Street B with the futlre coH;tor road to the north. (

Ongoing dialogue has occurred between the Tewn's traffic consultant and the appellant's traffic consultant.
A number cf these issuss require input from the Region as Davis Drive is a regional road. An update to the

study is required.

Central York Fire Services

Central York Fire Services has advised that Street B is a long dead end street A secondary emergency
egress from Street B. Perhaps through Block 169 or 170 is required. A truck turning template on drawing
for an Aerial Fire vehicle is required to show maneuvering from Street B both southbound and northbound
onto Street C and along Street A both southbound and northbound at 90 degree turns at Lots 34 and 51.
Additicnal comments will be provided once more dstails are known regarding the siting of structures and
access roads for the development proposed on the blocks on the plan.

Transportation {York Region)

The Transpartation Planning Branch of York Region requires clarification to justify trip rates and why the
rates applied are appropriate for the area. The modal split is not clear in how it is applies to the seniors
living, office commercial, and retail commercial uses as these are not defined land uses in the guide. The
assumptions must be clarified. Consideration should be taken to assess a long term study horizon year
given the resulted trip generation estimates. Trip distribution percentages shall be specific to each type of
land use. A summary of the queuing analysis under the total future traffic conditions shall be included to
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assess whether queue lengths for critical movements can be accommodated. Transit Demand .

Managament initiatives should be enhanced.

Environmental Site Assessment

Qverall, there are limited concerns with this Phase 1 report. The applicant needs to update Section 3.3.8 in
the final report to address the nature of the watercourse flowing through the site. The applicant should
include new cross sections for groundwater flow direction in Phase 1 Conceptual Site Model. A final report
will be prepared in accordance W|th the new regulations as amendea.

Regardlng the Envnronmental Site Assessment — Phase 2 report, there were a number of technical
revisions required and the report nseds to be updated in accordance with the appiicable O.Reg. It was
noted that the reports need to be suitable to support a Record of Site Condition for each parcel being
developed and that the Town should be included as party that is able to rely on the Phase 1 and 2 reports.

A revised report is required.

Hydrology

Additicnal information is required. The diagrams provided in support of the application do not sufficiently
demonstrate the future conditions and how future grading or drainage caichment may be affected.
Proposed development infrastructure needs to be identified in particular when they are below the water
table. The location of the main aquifer unit in Section 2.5 is inconsistent with the observations based on
data presented in the borehole records and cross-sections. The supporting documents are lacking in that
they do nat discuss the affect of vertical hydraulic gradients. The groundwater samples do not illustrate
whether there may be other potential contaminants in the groundwater flow system. Generally there

appears to be some inconsistency in the data used and tables presented. Further refinement, analysis and {_‘

justification of data and the research appreach used are needed.
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Schoo! Boards Comments .,

Circulation to the York District Scheol Boards has resulted in the following comments.

York Region District School Board

The York Regicn District School Board identifies the need for an elementary school site to accommedate
new development in the northwest quadrant of Newmarket. A site has been identified along Davis Drive
with interior access off of Street B. Due to the land configuration, the site identified is not ideal and the
Board will continue to pursue other sites that better meet their needs. Should a better site be secured, the
School Board will withdraw its Glenway site request.  The proposed location is within Blocks 171, 172 and
lots 123, 124 and 125. The School Board has indicated support for dual zoning for these lands to allow
the reuse of the site without a further planning approval if the site is not acquired fer a school.

York Catholic District School Board

“The York Catholic District School Board reviewed the without prejudice offer and states that they have no

comment or objection to the proposed development.

WITHOUT PREJUDICE SETTLEMENT OFFER

The Wlthout Prejudice Settlement Offer was submitted on August 23 2013. Within that offer, the proposal
was for a revised Official Plan Amendment, Zoring By-law Amendment and Plan of Subdivision containing
184 single detached dwellings, 219 townhouse units of which 205 are residential and 14 are live-work
units, 297 apartment units and 30 detached common element condominium bungalows. The total number

of units proposed is 730

The terms of the Without Prejudice Settlement Offer are set out in detail in Appendix 1. The offer terms are
that the settiement would be presented to Council by November 2013. The following are the substantive
revisions to the application:
« the high density block has been reduced in height from 15 fo 6 storeys and a maximum of 287
units;
+ stormwater management ponds have, for the most part, been designed to meet town standards and
ail meet MOE standards. The ponds will be dedicated to the municipality;
s Introduction of live/work units as a component of the medium density block; and,
+ a combined stormwater management pond and open space block has been proposed for the centre
of the neighbourhood.

The appellant has indicated in the settlement offer that existing perimeter trees will be preserved adjacent
to existing dwellings and fencing will be replaced or repaired. A contribution of $250,000 is propcsed to
assist with the improvements to the park facility.

This settiement offer was circulated by the Town of Newmarket to commenting agencies and internal town
departments with a request for comments by September 19", A number of agencies have provided
comments but all comments have not been received by the date for finalization of the report. Additional
comments received will be provided to Council under separate cover if received prior to the meeting.
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Comments Received On the Without Prejudice Offer Include:

The settlement offer contained a number of conditions for settlement beyond the propesed revisions to the
planning applications.

One of these cenditions was a request for servicing allocation at this time. Planning and Building Services
in a June 10, 2013 report, advised that Newmarket's unassigned servicing capacity was 1461 persons
which the Town has been holding in strategic reserve for projects in the urban cenire. Of the potential

allocation of 1461 persons,-Planning and Building Services have recommended servicing for 578 people in

support of the Mosalk draft plan of subdivision, leaving a capacity for 883 persons. In June of this year the
Regicn unofficially granted an additional 2561 persons of additional capacity for general distribution, and
an additional 1000 persons directed towards the urban centres making a total capacity available to service
units for 3444 persons. The Region will be providing further allocations by June 2014. This Interim
allocation is to assist growth within Newmarkst untii the Upper York Sewage Solution (UYSS) is in place,

currently scheduled for 2018,

As of January 15, 2012 the Town had received development applications requiring capacity for 12,363
persons including this proposal and Mosaik. At that time the Town had not committed allocation to 7819.
Given the proposed allocation to Mosaik the number would be reduced to 7241. The Town projects that the
Glenway application would be able to house a population of 1942,

The Servicing Allocation Policy for Newmarket prioritizes sérvicing allocation based upon the area to be

developed - the Urban Centre being the top priority, then areas within Emerging Residential areas and then’

Stable Residential areas. The Glenway application is proposing development within a Stable Residential |,

area. Based on these criteria, Glenway would be considered a lesser priority for servicing aliocation.

It is the Town's practice that all planning approvals are to be in place prior to consideration of a servicing
alloccation request. The allocation request is dealt in a separate process and a separate report to Council.

Based upon the Town’'s current availabilily of servicihg for allocation, current development applications
requiring servicing, and the priority status of the location of the development based on the Town’s criteria,
and the current practice regarding allocation, there is insufficient justification to grant an allocation to these

lands at this time.

The second set of conditions for settlement is related to the remaining gelf course lands. These include a
proposed commitment by Marianneviile to build a 9 hole golf course and to operate the goif course for 15
years with the option that, at the end of this period, the Town would be provided the option to purchase the
goif course. In exchange, the Town would commit to permitting a clubhouse to be constructed and process
any required applications and that the club house would be permitted to be severed and retained by
Marianneville if the Town purchased the lands in the future.

No site plan application for the 9-hole facility or the clubhouse has been received by the Town of
Newmarket. A pre-consultation meeting was held on January 30, 2013. A complete application would
require the submission of a number of studies and drawings, including a planning justification report
addressing, among other matters, conformity of the proposal with the Oak Ridges Moraine Conservation
Plan and the Lake Simcoe Protection Plan. There has been no submission of this application and, more
specifically, the planning justification report or any further discussion with Town staff regarding this

proposal since that time. Itis premature for the Town of Newmarket to provide any commitment regarding

the development of these lands until an application is received and reviewed.



162

Community Services/Planning & Building Services Report 2013-47
Octeber 15, 2013

, Page 21 of 28

Stormwater Managemértt

In a letter dated September 18, 2013 Lake Simcoe Region Conservation Authority provides additional
comments and reiterates previous comments based on the alternative development scenario. The
Authority informs that added information and modeling is required to demonstrate that the propcsed
stormwater management facility will not exceed pre development peak flow. Additionally, information is
required to demonstrate that there is avallable downstream convayance capacity for proposed
development storm drainage. The original storage-discharge rating curve for each pond, needs to be
verified by a current survey. The emergency overflows will need to convey the higher of either the 1C0
year uncontrolled basis or the Town’s criteria. The permanent pool storage voiume needs to be based on
the total tributary area according to MOE guidelines. An evaluation of the water balance is to be
completed. Previous comments from June 14, 2013, May 2, 2013 and June 17, 2012 have not yst been
addressed. Response to these items should be summarized in a cover letter presented with the next
submission. Additional information is required to demonstrate that there is available downstream

conveyance capacity

In a letter dated September 27, 2013 Burnside and Associates Limited provided comments on the Without
Prejudice Offer. The submission proposes ponds 6,8 and 9 are proposed to be in public ownership but
pond 4 is proposed on private lands.- All ponds are to be located on lands to be conveyed to the
municipality. The Functional Servicing Report in Secticn 7.6.1 identified physical features that are noted to
be retained by town staff. This direction was not provided by Town staff. This constraint, if removed,
allows for additional flexibility in the pond designs. All ponds must be to Town standards. Based on the
revisw, it appears that the ponds can be revised to conform to Town standards with minimal impact on the
overall footprint. Suggested revisions to the pond design have been provided to the appellant by Burnside
to assist the resclution of this matter. Further revisions to the ponds may be required to address the Lake

" Simcoe Region Conservation Authority comments. Access roads to the ponds still need to be confirmed.
The areas to be considered part of the storm water management ponds versus parks has been identified
by Burnside and this information has been provided to the appellants.

An emergency access road is required for Street B to either Eagle Street or Crossland Gate.

It is noted that revised reports and further ahalysis is still outstanding regard'ing earlier comments from
Burnside. No additional submissions have been received regarding those matters at this time.

Proposed Parkland Dedication

As noted previously in the report, Section 8.2.2 sets cut the parkland dedication requirements within the
Official Plan. Specifically, the policy states: "All lands conveyed as part of parkland dedication must be
suitable for public recreation uses and acceptable to the Town in accordance with the Planning Act”. The
proposed settlement includes a number of small fragmented pieces of greenspace located around the
pond features and has identified these lands as proposed parkland. These fragments do not satisfy the
policy requirement that they be suitable for public recreation uses. Historically, these fragments are
considered part of the pond block and would not be accepted as parkland dedication. There is no basis
within the Official Plan to accept these fragments as parkland as proposed in this settlement offer.

The Town supports the concept of locating new parkland adjacent to the stormwater management ponds to
provide a central area of greenspace for the community. The location and area requirements for parkland
could be met by a revision to the design of Street B and the reclassification of a limited number of lots to

parkland.
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Section 9.2.7 requires that in new subdivisions, in accordance with the Town's Tree Preservation,
Protection, Replacement and Enhancement Policy, there is to be no net loss of trees through the
preservation of existing trees and the planting of replacement trees. Additional information is outstanding
to demonstrate how this policy has been safisfied.

Tree Preservation

Proposed Official Plan Amendment and Zoning By-law Amendment

The Without Prejudice offer proposes a reduction of the high rise apartment building to 6 storeys  This
revision to the plan assists in addressing a number of the issues regarding compatibility identified in the
comments on the original application, In additicn, the offer introduces a mixed-use 4 storey development at
the southeast corner of Street B and Davis Drive, which is an interesting new element that may assist in
the creation of a more complete community. There are a number of other cutstanding issues regarding
Official Plan conformity and details required for the zoning by-law that are not addressed in this offer.

Remaining Issues

The supporting information accompanying the without prejudice office did not address the remaining issues
set out within Appendix 4. = All of these issues will need to be addressed prior to any consideration of
approval of development by the Town on these lands.

n summary, the Without Prejudice Settlement Offer does contain a number of positive revisions to the
applications and the efforts of the appellant to address the concerns of the municipaiity and commenting
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agencies are appreciated. There remain a significant number of unresolved concerns. The settiement as -

presented cannot be accepted.

BUDGET IMPACT

Operating Budget (Current and Future)

The appropriate planning application fees have been received for draft plan of subdivision. The upcoming
Ontario Municipal Board will be a cost to the Town of Newmarket.

Capiial Budget

There is no direct capital budget impact as a result of this report.

CONCLUSION

Based on the above analysis, it is recommended that applications for Official Plan Amendment ~
DINP1210, Zoning By-law Amendment-D14NP1210 and Draft Plan of Subdivision — D12NP1210
submitted on April 20, 2012 be denied due to substantial unresolved technical issues regarding the
proposed form of develcpment as set out within this report.

The Without Prejudice Offer in the form as submitted on August 23, 2013 was not ccmplete, as it did not
address many of the outstanding concerns with the applications. In addition, the offer contained terms not
acceptable to the Town. It is recommended that the Without Prejudice Offer not be accepted as presented

it is acknowledged that efforts into addressing specific concerns such as stormwater management have ‘

occurred and that there s value in further discussions with the appellants to scope and potentially resclve
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issues prior to the Ontario Municipal Board Hearing. For this reason, Council is T quested to direct staff
and legal counsel to continue to work with the proponent, commenting agencies and the residents toward
the resolution of issues in advance of the Ontario Municipal Board hearing scheduled for December 10,

2013 and an eight week Hearing commencing March 3, 2014 with a view of resolving such issues. Any
changes to the issues wilf be reported to Council, parties and participants.

CONTACT
For more information on this report, contact:
Bart Ryan MPL BAH Ruth Victor MCIP RPP
iPLANcorp Ruth Victor and Associates
189 Beechwood Crescent 1243 Valleybrock Drive
Newmarket, Ontario L3Y 1W2 Oakville, Ontario LEH 4Y1
T: (905) 235-5072 T: {905) 257-3590
F: {905) 235-5472 F: (905) 257-1521

) f/%//bﬁ/ >

K - /:
#
o

Bart Ryan MPL BAH Ruth Victor MCIP RPP
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| [RA T. KAGAN

Tel, 416.368.2100 x 226

Kagan /‘ ‘ Direct Fax: 416.324.4224
¢ [P ikagan@kslip.ca
Shastri lkagan@lalip.ca

LAWYERS

File: 10018

WITHOUT PREJUDICE

August 23,2013

By email
Ms. Esther Armchuk-Ball, Town Solicitor

Town of Newmarket
395 Mulock Drive
Newmarket, Ontario
L3Y 4X7

Dear Ms. Esther Armchuk-Ball: « '
Re:  Redevelopment of former Glenway Country Club -
Appeal to OMB of OPA ZBL and Subdivision, js\ %

We are the solicitors for Marianneville Developmen Lumted with respect to the above-noted
matters. All three development applications’ have been ‘#ppealed to the OMB. At the OMB
prehearing conference held August 7, 2013 the OM:B schedule an eight (8) week hearing
commencing on Monday, March 3, 2014 The OMB also scheduled a further prehearing
conference on Tuesday, December 10 2013 HMThe OMB was advised that a settlement offer
would be sent to the Town in an . effortto restive all i issues as between our client and the Town.
That settlement offer is detallgg herem “}2

The area 0f the property which is the subject of the development applications is nearly ninety
(90) acres. Marianneville also owns other lands (which were formerly used as the Glenway Golf
Course) and which lie west of the parcel which is the subject of the development applications.
These other lands totzal nearly fifty-seven (57) acres.

188 Avenue Road, Toronto, Ontario, Canada M5R 2J1
T. 416.368.2100 | F. 416.368.8206 | ksllp.ca
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The settlement ploposed wouﬁﬁpl o‘%ﬁda 6.5 acres of palk_land on the development parcel. This
would exceed the maximum parkland dedication requirements under the Planning Act (using
either the 5% rate or the alternative 1 ha / 300 dwelling unit rate).

The settlement proposes the following unit counts:
o 184 single detached units (comprised of 160 two-storey detached homes plus 24 single
detached common element homes (on Block 168).
¢ 219 townhouse units of which 205 are residential (Blocks 166 and 167} and 14 are live-
work (Block 172). A
» 297 apartment units on Block 171. ,, ]
e 30 detached condominium common element bungalows (on Blocks 169 and 170)'

The total number of dwelling units is 730.

The terms of the proposed settlement are summarized below

E i
1. Town staff will 1eport this settlement to Town Councﬂ by November 2013. That

report will be a “recommendations” report as Dpposed toa preliminary report. The
report will seek council instructions on whether or notto accept the settlement offer.
If council supports the settlement then | the Town and our client will jointly request
that the OMB approve the settlement’ at the next upcoming prehearing conference.
Marianneville acknowledges that t] are other parties to the OMB hearing and that
they might oppose this joint requeé

2. The above-noted staff repoft will deal wﬁh all three development applications (OPA,
ZBL and subd1v1s1on) The partles will work co-operatively to come to agreement on
the form and content: of the’ OPA ZBL as well as the conditions of draft plan
approval. The OPA, ZBA and plan of subdivision will be substantially consistent
with the attached docugnents If the parties canmot agree on al! of the conditions of
draft plan approyal then the OMB will be requested to settle the dispute.

3. With resﬁ L’t to Block 171, the development will be limited to a height of six (6)
storeys and 4 a maximum of two-hundred and ninety-seven (297) dwelling units.

4 The SWM ponds have, for the most part, been designed to meet Town standards.
"":\They have all been designed to meet MOE standards. Marianneville’s consulting
““.. + “team has already provided the Town with the details of and justification for the
7 differences. The Town will accept dedication of these SWM ponds through the
subdivision approval process.

5. The Town will allocate sanitary sewer and water capacity for seven hundred and
thirty (730) units forthwith after approving this settlement. The parties acknowledge
that such allocation only becomes effective if the OMB approves the development.
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The Town will support the commercial block (Block 173) substantially as applied for
including all uses identified by the rezoning application. Marianneville
acknowledges that Block 173 is subject to site plan approval and that additional
reports may be required in connection therewith.

Marianneville will provide a 6 metre landscaped buffer along the west side of Block
168. The landscaped buffer wilt form part of the block. The purpose of the buffer is
to maintain (and enhance) the existing mature vegetation which benefitting the

existing homes on the east side of Kirby Crescent (i.e. the rear of addresses 273-391
Kirby Crescent).

Marianneville will dedicate (at no cost to the Town), 6.5 acres of palkland ina Ting
park (which is identified on the draft plan as well as an attached park schematle)
This amount exceeds the maximum amoumt of parkland whjch Marlannevﬂle could
be required to provide to the Town pursuant to the Plannmg ‘Act, Usmg the 5%
parkland rate, the Town would be entitled to 4.58 acr es of parkland "and using the
alternative rate (1 ha / 300 dwelling units), the Town Would be efititled to 6.08 acres.
Both of these numbers include the commercial bléck. T both cases the proposed 6.5
acres of parkland exceeds the maximum amounts requ%edwﬁ?nder the Planning Act.
WAt
Where an existing dwelling will abut a new. pro ; sed dwelling, Marianneville will
use every reasonable effort to preserve ex1stmg perlmeter trees (for screening
purposes). In addition and where feas1b1e ltional perimeter planting will be
provided. This will ali be at Marlannevﬂfe sexpense.

Since some of the existing’ fencmg (between existing homes and the former golf
course) is not in good condmoneMarlannevﬂle will repair (orwhere appropriate,
replace) such fencing, This w111 all be at Marianneville’s expense.

&

Marianneville Wﬂl contrlbute to the Town, as a condition of registration of the plan of
subdivision] the sum of $250,000 which will be used by the Town to Improve the ring
park. As the oxi?n i aware the Plenning Act parkland dedication provisions do not
reqmre a developer to improve a park. The developer is only requued to dedicate the
1apd to the Town and the Town then bears the cost of improving the park. In this
.case, however Mearianneville is providing substantial funds towards park

1mprovements in the community.

12

Aaa”

Wlth respect to the lands on the west side of the proposed development (being lands

owned by Marianneville but not presently subject to development applications):

" If the Town was to require parkland at the rate of 5% of the land area subject to the subdivision (being 90
acres), then the total parkland requirement would be 4.5 acres. If, on the other land, the Town used the
alternative rate of 1 ha /300 dwelling wnits, then the 730 units would generate a parkland dedication of 6
acres. In addition, the 1.6 acre commercial block would generate 0.08 acres of parkland,
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Marianneville will build a nine (9) hole golf course on the lands through an
amendment to the existing golf course site plan approval.

Marianneville agrees to operate the golf course for a minimum of fifteen (15)
years but is under no obligation to operate it beyond that time.

At the expiry of the fifteen (15) years the Town may, at its sole option,
purchase the lands from Marianneville at fair market value. If the Town does
not enter into an Agreement of Purchase and Sale with Ma.nan_nevﬂle by the
expiry of the fifteen (15) year period then Marianneville is at hberty to sell the
land to anyone ¢lse. ; s

Should Marianneviile chose io build a new clubhouse to support the fiine (9)
hole golf course, then the Town agrees to permit such a clubhouse and to
process any required development application and penmts expedltlously

The parties agree that the clubhouse will be severed from ‘the balance of the
golf course lands and that Marianneville may choose to retain ownership of it

- and not sell it to the Town. The partigs™ agree thgt Marianneville will not be

under any obligation to sell the clubhouse to the Town.

1:\;_

13. If Town Council accepts this seﬁlement offer then’tt will jointly request (with

Marianneville) that the December, 10 2013,

B prehearing conference be converted

to a settlement hearing for approva ,,_kDespHe ‘the foregoing the parties acknowledge
that other parties to the OMB hearing 1 may oppose this settlement and may oppose the
matter being decided on December 10, 2013 (preferring that it be decided instead in
March 2014 at the scheduled 8~Week hearing).

Finally, although this Settlement o fer is being provided on a “without prejudice” basis, our client
hereby consents to it bemg Thade’ pubhc so that, among other things:

e Itcanbg cueulated to'relevant departments of the Town,
s ltcan He nculated to commenting agencies including the TRCA and the Region of

York

o It can be pr ovided to the Glenway Preservation Association and any other party or

part101pant to the OMB hearing; and
1t Gan be dealt with at a public session of Town Council (or a committee of council)

“should the Town wish to do so. Regardless of the decision the Town will make its
planning analysis public (and thus provide it to our client). The Town if of course free to
provide any strategic or legal advice on a confidential basis.

Moreover, despite this offer being made public, it remains without prejudice. Accordingly,
should the not result in a settlement as between the Town and our client, then our client is at
liberty to seek OMB approval of the applications as filed (and appealed) and neither the Town
nor any patty or participant may use this without prejudice offer in opposition to those appeals.

Page 4
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/ 70

This offer is open for acceptance until otherwise revoked, in writing. We look forward to the
Town'’s response.

Yours very truly,

(/Z/JQJ LG

Ira T. Kagan

cc. Client and its consulting team
Mr. James Feehley (counsel to the Glenway Preservation A

Page 5
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K WITHOUT PREJUDICE] ‘ / i

SCHEDULE 1

DRAFT CFFICIAL PLAN AMENDMENT

THE AMENDMENT

Schedule A — Land Use of the Town of Newmarket Official Plan is amended by changing the
designation of certain lands of the former Glenway Country Club from “Parks and Open Space”
to “Urban Centra”, “Emerging Residential’, “Stable Residential” and “Commercial”, all as shown
on Schedule * “ attached hereto.

Schedule A
Land Use

Town of Newmarket

Stable Residental

£manging Residantial

beyor insbtutional

Susiness Paric - Geneen] Empioymant
Busingan Park - #ixed Employment

Schedule” ”
Amendment No.___ to the Town of Newmarket Official Plan -

3

Commerct J
Uben Cantre

Parks & Open Space

Naturel Hesituge Systern
Ok Ridges Morming Arss

T8 180 Teshend Chsk FXBI0N AR U0
S0 fevRa R of s Cxornd |
Flood Plaln

Pl st ahh oo K Snanh i roatoed N G2 1
e P St TS BB P LT Wend L gomstop b
T 1 3K PR 6T T raedi v g bk dee
L irgup g varvp oy ba rpnsen vy s evlieroond e ot of
GG AT &t B ayralie s

e Vusterbodies
s = Vgtercalirsd
arehlrsa - Infasmitent
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E WITHOUT PREJUDICE

ZONING BYLAW AMENDMENT

CORPORATION OF THE TOWN.OF NEWMARKET / 7 L

BY-LAW NUMBER

A BY-LAW TO AMEND BY-LAW NUMBER 2010-40 BEING A ZONING BY-LAW.

THAT By-law Number 2010-40, as amended, be and the same Is hereby further amended by:

1.

Deleting from schedule ‘A’ Map Number 8, the Open Space (08-2-2, 08-2-32) substituting
therefore the Residential (R1-D), the Residential (R1-CP) Zons, the Residential (R4-CP} Zone,
the Residential (R6-__ ) Zone and the retail Commercial 2 (CR-2-  } Zone shown more
particularly on Schedule "X" attached hereto,

2. Adding the following regulations relaiing to the R3-___ Zone to Section 8.1.1 List of Exceptions:
Exception Zoning Map By-Law Raference File Reference
R5- 8
) Location: Block 169
it) Notwithstanding any other provision of the by-law to the contrary, the following provisions shall
apply to the lands zoned RB-____ shown on Schedule “X” aftachad hereto:
a} Minimum Lot Frontage 14m
b} Maximum Height 18 m (6 storeys)
c) Forthe purpose of yard requirements, the nerth lot line shall be considered the front lot Iine.
d) Minimum Yard Setback frem Rear Lot Line  30m
3, Adding the following ragulations relating to the CR-2-  Zone to Section 8.1.1 List of Exceptions:
Exception Zoning Map By-Law Reference File Reference
CR-2- 8
i) Location: Block 171
i} Uses: In addition to uses permitted in the C-2 zone, a motor vehicle service station is parmitted.
i) Notwithstanding any other provision of the by-law to the contrary, the following prevision shall
apply to the lands zoned C4-2- shown on Schedule “X" attached hereto;
a} Regulations relating to the motor vehicle service station shall be as sat out in the AC zone.
4, Adding the following regulations relating to the UC-R- Zonea to Section 8.1.1 List of Excepticns:
Exception Zoning Map By-Law Referance File Reference
UC-R- 8
i) Location: Block 170
i) Notwithstanding any cther provisicn of the by-law to the contrary, the following provisions shal!

apply to the [ands zoned UC-R-  shown on Schedule “X” atiached herete:

a) Maximum Height 12 m (4 storeys)
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/73

DRAFT ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENT

- This s schedute “X”
Town of Newmarket 1o By-law,
Regional Municipality of York Passed this____Day

of , 2012
W i I RN 11128 — M 7 7

o s st 5 UC-R-

M -
LT
N

SRR RR
b L ; _ o \ W.Mwwm\:qm LT iy M
/LTI TR fdasassnunnniiiiiiiNNinanuw B anssanannnitiil
T} SCHEDULE“X"TO BY-LAW TOWN OF NEWMARKET PLANNING DEPARTMENT
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Location Map
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=

e o Town of Newmarket
= L.ocation Map Newmarket

o} Muniolpal Boundary

rag - Geomatles Divislan, Tha Regienal Municizality of York, G2071; Land Parcel Boundaries - @Teransl Inc, and Its suppllers. All dghls "NN’W%-

177

Daslgned &ﬁroducad by Infermaticn Tezhnelagy - GIS. SOURCES: Railway, Roads, Waler Fentu

MOT A PLAN OF SURVEY. 2011; All other Dala Layers - The Town of Newinarket, 2011, =BEOL>DISCLAIMER: This mapping ls based onthe POLARIS pareal fabrie product eomglled using Land Reglslry System resords and recent surveys an
coniral points where avallable. This mapping is a representation of the earth's surface and provides esimates of area and dlstance. The information depicled on this map has been compliled from various sources, Whila evary afiort has been made
to aacurately danict the information, data/mapping erors may exied. This map haa baen produced far Nustrative purposes only. <SCP2!t s not a subsifute for a legal survey. </SCP></BOL>Printed: May 16,2012
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Plan of Subdivision
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From: Glenway Community Group [maiito:contact@glenwaycommunitygroup.com]
Sent: Saturday, Cctober 19, 2013 1:48 PM

To: Brouwer, Andrew

Cc: Mayor Van Bynen; Taylor, John; Kerwin, Dave; Twinney, Jane; Hempen, Tom; Sponga, Joe; Di Muccio, Maddie;
Emanuel, Chris; Clerks; attorneygeneral@ontario,ca
Subject: Written Submission - Glenway Golf Course - Development Application - Intent of By-laws and Official Plan

Please ensure my written submission correspondence be specifically included in an upcoming agenda packaged for
Council, Committee of the Whole and other committees involved in the Glenway development application.

| recommend the Town of Newmarket clearly state the intent of the by-laws and Official Plan applicable to the Glenway
golf course property. (attached intent of bylaws and official plan i.e.)

This information should be communicated to the residents to ensure there are no surprises on what the intent for the
permitted uses of this property are. It appears elected officials are taking the position of defending the Official Plan; it
should be clear what that actually means. Behind the by-laws and Official Plan it should be made clear how the areas of
the Glenway golf course are classified and how they can be used. There is a trail of important history starting from the
development agreement and several changes to the by-laws over the years and the Official Plan. A clear chronological
listing of the approved uses for this property (by specific sections of the property) should be prepared. The recent
Comprehensive By-laws changes in 2010 will be of surprise to residents and this should be shown to explain how the
use of this property was changed and why the developer is appealing the changes prior to the development application.
All by-laws should be accounted for and explained.

As this development application is being processed it is critical that this issue be addressed. As you should be aware; the
OMB ruling of a development should be and can be appealed to Ontario Courts. {(attached case law “city of Toronto
appeal). The bases for the appeal will be “error in law”. The reasonableness of the proposed changes to the by-laws and
Official Plan and the intent of the by-law and Official Plan will be the bases of the appeal under “error of law”. See
attached appeal of OMB ruling by City of Toronto to demonstrate that this is possible.

The proposed development application for intensification of the open-space of the Glenway property is not the intent
for the Glenway property and proposed changes are unreasonable (any residential development is not the intent and
therefore unreasonable). The Courts are not concerned about the Province’s mandated growth targets, proximity to
the Go Station or the developer’s plans for our community, but will be interested in; the intent for this property by the
Municipality vs. OMB interpretation, reasonableness of this application and the consequences it will have on the
community and the residents. It is imperative that the intent for these properties as outlined in by-taws and the Official
Plan be clearly communicated to residents.

The Town of Newmarket objected to my Aug 7% 2013 request for “party status” at the OMB hearings (attached request
- OMB report - granted “participant status”). This decision prevented a strategy for residents to have the right to appeal
the OMB decision to the Courts. My appearance as a resident and on behalf of residents at the OMB has been misstated
as a compensation argument for residents (attached OMB report page 3). Compensation was one of the issues to
demonstrate the OMB'’s lack of jurisdiction in the matter of compensation, but not the sole issue. The key issue was the
right to appeal to the Courts. Given the actions by The Town of Newmarket, you should insure the OMB decision (if a
development is approved) is appealed to the Courts. As the Town has contributed to preventing a resident from gaining
Party status to have the right to appeal the OMB ruling; it would be negligent if the Town did not assume this role and
responsibility as a strategy to defend the by-laws and Official Plan on behalf of the interests of the Glenway
residents. | recommend the approval by Council for the funding of this appeal by the Town of Newmarket before the
cost of the OMB are incurred and additional consulting fees on the application file. You should ensure there is funding
for the Court appeal and put this strategy in place immediately.
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The community in general is not aware of the importance of this strategy as the Town of Newmarket is reluctant to
support it as degﬁr@@ns‘ ated by the rejection of OMB party status for residents. The OMB is not the appropriate decision
maker for thisg Veetof Meigiven the impact to the community. The Courts will act in the best interest of the residents
while the OMB has mandates which are in conflict with residents and the OMB will not recognize damages or
compensation for residents.

We all know this proposed development application is unreasonable and not the intent for this community.
The Town of Newmarket should manage this application with a clear strategy to appeal to the Courts. The residents
should be made aware of any issues in the defence of the intent of the by-laws and Official Plan in regards to the

Glenway property. The attention of residents should not be in the process to proceeding with development but to
understand how the Town is/will defend the intent of the by-laws and Official Plan.

Regards,

Jeff Brown
Glenway Community Group
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From: Glenway Community Group [mailto:contact@glenwaycommunityaroup.com]

Sent: Saturday, October 19, 2013 1:48 PM

To: Brouwer, Andrew

Cc: Mayor Van Bynen; Taylor, John; Kerwin, Dave; Twinney, Jane; Hempen, Tom; Sponga, Joe; Di Muccio, Maddie;
Emanuel, Chris; Clerks; attorneygeneral@ontario.ca

Subject: Written Submission - Glenway Golf Course - Development Application - Intent of By-laws and Official Plan

Please ensure my written submission correspondence be specifically included in an upcoming agenda packaged for
Council, Committee of the Whole and other committees involved in the Glenway development application.

I recommend the Town of Newmarket clearly state the intent of the by-faws and Official Plan applicable to the Glenway
golf course property. (attached intent of bylaws and official plani.e.)

This information should be communicated to the residents to ensure there are no surprises on what the intent for the
permitted uses of this property are. It appears elected officials are taking the position of defending the Official Plan; it
should be clear what that actually means. Behind the by-laws and Official Plan it should be made clear how the areas of
the Glenway golf course are classified and how they can be used. There is a trail of important history starting from the
development agreement and several changes to the by-laws over the years and the Official Plan. A clear chronological
listing of the approved uses for this property (by specific sections of the property) should be prepared. The recent
Comprehensive By-laws changes in 2010 will be of surprise to residents and this should be shown to explain how the
use of this property was changed and why the developer is appealing the changes prior to the development application.
All by-laws should be accounted for and explained.

As this development application is being processed it is critical that this issue be addressed. As you should be aware; the
OMB ruling of a development should be and can be appealed to Ontario Courts. {attached case law “city of Toronto
appeal). The bases for the appeal will be “error in law”. The reasonahleness of the proposed changes to the by-laws and
Official Plan and the intent of the by-law and Official Plan will be the bases of the appeal under “error of law"”. See
attached appeal of OMB ruling by City of Toronto to demonstrate that this is possible.

The proposed development application for intensification of the open-space of the Glenway property is not the intent
for the Glenway property and proposed changes are unreasonable (any residential development is not the intent and
therefore unreasonable). The Courts are not concerned about the Province’s mandated growth targets, proximity to
the Go Station or the developer’s plans for our community, but will be interested in; the intent for this property by the
Municipality vs. OMB interpretation, reasonableness of this application and the consequences it will have on the
community and the residents. It is imperative that the intent for these properties as outlined in by-laws and the Official
Plan be clearly communicated to residents.

The Town of Newmarket objected to my Aug 7™ 2013 request for “party status” at the OMB hearings (attached request
— OMB report - granted “participant status”). This decision prevented a strategy for residents to have the right to appeal
the OMB decision to the Courts. My appearance as a resident and on behalf of residents at the OMB has been misstated
as a compensation argument for residents {attached OMB report page 3). Compensation was one of the issues to
demonstrate the OMB's lack of jurisdiction in the matter of compensation, but not the sole issue. The key issue was the
right to appeal to the Courts. Given the actions by The Town of Newmarket, you should insure the OMB decision (if a
development is approved) is appealed to the Courts. As the Town has contributed to preventing a resident from gaining
Party status to have the right to appeal the OMB ruling; it would be negligent if the Town did not assume this role and
responsibility as a strategy to defend the by-laws and Official Plan on behalf of the interests of the Glenway
residents. | recommend the approval by Council for the funding of this appeal by the Town of Newmarket before the
cost of the OMB are incurred and additional consulting fees on the application file. You should ensure there is funding
for the Court appeal and put this strategy in place immediately.
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support it as demonstrated by the rejection of OMB party status for residents. The OMB is not the appropriate decision
maker for this type of file given the impact to the community. The Courts will act in the best interest of the residents

while the OMB has mandates which are in conflict with residents and the OMB will not recognize damages or

compensation for residents.

We all know this proposed development application is unreasonable and not the intent for this community.
The Town of Newmarket should manage this application with a clear strategy to appeal to the Courts. The residents
should be made aware of any issues in the defence of the intent of the by-laws and Official Plan in regards to the

Glenway property. The attention of residents should not be in the process to proceeding with development but to
understand how the Town is/will defend the intent of the by-laws and Official Plan.

Regards,

Jeff Brown
Glenway Community Group
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TOWN OF NEWMARKET
} 395 Mulock Drive www.newmarket.ca

P.O. Box 328 info@newmarket.ca
Newmarket Newmarket ON L3Y 4X7  905.895.5193

MEMORANDUM

To: Mavyor and Members of Council
Chief Administrative Officer

From: Ruth Victor, Ruth Victor and Asscciates,
Date:  November 20, 2013 (REPLACES NOVEMBER 15, 2013 MEMORANDUM)

Re:  Application for Official Plan Amendment, Zoning By-law Amendment and Draft Plan of
Subdivision Approval, Marrianneville Developments Limited (Glenway)

NOTE: This memorandum replaces my memorandum dated November 15, 2013 as it includes additional
information regarding population and growth projections to reflect additional analysis carried out by staff.
Of particular note, the population associated with development applications outside of the urban centres
has been slightly revised from 9683 to 9004 to incorporate this new information.

In response to the questions raised by the public at the Committee of October 15, 2013, | have prepared
the following responses.

Questions were raised regarding the growth targets. Is the new development required to meet growth
targets mandated by the Province, the Region and the Town?

All development applications must be c'onsistent with the Provincial Policy Statement, and conform to the
Growth Plan and the Official Plan including the Regional Official Plan.

The growth targets for the Town of Newmarket are set out below:

The current Official Plan has a horizon of 2026 and ultimately will need to be updated to a 2031 horizon in
conformity with the Growth Plan. The policies of the Official Plan (Section 14.2.1) set out a population of
77,000 people in 2005. The estimated Town population as of mid-2012 was 85,453. The land uses of the
Official Plan assume a population of 98,000 when the Town is fully built out. Of the total population, it is
intended that 8,000 will be accommodated through intensification. As noted in this policy, “if necessary,
these numbers will be revised, through an amendment to this Plan, in accordance with the population

target set by York Region.”

Town staff has advised that for 2031, the projected growth is estimated at 116,521 people as per the
secondary plan process currently in progress. Although this number exceeds the projected growth targ
for Newmarket in the Regional Official Plan, Town staff anticipate that the Region will be updating
growth strategy due to recent amendments to the Growth Plan.
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Population Forecasts

As noted in the York Region Official Plan, population (and employment) forecasts are intended to be used
as a guideline for growth in a municipality. Forecasts are based on several assumptions, and unexpected
changes to these assumptions (for example changes to provincial planning policy, federal immigration
levels, and shifts in the strength of the economy) could impact the ability of a municipality to achieve
these forecasts. As such, the Region and Town continue to carefully monitor and update forecasts through
revisions to the Town’s Planning documents, as is currently being done through the Secondary Plan.

For the purposes of this memorandum, the 2031 population forecast has been separated into two
categories - outside of the urban centres and within the urban centres.

Qutside of the Urban Centres

As shown on the attached chart, the Town currently has developments and applications on file for lands
outside of the urban centres that would result in an additional 9004 people. These applications represent
the majority of the balance of the emerging residential lands designated for development. It is staff's
perspective that they will all be built by 2031 as a number of these applications are under construction or

nearing draft plan/site plan approval.

A few parcels of emerging residential lands and other potential infill sites remain for which development
applications have not been received, Based on certain assumptions regarding anticipated densities and (
built form, staff has suggested that the Town could see an approximate 3,000 additional people beyond |
the 9004 in these areas should they develop. Some examples of these tands include the remaining vacant
parcels in the southwest secondary plan, the table lands at the south end of Town on the east side of
Yonge Street, and other properties for which development interest has been shown such as the former

Price Chopper property on Leslie Street.

As there are currently no development applications on file for these areas, it is not possible at this time to
determine if they will be built prior to 2031, however it is staff’s opinion that they would likely be post-

2031

A portion of the Oak Ridges Moraine Is located within in the southwest quadrant of the town and no
development is contemplated or allewed under current Town policy for this area at this time.

Within the Urban Centres

The 2031 draft forecasts flow from the detailed studies undertaken through the ongoing development of
the Secondary Plan and reflect the densities and built form planned for the Secondary Plan area in order to
achieve the densities of both the Growth Plan for the Provincial Urban Growth Centre and the Regional

Official Plan.

There are currently approximately 2500 people living within the urban centres. [t s forecasted that by |
2031 this number will be approximately 21,000. As shown on the attached chart, the Town currently has
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development applications on file for lands within the urban centres for 3359 people. Itis expected that all
~ of these applications will be built prior to 2031, and that other applications totaling the remaining 15,141
{ people (21,000 — 2500 existing — 3359 in applications = 15,141 remaining) will also be received, approved
and built prior to 2031. This assumption is based on discussions staff has held with land owners within the
centres related to their development plans and timing. No applications have been filed at this time for the

development of these remaining lands.

Based on the information and the assumptions of Town Staff regarding growth as set out above, the
development of the Glenway lands is not required to meet the Growth Plan targets.

The residents do not see a ¢lear position of the Town on the viability of a no growth recommendation as
an option.

The subject lands are located within the built boundary of the Town of Newmarket and represent an
opportunity for appropriate intensification. There is not a planning basis to recommend a no growth
option, as they are not constrained on a policy basis due to the presence of a natural heritage feature or
other environmental constraint. The only way to protect for a no growth option would be acquisition of

the lands by a public body.
The residents do not see the value in resolving technical issues prior to the Board Hearing.

The value of resolving technical issues is that it reduces the cost and timeframe for the hearing. It also
results in a more effective and efficient hearing process as the hearing can focus on the primary or most
important issues.

Ontario Municipal Board members can also assist through a mediation process for resolving disputes. An
impartial mediator helps disputing parties reach a voluntary, mutually acceptable resolution.

The residents believe that the proposal will contribute to congestion where congestion is already an
issue. The residents have concern regarding traffic on Millard Avenue.

The application and corresponding Traffic Impact Study were circulated and peer reviewed and comments
were provided in response. It was identified that the study should be revised to address a number of
issues, including; the Town road standard requirements; balancing of traffic counts; a 10-year horizon and
revised trip generation rates; other development plans in the area; the need for traffic calming; any
impacts on existing access points. Further revisions to the Traffic impact Study are required. Any revised
studies will be reviewed by the Town and Region to ensure municipal concerns will be addressed.

The street configuration is such that Millard Street terminates at Eagle Street West where proposed storm
water management ponds are located. As mentioned above, the application and corresponding Traffic
Impact Study were circulated and peer reviewed and comments were provided in response. The applicant
has been requested to address this matter in any further submissions.
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The residents wish to retain green space in order to “leave a legacy”.

The subject property does not form part of Newmarket's overali park system at this time as it is privately |
owned. The Official Plan Section 8.2(4) states “Where the Parks and Open Space designation is applied to
privately owned lands, it shall not imply that the lands are free and open to the general public..”. The
location of park facilities and the amount of land to come into public ownership is an important part of

what is reviewed under the development application process.
The residents have concerns with respect to the potential loss to property value.

The planning process addresses issues of compatibility, mitigation of impacts and other matters. It does
not directly address property values. It is recognized that this is a concern for the residents.

The residents would like the School Board to be clear about their intentions regarding a school site.

In a letter dated September 24, 2013 the School Board identified the need for an elementary school site to
serve new development in the northwest quadrant of Newmarket. The letter expressed that access issues
represented constraints on locating a site with optimal standards. The School Board advised that if a
better site could be located to serve the northwest quadrant of Newmarket, they would reassess the
requirement for a site on the Glenway lands. Subsequently, the School Board advised that indeed a better
site, meeting optimal standards for a new school could be located outside of the Glenway lands.

The residents have questions about the status of the western golf course land if there is no settiement.

The western portion of the golf course is not part of the application and, therefore, it is not within the
scope of this process. Original submission materials suggest that the westerly golf course lands are to be
retained and operated as a golf course. Until an application is submitted for those lands, the current

policy framework applies.

The Glenway proposal is significant in its scale and should trigger a more holistic examination through
and Official Plan Review. There is a concern that there was a lack of a Town led planning process. There
was not enough public consultation and the report does not address future residents’ invalvement in
the process. The application should be rejected until a proper Official Plan process can be conducted
involving the community and led by the Town. The Glenway Preservation Association should be part of

any settlement discussions.

As part of the review of the application, additional community consultation was undertaken with respect
to this proposal, all relevant agencies were canvassed, their comments documented and subsequently
relayed to the applicant for their consideration. The development application preview process has been
thorough and was designed to identify and potentially address issues of concern. Questions on matters
such as parkland and school requirements were discussed and considered not only in the context of this
specific site but in terms of the broader community requirements and the ongoing Secondary Plan process

for the adjacent Urhan Centre lands.
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A secondary plan process would have equally undertaken a similar community and agency consultation
process and would have been a valuable undertaking if there were options regarding potential land uses
for the redevelopment of this area. As these lands are interwoven into a residential community, the only
option for land use is residential. The policies of the Official Plan provide direction as to the type of
development that should be considered for these lands based on the approved land uses for the adjacent

land.

The Glenway Preservation Association is a party to the Ontario Municipal Hearing process and, therefore,
will be informed of any settlements on this matter. The applicant has publicly provided any without
prejudice settlement offers and has advised that they will do the same in the future if any further offers

are made,

Ruth Victor MCIP RPP
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Summary of Approved Development Applications where Building Permits have not been issued as of
August 2012 QUTSIDE of the Urban Centres

——,

Application Units Total
Population
Singles Semi/fLink Townhouse Apartment Seniors
711371 Oxford Homes 10 '
784773 Ont Ltd 85
Lowton Phase 6
784773 Ont Ltd 193 41
Lowton Phase 7
Landmark Estates 102
Mademont Yonge Inc. 80
Daniels 101
Zamani Homes 27
National Homes 142
Goldstein Copper Hills 392
Cadar Manor Trinison 322 40
Total by units 1144 142 249
(x parson per unit 3.25 2,88 2.63 1.72
estimate)
Population 3718 409 655 4782 |

;

summary of Applications Where Site Plan or Planning Applications have not been approved as of August '

2012 OUTSIDE the Urban Centres

Application Units Total
Population
Singles Semi/Link Townhouse Apartment Seniors
Mosaik 123 62
Toth 111 46 571
Clocktower 150
487 Queen 16
281 Main Street North 2 5
Forest Green 214 304
Ardree 50
Cougs 27
Total by units 284 110 837 454
{x person per unit 3.25 2.88 2.63 1.72
estimate)
Population 923 317 2201 781 4222
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Summary of Applications WITHIN the Urban Centres

227 |

K Application Units Total
Population
Singles Semi/Link Townhouse Apartment Seniors
39 Davis Drive (Tricap) 280
22 George Street 115
(480770 Ltd)
55 Eagle (Millford) 38 154
Yonge/Millard {Kerbel) 360
345 Davis Drive 55
Slessor 644 214
212 Davis 150
Total by units 33 1758
(x person per unit 2.63 1.72 1.1
astimate)
Population 100 3024 235 3359

TOTAL POPULATION IN APPLICATIONS

i OUTSIDE URBAN CENTRES
- WITHIN URBAN CENTRES

TOTAL

9004
3359

12,363
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TOWN OF NEWMARKET
‘) 395 Mulock Drive www.newmarket.ca

P.O. Box 328 info@newmarket.ca
N ewma rket Newmarket, ON L3Y 4X7 905.895.5193

MEMORANDUM

To: Mayor and Members of Council
Chief Administrative Officer

From: Richard C. Nethery, BES MCIP, RPP, Director of Planning and Building Services
Date: November 22, 2013
Re: Development and Infrastructure/Planning and Building Services Report 2013-55

Application for Zoning By-Law Amendment
178, 180, 184, 188, 190 and 194 Main Street

It has been brought to our attention that Planning Report 2013-55 regarding the Clock Tower
redevelopment proposal contains a comment that is inconsistent with the applicants proposal. The last
two lines under the heading “Proposal” reads as such:

“The proposed two storeys of underground parking would extend under the existing library parking and a
portion of the Market Square parking lot. If deemed appropriate, it will be necessary to provide easements
to allow the underground parking garage to extend into Town owed property.”

If fact, the applicant is proposing that the underground parking arrangement be by way of stratified title
and hence would be a conveyance, not an easement. For clarity, the last line in this should read:

“If deemed appropriate, it will be necessary to enter into a strata ownership agreement with the Town
which would allow for the underground parking area to extend beyond the site boundary.”

Richard C. Nethery, BES, MCIP, RPP
Director of Planning and Building Services



Sub-Committeec Report - Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee to be submitted
to Council and the Planning department.

Clock-Tower Development Re-zoning Request
Oct. 7.2013.

Whereas:

1. (We) have reviewed the project elevation drawings in detail. We have questions
regarding some of the measurements included in these drawings.

2. (We) have reviewed the Heritage Impact Assessment 180-94 Main Str. South
Newmarket - August 2013

3. (We) have reviewed the Newmarket Urban Centres Secondary Plan (draft) Sept.
27, 2013 with regard to proposed regulations relevant to the Clock-Tower
Development.

4. (We) have conducted a walk-about to assess current line of sight from various
points of view related to the current structures and the proposed design. We have
photographed the proposed project area from various lines of sight and these
photographs are appended with comments.

5. (We) have reviewed the Ministry of Culture’s guidelines as presented in the
“HERITAGE TOOL KIT” for both individual properties and those within a Heritage
Conservation District.

OUR EVALUATION OF THE FIVE ISSUES:

1.  We have examined the drawings provided and, using the appropriate scale,
have found quite a few variances between the actual drawings and the
stated measurements. We understand the instruction “Do Not Scale”
attached to the drawings but seek clarification as to which is to be relied

" upon ... the drawings or the listed measurements?

2. Onreviewing the Heritage Assessment we find that the drawings included
in the study do not match the drawings proposed. The drawings in the
study are those negotiated by Heritage Newmarket with the developer and
reflect the guidelines “ to preserve, repair and maintain” the historic
facades of the buildings between the Clock Tower and the Sovereign Bank
building to the south. If this was not possible the developer agreed to
replicate those facades as indicated in the Heritage Impact Assessment.
Whereas we are now shown that the developer intends to demolish those
buildings! This is not acceptable to the Heritage Newmarket Advisory
Committee and , perhaps, may not even be acceptable to the Heritage

219
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3.

Urban Centres Secondary Plan: (draft):
7.3.9. Landmarks and Public Views:

Consultant who wrote the study. This is a major change as the buildings are
located in a Municipally designated Heritage Conservation District.

“The town may identify significant views and landmark buildings that will
be considered in the review of any development proposal, to ensure the
view corridors to them remain legible”.

Section 14.2.5 Zoning (lands) “that are considered premature or
inappropriate for development for any one or more of the following
reasons.”

ii (c) “the existing street network does not have the capacity or is 1
inadequately designed for the anticipated traffic from development and/or 3
the access it requires.

We think that Park Avenue, is inadequate for the volume of traffic the
increase in density created by this proposal would create. The volume of
traffic flowing up and down Main street in particular would be excessive
creating noise, idling, fumes, and negatively impact the atmosphere of the
district due to excessive traffic.

Table 4: page 110 (Secondary plan) The proposed residential density for
the Historic Downtown Centre is a maximum of 80 units per hectare. Floor
space index up to and including 1.0 FSI (maximum floor space index) 60-
200 maximum persons and employees (OPA#7) By-law 2012-42.

4. The following are the actual photographs taken in situ and our comments

relating to them:

- The current line of sight south allows the 0ld Town Hall to be fully visible
from a point directly north of the Town Hall to Park Avenue, and fully in
view walking west until obscured by the library. See photograph 001
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Photo 001
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~ The current line of sight north from the 0ld Town Hall Provides a view of
the west __end, and beautiful Trinity United Church building.

See photographs 002, 003,004,005 Trinity Church would be almost
entirely obstructed (except for the peaks of the church roof) from view by
the proposed Clock-Tower building.

Photo 002
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Photo 003
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Photo 004

Photo 00



- The current view from the centre of Market Square allows the old clock
tower to be visible with only a small part of it obscured by the existing
building. From this position, the proposed condominium would fully
obscure the clock tower from view. Photograph 006A.

2 LR B AN
Photo 0064
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The current view of the United Church from the southwest (east of the
library) shows the church fully visible. The view of the church from this
angle would be significantly obstructed by the proposed condominium. This
would be a serious loss to the openness and overall beauty of the market
square area with currently picturesque features on all four sides of the
square. (clock east/Town Hall south/United Church north/library east.)
Photograph 006B
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Photo 0068
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- A view of the clock tower from the west on Park Avenue shows most of the
tower and the complete clock face is visible from the north sidewalk.
Photograph 007

Photo 007
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- A view of the clock tower from the centre of Park Avenue west shows the
tower and clock face(s) quite visible. Photograph 008

<

Photo 008




- A view of the clock tower from Park Ave. West, from the south sidewalk at
the western houndary of Market Square (next to the library) shows the
clock tower is largely visible and the clock face(s) visible. It is our belief
that the tower is only visible because the existing building is set back and
angled away from the sidewalk to permit as much line of sight as possible.
Without significant setback of the proposed building to the south (or angled
as per current building), it is our view that the old clock tower would be
obscured. Photograph 009

Photo 009
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- The line of sight from the east side of Main Street across from the original
Post Office Customs building allows a partial view of the top of the 0ld
Town Hall. It is our belief that the proposed condominium would
eliminate this partial view altogether. Photograph 0010. :

Hold onto these photographs because these views will never be possible
again if the Clock Tower project goes ahead as proposed.

Photo 0010
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5. The following excerpts are taken from the Ontario Heritage Tool Kit as they
define the terms conserved and Cultural Heritage Landscapes (i.e.
Municipal Main Streets with a cultural heritage values) in the Ontario
Heritage Act:

What is meant by Conserved?
In the PPS,2005, conserved means the identification, protection, use and/or

management of cultural heritage and archaeological resources in such a
way that their heritage values, attributes and integrity are retained. This
may be addressed through a conservation plan or heritage impact
assessment.

The Ontario Heritage Act enables municipalities to identify, list and protect
properties with cultural heritage value or interest. [t also gives
municipalities and the Ontario Heritage Trust, and agency of the Ministry of
Culture, which is dedicated to identifying, preserving, protecting and
promoting Ontario’s rich and varied heritage resources.

What is meant by Cultural Heritage Landscapes (i.e. Cultural Heritage Main

Streets)?

The conservation of a significant Cultural Heritage Landscapes (Main
Streets) considers not only the preservation of specific features which make
up the landscape, but also the relationships of such features inside and
outside its boundaries. Consideration should also be give to the
surrounding context which a cultural heritage landscape is located and the
need for conservation strategies such as buffer zones.

The Ontario Heritage Act enables municipalities to identify, list and protect
properties with cultural heritage value or interest. It also gives
municipalities and the Ontario Heritage Trust the ability to hold heritage
conservation easements on real property. The Ontario Heritage Trust, an
agency of the Ministry of Culture, is dedicated to identifying, preserving,
protecting and promoting Ontario’s rich and varied heritage resources.
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From: Gord Tozer

Sent: November-24-13 9:45 AM
To: Clerks

Subject: Glenway development

I only ask one thing from our Town Council:

Vote to defend the Glenway Green Space at the OMB hearings by turning down the developers
proposal to build on this valuable Green Space. This is your opportunity to secure your legacy by
protecting a valuable Newmarket asset which will be enjoyed by Newmarket families for years
to come.

Gord Tozer
Newmarket, ON
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From: B Gard

Sent: November-24-13 10:12 AM

To: Mayor Van Bynen; Taylor, John; Vegh, Tom; Kerwin, Dave; Twinney, Jane; Hempen, Tom; Sponga,
Joe; Di Muccio, Maddie; Emanuel, Chris; Clerks

Cc: contact@preserveglenway.ca; Subject: PLEASE VOTE "NO” TO REDEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL OF
GLENWAY PROPERTY

Dear Members of the Newmatlket Town Council,

My wife and I have seen Newmarket grow tremendously as a Town during the 24 years we’ve lived here. We've
seen a community grow even more in the past 2 years. I bet you're thinking that the community I'm referring to is
Glenway. It's actually all the residential communities of Newmarket that have had to band together to fight for their
neighbourhood identities and the life they wanted to make for themselves and their families... it’s McGregor Farm,
it’s Millard & Yonge, it’s Slessor Square, it’s the Main Street area and it’s Glenway. Residents are different and
they are the same. Residents want to protect the home and community value they made a life around. They expect
their elected representatives to protect these values through tools like the Official Plan and thorough Town planning
reviews that don’t narrowly focus on technical aspects of a Developer’s application.

We have seen all too often lately Developers bullying cur Town into accepting much less for us as
residents. Threats around needing to spend hundreds of thousands of dollars fighting an OMB Hearing are used by
Developer lawyers. What are the costs if we don’t fight? Do we hand over our Town to Developers!!

By approving this development you will introduce 86,000 taxpaying residents to:

¢ New infrastructure costs. The fact is development dollars pay for roughly 71% of required infrastructure
based on York Region statistics. Taxpayers pay the shortfall.

¢ Liabilities such as the SWM ponds which could easily cost millions of lifecycle costs and are not even up
to code standards today.

s The cost of ap unnecessary elementary school because of development. This is a taxpayer cost at both the
Municipal and Provincial level by there is only one taxpayer!

s Services for assuming roadways and adding to the rising costs of water allocation

s The acceleration of infrastructure obsolescence. Just ask Toronto what infrastructure is now costing it
every year due to infill housing development strain.

You, as Town Council, have an important job in shaping what Newmatket is all about. Is it about unplanned
development versus defending the Town’s OP and Secondary Growth Planning process? Our Town will “blow
away” growth targets by 2031 without the inappropriate and divergent Glenway infill development

application. Frankly, it is concerning we may be developing beyond our means to achieve healthy growth! TIs it
about Developers leveraging their potential profits against the future taxation and liabilities of 86,000 taxpaying
residents? Is it about who runs our Town if you all raise your hands and say Uncle!

The good work you have done to make Newmarket a top 10 place to live in Canada is your legacy. Your Planning
department needs direction and support from you as our elected representatives to defend our OP in action and not
just in words. We want the healthy growth of our Town to sustain the great legacy we confirm every 4 years next
November. We implore you to defend our OP, protect our communities and fight for your constituents and
OPPOSE Marianneville’s application for development!

Brian & Kelly Gard
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From: Brian Greiner

Sent: November-24-13 6:30 PM

To: Clerks

Subject: opposition to the proposed Glenway developement

Brian Greiner

Newmarket, ON

L3X 184

| am a resident in the Glenway area, and | am opposed to the proposed development.

My opposition is not based only on the technical issues, although those are both legion and serious.

My key concern is the failure of the Town of Newmarket to oppose this development on the
fundamental principle that it violates the Town's official plan.

This proposed development is a major development, not some minor change.
it involves many houses, townhouses, and apartment buildings in an area formerly designated as green
space.

This proposed development is planned to take place in the middle of a mature neighbourhood, in direct
contravention of the Town's official plan.

If the Town fails to fight this proposed development on the basis that is contravenes the Official Plan,
then why should any developer want to work within the Official Plan?

If the Town fails to fight this proposed development then how can any developer who has worked
within the Official Plan fail to feel that they have been played for a fool?

If the Town fails to fight this proposed development, then why should any resident place any faith in the
Town or its Official Plan when a developer can overturn it at will? Why should any resident waste their
time contributing to future planning? Why should any resident or developer consider the Town Official
Plan to be anything other than an expensive joke?

Why would the Town allow a developer to dictate how development should take place in one of the last
few large tracts of land within the Town?

1 urge the Town, in the strongest possible terms, to oppose this development.

Regards,

Brian Greiner



	AGENDA
	Additions & Corrections to the Agenda
	Declarations of Pecuniary Interest
	Presentations & Recognitions
	1. Mr. Daniele Zanotti, CEO, United Way of York Region to address the Committee regarding the 2013 campaign, highlights of United Way activities and celebration of a strong partnership with the Town of Newmarket. 
	[Deputation United Way.pdf]

	2. Mr. Paul Ferguson, President - Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. to address the Committee regarding the 2012 Annual General Meeting. 
	[Hydro Holdings Inc. AGM Deputation Ferguson.pdf]


	Deputations
	3. (ADDED) Mr. Dave Sovran of the Glenway Preservation Association to address the Committee regarding Marianneville Developments Ltd. (Glenway) (Related to Item 21)

	Consent Items
	4. Correspondence from Radha Bhardwaj, Executive Director, AIDS Committee of York Region requesting proclamation of December 1, 2013 as "World AIDS Day" in the Town of Newmarket.



a) THAT the correspondence dated October 23, 2013 from Radha Bhardwaj, Executive Director, AIDS Committee of York Region be received and the following recommendations be adopted: 



i) THAT the Town of Newmarket proclaim December 1, 2013 as "World AIDS Day";



ii) AND THAT the proclamation be advertised in the Town Page advertisement and on the Town's website www.newmarket.ca
	[Proclamation World Aids Day.pdf]

	5. Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee Minutes of October 1, 2013.



The Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee recommends: 



a) THAT the Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee Minutes of October 1, 2013 be received. 
	[Heritage Newmarket Minutes of October 1, 2013.pdf]

	6. Newmarket Economic Development Advisory Committee Minutes of October 17, 2013. 



The Newmarket Economic Development Advisory Committee recommends:



 a) THAT the Newmarket Economic Development Advisory Committee Minutes of October 17, 2013 be received. 
	[NEDAC Minutes of October 17, 2013.pdf]

	7. Item 1 of the Newmarket Economic Development Advisory Committee Minutes of October 17, 2013 regarding Intelligent Community;Broadband Strategy.

 

The Operational Leadership Team recommends: 



a) THAT the following recommendations be referred to staff for further review and to report back, as appropriate.

 

The Newmarket Economic Development Advisory Committee recommends to Council: 



a) THAT the Town of Newmarket consider a number of options to at least begin the process to build a high speed connection service within Newmarket along with business plans and implementation cases;

 

b) AND THAT with the assistance of the Shared Digital Infrastructure organization that the Regional Municipality of York be requested to supply information on what the Town of Newmarket can expect in terms of support in moving forward with high speed connectivity services. 
	8. Newmarket Public Library Board Minutes of September 18, 2013.

 

The Newmarket Public Library Board recommends:

 

a) THAT the Newmarket Public Library Board Minutes of September 18, 2013 be received. 
	[Public Library Minutes of September 18, 2013.pdf]

	9. a) Central York Fire Services - Joint Council Committee Minutes of October 1, 2013 and September 3, 2013 (including Closed Session Minutes).

 

The Central York Fire Services - Joint Council Committee recommends: 



i) THAT Central York Fire Services - Joint Council Committee Minutes of October 1, 2013 and September 3, 2013 be received; 



ii) AND THAT Central York Fire Services Joint Council Committee (Closed Session) Minutes of September 3, 2013 be received. 
	[JCC Minutes of October 1 and Sept. 3, 2013.pdf]

	10. Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Engineering Services 2013-50 dated October 17, 2013 regarding Foxtail Ridge - Parking Review. (Deferred from Committee of the Whole meeting of November 4, 2013)

 

The Commissioner of Development and Infrastructure Services and the Director of Engineering Services recommend:

 

a) THAT Development and Infrastructure Services Report - ES 2013-50 dated October 17, 2013 regarding Foxtail Ridge - Parking Review be received and the following recommendation be adopted:

 

 i) THAT the parking restrictions remain as existing. 
	[D & I Planning Report 2013-50 Foxtail Ridge Parking Review.pdf]

	11. Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Engineering Services 2013-51 dated November 1, 2013 regarding Request for Final Acceptance and Assumption - Oxford Homes Residential Subdivision, Phase 1A. 



The Commissioner of Development and Infrastructure Services and the Director of Engineering Services recommend: 



a) THAT Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Engineering Services 2013-51 dated November 1, 2013 regarding Request for Final Acceptance and Assumption - Oxford Homes Residential Subdivision, Phase 1A be received and the following recommendations be adopted: 



i) THAT the request for final acceptance and assumption of the Oxford Homes Residential Subdivision - Phase 1A as shown on the attached map be finally accepted and assumed by the Town;

 

ii) AND THAT the securities be released as recommended by our Checking Consultant;

 

iii) AND THAT Ms. Angela Meyer of Oxford Homes (711371 Ontario Corp.) and Mr. Angelo A. Maurizio, P. Eng., of Schaeffer & Associates Ltd. be notified of these recommendations. 
	[D & I ES 2013-51 Oxford Homes Assumption.pdf]

	12. Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Engineering Services 2013-52 dated November 13, 2013 regarding Queen Street/Parkview Crescent (East Leg) - All Way Stop Review.

 

The Commissioner of Development and Infrastructure Services and the Director of Engineering Services recommend: 



a) THAT Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Engineering Services 2013-52 dated November 13, 2013 regarding Queen Street/Parkview Crescent (East Leg) - All Way Stop Review be received and the following recommendation be adopted: 



i) THAT the existing stop control at the Queen Street and Parkview Crescent (east leg) remain as existing due to not meeting the warrants outlined in the Transportation Management Policy as approved by Town Council, and also due to safety concerns noted in Community Services Report - ES 2013-52, based on the Ministry of Transportation requirements. 
	[D & I ES 2013-52 Queen Parkview All Way Stop Review.pdf]

	13. Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Engineering Services 2013-53 dated October 25, 2013 regarding GO Railway Pedestrian Crossing Anti-Whistling, Mile 34.89. 



The Commissioner of Development and Infrastructure Services and the Director of Engineering Services recommend: 



a) THAT Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Engineering Services 2013-53 dated October 25, 2013 regarding GO Railway Pedestrian Crossing Anti-Whistling, Mile 34.89 be received and the following recommendation be adopted: 



i) THAT the Town not proceed with a whistle ban proposal at the GO pedestrian crossing (mile 34.89) located at Deviation Road. 
	[D & I ES 2013-53 GO Railway Anti-Whistling.pdf]

	14. Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Engineering Services 2013-54 dated October 28, 2013 regarding the Traffic By-law (By-law 2011-24) - Housekeeping Amendments. 



The Commissioner of Development and Infrastructure Services and the Director of Engineering Services recommend: 



a) THAT Development and Infrastructure Services Report – ES2013-54 dated October 28, 2013 regarding Traffic By-law (By-law 2011-24) be received and the following recommendations be adopted: 



i) THAT the definition of Personal Mobility Device be deleted, and the new definition be added;

 Personal mobility device is a compact motorized transportation device used to allow greater freedom of movement. Personal mobility devices include forms like motorized wheel chairs, motorized mobility scooters, and Segways.



ii) AND THAT the errors noted in Appendix A of this report be amended with the recommended wording;

 

iii) AND THAT Gorham Street at Harry Walker Parkway, 1 way eastbound on Gorham Street in Schedule III (Stops Signs) be deleted, and that Harry Walker Parkway at Gorham Street be added to Schedule VIII (Signaled Intersections);

 

iv) AND THAT Schedule IX be amended by removing ‘Lockwood Circle – North East’ and removing ‘Stonehaven Avenue & Kingsmere Avenue – South East’, and adding ‘Stonehaven Avenue & Kingsmere Avenue/Lockwood Circle – North East’;

 

v) AND THAT the additional stop sign location in Appendix B be added to Schedule III (Stop Signs);

 

vi) AND THAT the necessary Bylaws be prepared and submitted to Council for their approval.


	[2013-54 ES ES Traffic Bylaw Amendments (By-law 2011-24).pdf]

	15. Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Engineering Services 2013-55 dated October 29, 2013 regarding School Crossing Locations Request - Maple Leaf Public School.

 

The Commissioner of Development and Infrastructure Services and the Director of Engineering Services recommend: 



a) THAT Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Engineering Services 2013-55 dated October 29, 2013 regarding School Crossing Locations Request - Maple Leaf Public School be received and the following recommendation be adopted: 



i) THAT the Maple Leaf Public School administration be forwarded a copy of this report and Council extract and be encouraged to pursue school bus options with the parents on the east side of Main Street North. 
	[D & I ES 2013-55 Crossing Guard Maple Leaf School.pdf]

	16. Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Engineering Services 2013-56 dated November 7, 2013 regarding a Request for Final Acceptance and Assumption of Aboveground Works - Landmark Estates Residential Subdivision , Phase 1 -Clearmeadow Boulevard between Yonge Street and Jordanray Boulevard/Rannie Road. 



The Commissioner of Development and Infrastructure Services and the Director of Engineering Services recommend: 



a) THAT Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Engineering Services 2013-56 dated November 7, 2013 regarding a Request for Final Acceptance and Assumption of Aboveground Works - Landmark Estates Residential Subdivision, Phase 1, Clearmeadow Boulevard between Yonge Street and Jordanray Boulevard/Rannie Road be received and the following recommendations be adopted: 



i) THAT the request for final acceptance and assumption of above ground works on Clearmeadow Boulevard between Yonge Street and Jordanray Boulevard/Rannie Road within the Landmark Estates Residential Subdivision - Phase 1 as shown on the attached map be finally accepted and assumed by the Town; 



ii) AND THAT Mr. Tony Orsi of Landmark Estates (1209104 Ontario Ltd.) and Mr. Andrew Ip, P.Eng., of Masongsong Associates Engineering Ltd. be notified of these recommendations.
	[D & I ES 2013-56 Landmark Estates Assumption.pdf]

	17. Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Planning and Building Services 2013-55 dated November 14, 2013 regarding Application for Zoning By-law Amendment - Main Street Clock Inc. 



The Commissioner of Development and Infrastructure Services and the Director of Planning and Building Services recommend: 



a) THAT Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Planning and Building Services 2013-55 dated November 14, 2013 regarding Application for Zoning By-law Amendment - Main Street Clock Inc. be received and the following recommendations be adopted: 



i) THAT the Application for Zoning By-law Amendment, as submitted by Main Street Clock Inc., for lands being located at the southwest corner of Main Street South and Park Avenue, municipally known as 178, 180, 184, 188, 190 and 194 Main Street be referred to a public meeting;

 

ii) AND THAT following the public meeting, issues identified in this report, together with comments from the public, Committee, and those received through the agency and departmental circulation of the application be addressed by staff in a comprehensive report to the Committee of the Whole, if required;

 

iii) AND THAT Mr. Chris Bobyk, The Forrest Group, 590 Alden Road, Suite 211, Markham, ON LR 8N2 be notified of this action. 
	[D & I Report Planning 2013-55 Main Street Clock Inc..pdf]

	18. Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Planning and Building Services 2013-58 dated November 14, 2013 regarding Heritage Designation - 27 Main Street North. 



The Commissioner of Development and Infrastructure Services and the Director of Planning and Building Services recommend: 



a) THAT Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Planning and Building Services 2013-58 dated November 14, 2013 regarding Heritage Designation - 27 Main Street North be received and the following recommendations be adopted: 



i) THAT Council not proceed with the Heritage designation of the Murray House at 27 Main Street North;

 

ii) AND THAT Council withdraw the notice of intention to designate the propertyknown as the Murray House at 27 Main Street North;

 

iii) AND THAT Bonseph (Tannery) Ltd., and 2213305 Ontario Inc., c/o Sterling Silver Development Corporation, Attention: Ken Kirsch, 53 The Links Road, Toronto, ON M2P 1T7 be advised of this decision;

 

iv) AND THAT Mr. Brian Feherty and Associates Ltd., 411 Queen Street, Newmarket, ON L3Y 2G9 be advised of this decision. 
	[D & I Planning Heritage Designation Murray House 27 Main.pdf]

	19. Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Planning and Building Services 2013-59 dated November 14, 2013 regarding Application for Official Plan Amendment, Zoning By-law Amendment, Draft Plan of Condominium and Draft Plan of Subdivision - 292145 Ontario Limited. 



The Commissioner of Development and Infrastructure Services and the Director of Planning and Building Services recommend: 



a) THAT Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Planning and Building Services 2013-59 dated November 14, 2013 regarding Application for Official Plan Amendment, Zoning By-law Amendment, Draft Plan of Condominium and Draft Plan of Subdivision - 292145 Ontario Limited be received and the following recommendations be adopted: 



i) THAT the Application for Official Plan Amendment, Zoning By-law Amendment, Draft Plan of Condominium and Draft Plan of Subdivision, as submitted by 292145 Ontario Limited for lands being composed of Part of Lot 89, Concession 1, E.Y.S. be referred to a public meeting;

 

ii) AND THAT following the public meeting, issues identified in this report, together with comments of the public, Committee and those received through the agency and departmental circulation of the application, be addressed by staff in a comprehensive report to the Committee of the Whole, if required; iii) AND THAT Mr. Gary Templeton, Templeton Planning Ltd., 71 Tyler Street, Aurora, ON L4G 2N1 be notified of this action.
	[D & I Planning 2013-59 Draft Plan of Subdivision 292145 Ontario Limited.pdf]

	20. List of Outstanding Matters.

 

Recommendation:



a) THAT the list of Outstanding Matters be received. 
	[Outstanding Matters List.pdf]

	21. (ADDED) Joint CAO/Corporate Services Report - Financial Services 2013-50 dated November 11, 2013 regarding the 2013 Audit.

 

The Chief Administrative Officer, the Commissioner of Corporate Services and the Director of Financial Services/Treasurer recommend: 



a) THAT Joint CAO/Corporate Services Report - Financial Services 2013-50 dated November 11, 2013 regarding the 2013 Audit be received and the following recommendations be adopted: 



i) THAT BDO Canada be appointed as the Town's auditors for 2013;

 

ii) AND THAT the audit plan presented by BDO be received. 
	[2013-50 Audit.pdf]

	22. Note: The following report will be considered at 7:00 p.m. at the Newmarket Theatre.

 

Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Planning and Building Services 2013-47 dated October 15, 2013 regarding Application for Official Plan Amendment, Zoning By-law Amendment and Draft Plan of Subdivision Approval - Marianneville Developments Ltd.(Glenway).

 

Recommendations: 



a) THAT Development and Infrastructure Services Report - Planning and Building Services 2013-47 dated October 15, 2013 regarding Application for Official Plan Amendment - D9NP1210, Zoning By-law Amendment - D14NP1210 and Draft Plan of Subdivision - D12NP1210 be received and the following recommendations be adopted: 



i) THAT the applications for Official Plan Amendment - D9NP1210, Zoning By-law Amendment - D14NP1210 and Draft Plan of Subdivision - D12NP1210 submitted on April 20, 2012 be denied due to substantial unresolved technical issues regarding the proposed form of development as set out within this report.



ii) THAT the Without Prejudice Offer in the form as submitted on August 23, 2013 not be accepted.

 

iii) AND THAT Council direct staff and legal counsel to continue to work with the proponent, commenting agencies and the residents toward the resolution of issues in advance of the Ontario Municipal Board hearing scheduled for December 10, 2013 and an eight week Hearing commencing March 3, 2014 with a view of resolving such issues. Any changes to the issues will be reported to Council, parties and participants.  
	[D & I Planning 2013-46 Marianneville (Glenway).pdf]


	Action Items
	Correspondence & Petitions
	23. Correspondence dated October 19, 2013 from Mr. Jeff Brown, Glenway Community Group regarding the Glenway development application. (Related to Item 21)
	[Correspondence Jeff Brown.pdf]

	24. (ADDED) Memorandum from Ms. Ruth Victor, Ruth Victor and Associates dated November 15, 2013 regarding Application for Official Plan Amendment, Zoning By-law Amendment and Draft Plan of Subdivision Approval Marianneville Developments Limited (Glenway) - Responses. (Related to Item 22) 
	[Application for Official Plan Amendment Glenway.pdf]

	25. (ADDED) Memorandum from Director of Planning and Building Services dated November 22, 2013 regarding Development and Infrastructure/Planning and Building Services report 2013-55, Application for Zoning By-law Amendment 178, 180, 184, 188, 190 and 194 Main Street. (Related to Item 17)
	[Memo re strata ownership of underground parking.doc]

	26. (ADDED - 2) Sub-Committee Report - Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee regarding Clock Tower Development Re-zoning Request. (Related to Item 17) 
	[Heritage Advisory Correspondence Main Street Clock.pdf]

	27. (ADDED - 2) Correspondence dated November 24, 2013 from Mr. Gord Tozer regarding Marianneville Developments Ltd. (Glenway) (Related to Item 22) 
	[Tozer Correspondence Glenway.pdf]

	28. (ADDED - 2) Correspondence dated November 25, 2013 from Mr. and Mrs. B. Gard regarding Marianneville Developments Ltd. (Glenway) (Related to Item 22) 
	[Gard Correspondence Glenway.pdf]

	29. (ADDED - 2) Correspondence dated November 24, 2013 from Mr. Brian Greiner regarding Marianneville Developments Ltd. (Glenway) (Related to Item 22) 
	[Greiner Correspondence Glenway.pdf]


	Reports by Regional Representatives
	Notices of Motion
	Motions
	30. Councillor Emanuel: 



a) THAT Development and Infrastructure Services/Planning and Building Services Report 2013-47 dated October 15, 2013 regarding Application for Official Plan Amendment - D9NP1210; Zoning By-law Amendment - D14NP1210; and Draft Plan of Subdivision - D12NP1210 be received and the following recommendations be adopted: 



i) THAT the applications for Official Plan Amendment - D9NP1210, Zoning By-law Amendment - D14NP1210 and Draft Plan of Subdivision - D12NP1210 submitted on April 20, 2012 be denied.

 

ii) THAT the Without Prejudice Offer in the form as submitted on August 23, 2013 not be accepted.

 

iii) AND THAT the Council direct staff to advise the Ontario Municipal Board that the Town will be seeking consideration for a two-staged hearing process that would first allow for discussion and ruling on the principle of development. 



iv) AND THAT Council direct staff to engage outside legal/planning counsel who have Ontario Municipal Board expertise and experience in defending the principles of development. (Related to Item 21)


	31. (ADDED) Regional Councillor Taylor:



a) THAT staff bring back a report to Committee of the Whole within 120 days exploring a change to our procurement process to include recognition/points in our tendering process recognizing the environmental benefit of the bidders proximity to Newmarket.  The report should include any examples in Canada of municipalities currently engaged in recognizing the benefit of local procurement as well as an analysis of all relevant issues. 

	New Business
	Closed Session 
	(ADDED) Newmarket-Tay Power Distribution Ltd. Report of the President dated November 1, 2013 regarding Director Search. (Personal matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal employees or local board employees)
	(ADDED) Marianneville Developments Ltd. (Glenway) (Ward 7) (Litigation matters before administrative tribunals)
	The Closed Session Agenda and Reports will be circulated under seperate cover (Goldenrod).

	Public Hearing Matters 




	Adjournment

